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AFFIDAVIT OF LYNITA SUE NELSON
STATE OF NEVADA )
COUNTY OF CLARK %

I, LYNITA SUE NELSON, declare under penalty of perjury under the law of the
State of Nevada that the following statement is true and correct:

1. Tam over the age of 18 years, Iam the Defendant in this action. I have
personal knowledge of the facts contained herein, and I am competent to testify thereto.

2. Tammaking this affidavit in support of my MOTION FOR PAYMENT OF
FUNDS BELONGING TO DEFENDANT PURSUANT TO COURT’S DECREE TO
ENSURE RECEIPT OF SAME, AND FOR IMMEDIATE PAYMENT OF COURT
APPOINTED EXPERT (“Motion”).

3. I have read the Motion prepared by my counsel and swear, to the best of
my knowledge, that the facts as set forth therein are true and accurate, save and except
any fact stated upon information and belief, and as to such facts I believe them to be
true. Thereby reaffirm said facts as if set forth fully herein to the extent that they are
not recited herein. If called upon by this Court, I will testify as to my personal
knowledge of the truth and accuracy of the statements contained therein.

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NAUGHT.

Subscribed and swom to before me
this day of June, 2013.

NOTARY PUBLIC
SHARI AIDUKAS

STATE OF NEVADA - COUNTY OF CLARK |

LN \J k
(%mm /4‘\ G 45{" MY ARPOINTMENT EXP,GCT 26, 2013 |-

INGtary Public in and for*said No: 09-1156831
County and State. : —
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THE DICKERSON LAW GROUP
ROBERT P. DICKERSON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 000945

JOSEEF M. KARACSONYI, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 010634

1745 Village Center Cixcle

Las Vegas,%\Tevada 89134
Telephone: (702) 388-8600
Facsimile: (702) 388-0210

Email: info@dickersonlaweroup.com
Attorneys for LYNITA SU%E NELSON

DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

ERIC L. NELSON,
Plaintiff/Counterdefendant,

CASE NO. D-09-411537-D
DEPT NO. “0O”

v.
LYNITA SUE NELSON

Defendant/Counterclaimant.

ERIC L. NELSON NEVADA TRUST
dated May 30, 2001, and LSN NEVADA
TRUST dated May 30, 2001,

RECEIPT OF COPY

Necessary Parties (joined in this
action pursuant to Stipulation and
Order entered on August 9, 2011)

R i S i e e e e e N e et St g
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LANA MARTIN, as Distribution Trustee
of the ERIC L. NELSON NEVADA
TRUST dated May 30, 2001,

Necessary Party (joined in this
action pursuant to Stipulation and
Order entered on August 9, 2011)/
Purported Counterclaimant and
Crossclaimant,

V.

LYNITA SUE NELSON and ERIC
NELSON,

Purported Cross-Defendant and
Counterdefendant,

LYNITA SUE NELSON,

Counterclaimant, Cross-Claimant,
and/or Third Party Plaintiff,

V.

ERIC L. NELSON, individually, and as
the Investment Trustee of the ERIC L.
NELSON NEVADA TRUST dated May
30, 2001; the ERIC L. NELSON
NEVADA TRUST dated May 30, 2001;
LANA MARTIN, individually, and as the
current and/or former Distribution
Trustee of the ERIC L. NELSON
NEVADA TRUST dated May 30, 2001,
and as the former Distribution Trustee of
the LSN NEVADA TRUST dated Ma
30, 2001; NOLA HARBER, individually,
and as the current and/or former
Distribution Trustee of the ERIC L.
NELSON NEVADA TRUST dated May
30, 2001, and as the current and/or
former Distribution Trustee of the LSN
NEVADA TRUST dated May 30, 2001;
ROCHELLE McGOWAN, individually;
JOAN B. RAMOS, individually; and
DOES 1 through X,

Counterdefendants, and/or
Cross-Defendants, and/or
Third Party Defendants.
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RECEIPT OF COPY
RECEIPT OF COPY of MOTION FOR PAYMENT OF FUNDS BELONGING
TO DEFENDANT PURSUANT TO COURT’S DECREE TO ENSURE RECEIPT OF

SAME, AND FOR IMMEDIATE PAYMENT OF COURT APPOINTED EXPERT is
P oA
acknowledged this _{ § ! day of June, 2013.
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SOLOMON DWIGGINS FREER & MORSE, LTD.

/ S

7y
By: ..M”{ﬂf;}“ ,/ GJQ'?‘{?{;?
MARIC A. SOLOMON, ESQ. &/, =< p..
9060 W. Cheyenne Avenue ‘
Las Vegas, Nevada 89129
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[ Electronically Filed
B 06/17/2013 03:14:22 PM
MOTN Qi bl

THE DICKERSON LAW GROUP

ROBERT P. DICKERSON, ESQ. CLERK OF THE COURT
Nevada Bar No. 000945 : B
KATHERINE L. PROVOST, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 008414

1745 Village Center Circle

Las Vegas, Nevada 89134

Telephone: (702) 388-8600
Facsimile: (702) 388-0210

Email; info@dickersonlawgroup.com
Attorneys for LYNITA S NELSON

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

ERIC L. NELSON,

Plaintiff/ Counteidéfendant,
V. : 3

LYNITA SUE NELSON, . CASE NO. D-09-411537-D
4 DEPT NO. “O”
Defendant/Counterclaimant.

ERIC L. NELSON NEVADA TRUST
dated May 30, 2001, and LSN NEVADA
TRUST dated May 30, 2001,

Necessary Parties (joined in this
action pursuant to Stipulation and
Order entered on August 9, 2011)

LANA MARTIN, as Distribution Trustee of
the ERIC L. NELSON NEVADA TRUST
dated May 30, 2001,

Necessary Party (jloined in this action
pursuant to Stipulation and Order
entered on August 9, 2011)/ Purported
Counterclaimant and Crossclaimant,
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LYNITA SUE NELSON and ERIC
NELSON,

Purported Cross-Defendant and
Counterdefendant,

)
)
|
LYNITA SUE NELSON, g
|
|
)

Counterclaimant, Cross-Claimant,
and/or Third Party Plaintiff,

V.

ERIC L. NELSON, individually and as the
Investment Trustee of the ERIC L. NELSON
NEVADA TRUST dated May 30, 2001; the
ERIC L. NELSON NEVADA TRUST dated
May 30, 2001; LANA MARTIN, individually,
and as the current and/or former Distribution
Trustee of the ERIC L. NELSON NEVADA
TRUST dated May 30, 2001, and as the
former Distribution Trustee of the LSN
NEVADA TRUST dated May 30, 2001);

Counterdefendant, and/or
Cross-Defendants, and/or
Third Party Defendants.

)

NOTICE: YOU ARE REQUIRED TO FILE A WRITTEN RESPONSE TO THIS MOTION WITH
THE CLERK OF THE COURT AND TO PROVIDE THE UNDERSIGNED WITH A COPY OF
YOUR RESPONSE WITHIN TEN (10} DAYS OF YOUR RECEIPT OF THIS MOTION.
FAILURE TO FILE A WRITTEN RESPONSE WITH THE CLERIX OF THE COURT WITHIN
TEN (10) DAYS OF YOUR RECEIPT OF THIS MOTION MAY RESULT IN THE REQUESTED
RELIEF BEING GRANTED BY THE COURT WITHOUT HEARING PRIOR TO THE
SCHEDULED HEARING DATE.

DEFENDANT’S MOTION TO AMEND OR ALTER JUDGMENT, FOR
DECLARATORY AND RELATED RELIEF

COMES NOW Defendant, LYNITA SUE NELSON (“LYNITA”), by and
through her attorneys, ROBERT P. DICKERSON, ESQ., and KATHERINE L.
PROVOST, ESQ., of THE DICKERSON LAW GROUP, and submits the following

Motion to Amend or Alter Judgment and for Declaratory and Related Relief
("Motion”). Specifically, Lynita requests:
2
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1. That the Court Amend or Alter its June 3, 2013 Decree of Divorce to
provide more specificity and clarity concerning the Mississippi real property awarded
to each of the parties in this action, more specifically, to enter an Order listing the
parcels of real property awarded to either Eric or Lynita, by both Parcel ID and Legal
Description as set forth on the attached Exhibit A;

2, That the Court Amend or Alter its June 3, 2013 Decree of Divorce to
Order Eric and/or Lana Martin, in her capacity as the individual delegated by Eric to
“defend, maintain and pursue any and all actions on behalf of the Eric L. Nelson
Nevada Trust dated May 30, 2001 in relation to such claims™ as set forth in the
document entitled “Delegation of Lana A. Martin” dated August 19, 2011" to execute
the correction Warranty Deeds attached as Exhibit B to this Motion within ten (10)
days of presehtation;

3. Thaf the Court Amend or Alter its June 3, 2013 Decree of Divorce to
include an Order requiring the parties to this action to execute any and all deeds,
assignments, or any and all other instruments that may be required in order to
effectuate the transfer of any and all interest either may have in and to the property
awarded to Eric or Lynita (or either party’s respective Trust) as set forth in the June 3,
2013 Decree of Divorce within ten (10) days of presentation, or if any party refuses to
sign said documents then the Clerk of the Court shall sign the documents for the party
that refuses to sign said documents to ensute that there is a full and complete transfer
of the interest of one to the other as provided in the Decree of Divorce.

4, That the Court Amend or Alter its June 3, 2013 Decree of Divorce and
enter an Order awarding Lynita an additional $151,166 in cash or other assets
previously designated as being awarded to Eric in light of Eric’s sale of two (2) of the
seventeen {17) Banone, LLC rental properties, awarded to Lynita in the Decree, during

the pendency of this action;

! Intervenor’s Trial Exhibit 165.
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5, That the Court Amend or Alter its June 3, 2013 Decree of Divorce and
enter an Order for Declaratory Relief, specifically declaring that Eric and Lynita,
through their respective trusts, each holds a 50% membership interest in Dynasty
Development Management, LLC, and all of its holdings, including the horse racing
track and RV park which was purchased by the ELN Trust through Dynasty
Development Management, LLC* during the course of this divorce action from
Wyoming Racing, LLC for $440,000.00, OR ALTERNATIVELY, to re-open this case
and permit discovery concerning the transaction involving Dynasty Development
Management, LLC, Wyoming Racing, LLC, and the purchase an interest in Wyoming
Racing, LLC a horse racing track and RV park for $440,000.00 which occurred in or
about January 2013, as well as the current status of this asset, so that a separate trial
date can be set to make a determination as to the disposition of this asset,

6. For such further relief as deemed appropriate in tﬁe premises including
an award of attorneys fees and costs should this Court find thaﬁé Eric and/or the ELN
Trust has unnecessarﬂy" iﬁcreased the costs of litigation as related to this Motion,

This Motion is made and based upon the following Memorandum of Points and
Authorities, all papers and pleadings on file herein, as well as oral argument of counsel
as may be permitted at the hearing on this matter.

DATED this _\lﬂ'day of June, 2013.

THE DICKERSON LAW GROUP

ROBERT P. DICKERSON, E
Nevada Bar No. 000945
KATHERINE L. PROVOST, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 008414

1745 Village Center Circle

Las Vegas, Nevada 89134
Attorneys for Defendant

? Incorrectly referred to as Dynasty Development Group in the Decree.

4
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NOTICE OF MOTION
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the undersigned will bring the foregoing
DEFENDANT'S MOTION TO AMEND OR ALTER JUDGMENT AND FOR
DECLARATORY AND RELATED RELIEF on for hearing before the above-entitled
Court, onthe L 7Th dayof July , 2013, at the hourof 2: 00pmnm

am./p.an., or as soon thereafter as counsel may be heard.

DATED this | )% day of June, 2013.
THE DICKERSON LAW GROUP

B
yROBERT P. DICKERSON, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 000945
KATHERINE L. PROVOST, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 008414 - -
1745 Village Center Circle
Las Vegas, Nevada 89134
Attorneys for Defendant

- MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
L STATEMENT OF FACTS

OnJune 3, 2013, this Court issued its Decree of Divorce (“Decree”), which was
fifty (50) pages in leﬁgth and contained extensive and detailed findings and Court
Orders. Inthe Decree, Lynita® was awarded certain real property assets, including real
property located in the State of Mississippi (the “Mississippi properties”) and certain
Banone, LLC properties (the “Banone properties”).

Following entry of the Decree, Lynita’s Nevada counsel participated in a

telephone conference with Lynita's Mississippi counsel* concerning the best method

® Reference to property awarded to Lynita includes any and all property awarded to the LSN
Nevada Trust w/a/d 5/30/01. Reference to property awarded to Bric includes any and all property
awarded to the Eric L. Nelson Nevada Trust w/a/d 5/30/01.

* Je'Nell Blum, Esq. and Hugh Ieating, Esq. - Dukes, Dukes, Keating and Faneca, P.A.
5
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of resolving any title issues which exist for the Mississippi propertics. Misstssippi
counsel has recommended that a clarifying order be obtained from this Court which
specifically identifies, by Parcel ID and Legal Description, all of the Mississippi
Properties. A complete list of the propertics awarded by the Decree, by Parcel ID and
Legal Description s attached to this Motion as Exhibit A. Further, Mississippi counsel
has iarep ared certain Corrected Quitclaim Deeds which are attached to this Motion as
Exhibit B. Such deeds are required to obtain clear title for the Mississippi properties
which were awarded to Lynita by the terms of the Decree.

In reviewing the Decree and beginning preparations to transfer to Lynita the
property awarded to her by the Decree it has become evident that while the Decree
awards to Lynita “the Banone, LLC properties held by ELN Trust, with a comparable
value of $1,184.236" to “avoid the ELN Trust from being unjustly enriched”,
$151,166 of this award is 'iIIusory. This is so because during the pendéncy of this
action, after the issuance of the Joint Preliminary Injunction in this action, Eric sold
two (2) of the Banone, LLC properties, namely: 2209 Farmouth Circle’ (sold to
employce, Rochelle McGowan'’s, parents) for $88,166 and 5704 Roscridge Avenuc
(sold to employee Keith Little) for $63,000. Despite such sales, fhese properties
remained on Eric’s list of Banone, LLC properties and was included by the Court’s
expert, Larry Bertsch, in his valuation of the Banone, LLC properties. This discrepancy
should be addressed by the Court and remedied as addressed below.,

Similarly, this Court left unresolved the issue of the existing interest in
“Wyoming Downs”, which is more accurately referred to as Dynasty Development
Management, LLC and its real property and business holdings in or about Evanston,
Wyoming. Eric, through the ELN Trust and Dynasty Development Management, LLC
purchased “Wyoming Downs” during the pendency of this action. The Decree

beginning at page 45, line 23 and continuing through page 46, line 3, identifies that

* Decree at page 20, lines 7-9.
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there is an asset remaining to be addressed in this divorce action. Specifically, the

Decree states:

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that as to the repurchase of
Wryoming Downs by the ELN Trust via the Dynasty Development
Group, this Court is without sufficient information regarding the details
of the repurchase of the property, the value of the property and the
encumbrances on the property to make a determination as to the
disposition of the property, and accordingly, is not making any findings
or decisions as to the disposition of the Wyoming Downs property at this
time.

As to date no decision has been made concerning the disposition of this asset
this Court should render a decision as to the disposition of this asset as suggested
below so that the parties may have finality and closure of this divorce action.

II.  LEGAL ARGUMENT

- Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure, Rule 59(e)(2012); provides as follows: “A
motion to alter or amend the judgment shall be filed no latex than 10 days after service
of written notice of entry of the judgment.” ‘The Decree and Notice of Entry of Decree
were issued by the Court in this action on June 3, 2013. Accordingly, Lynita’s Motion
to amend and alter the judgment pursuant to NRCP 59(e) is timely filed.

Nevada Revised Statutes, Section 125.240 (2013), provides:

NRS 125.240 Enforcement of judc%ment and orders:
Remedies. The final judgment and any order made
before or after judgment may be enforced by the court
by such order as it deems necessary. A receiver may be
appointed, security may be required, execution may issue,
real or personal property of either ?ouse may be sold as

under execution in other cases, and disobedience of any
order may be punished as a contempt.

Furthermore, it is well settled that the Court has inherent authority to protect the

dignity and decency of its proceedings, and to enforce its decrees. See, ¢.g., Halverson

v. Hardcastle, 123 Nev. 29, 163 P.3d 428, 440 (2007).

The relief Lynita has requested in this Motion is not extraordinary. Rather, this

Motion is brought to ensure clarity of this Court’s property division, to allow the
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parties to begin to effectuate the transfer of assets as ordered by the Court, and to
dispose of the last remaining asset not addressed by the Decree.

A.  Mississippi Properties

Lynita’s first request to amend and alter the judgment issued on June 3, 2013
is to provide more specificity and clarity concerning the Mississippi property awarded
to each of the parties in this action, more specifically, to enter an Order listing the
parcels of real property awarded to either Eric or Lynita, by both Parcel ID and Legal
Description.  Thus, Lynita requests this Court issue and Order confirming the
properties as set forth in the attached Exhibit A.

This Court has awarded to Lynita the parcels of Mississippi property identified
in Exhibit A. Tor Lynita to receive the benefits of this property award she will need

to be able to obtain clear title to eachi individual parcel awarded to her under the terms

~of the Decree.  After consultation with Mississippi counsel the most efficient way to

obtain clear title includes this Court amending its June 3, 2013 Decree to i'ndude an:
Order clarifying and providing more‘spéciﬁcity concerning the Mississippi real property

awarded to each of the parties in this action, which is the intent of Exhibit A, and to

also require Eric and/or Lana Martin (his authorized designee) to execute certain

Corrected Quitclaim Deeds which are necessary to obtain clear title to the Mississippi

properties. The Corrected Quitclaim Deeds, which must be executed to obtain clear

title, are provided to the Court as Exhibit B and Lynita requests this Court order

execution of the deeds within ten (10) days.

To ensure there is no issue with the transfer of the Mississippi property to
Lynita, this Court should further amend its June 3, 2013 Decree to include an Order
requiring the parties to this action to execute any and all deeds, assignments, or any
and all other instruments that may be required in order to effectuate the transfer of any
and all interest either may have in and to the property awarded to Exic or Lynita as set
forth in the June 3, 3013 Decree of Divorce within ten (10) days of presentation, or

if any party refuses to sign said documents then the Clerk of the Court shall sign the
8
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documents for the party that refuses to sign said documents to ensure that there is a
full and complete transfer of the interest of one to the other as provided in the Decree
of Divorce,

B. Banone Properties

Lynita’s second request to amend and alter the judgment issued on June 3, 2013
is to address the illusory award of $1,184,236 in Banone, LLC properties to Lynita.
During the pendency of this action, after the implementation of the Joint Preliminary
Injunction, Eric sold two (2) of the Banone, LLC properties located in Nevada. These
two (2) properties are the properties located at 5704 Roseridge Avenue (which was sold
for $63,000 on or about January 23, 2012 to Keith Little, one of Eric’s employees) and
2209 Farmouth Circle (which was sold for $88,166 to Wendell and Lauretta
McGowan, the parents of Rochelle McGowan, one of Eric’s employees). Despite these
sales these two (2) properﬁes remained on Eric’s list of Banone, LLC properties which
was provided to Larry Bertsch and were included in Mr. Bertsch’s value for Banone,
LLC.

This Court awarded the Banone, LLC properties to Lynita and issued a specific
finding that “in order to avoid the ELN Trust from being unjustly enriched . . . the
LSN Trust should be awarded the Banone, LLC properties held by ELN Trust with a
comparable value of $1,184.236". To prevent this Court’s award to Lynita from being
illusory, the Decree will need to be amended and altered to award awarding Lynita an
additional $151,166 in cash or other assets. Lynita suggests the simplest manner of
doing so would be to award her an additional $151,166 from the approximate
$500,000 in cash awarded to Eric from the $1,568,000 previously held in trust by
David Stephens, Esq.  Alternately, this Court could award Lynita other income

producing assets®.

® As the Court’s decision imputes a monthly cash flow to Lynita in the amount of $13,000 from
the income producing properties she is to receive in the overall divorce settlement the $151,166 must
be in the form of cash or income producing assets. The only other income producing assets which exist
are the Banone Arizona properties which have been individually itemized by Larry Bertsch in his July

9
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C.  Wyoming Downs

Finally, Lynita’s last request to amend and alter the judgment issued on June 3,
2013 is to address the sole remaining asset not adjudicated in the June 3, 2013 Decree.
The Decree makes clear that the Court believes it was “without sufficient information
régarding the details of the repurchase of the property, the value of the property and
the encumbrances on the property to make a determination as to the disposition of the
property, and, accordingly, is not maling any findings or decisions as to the disposition
of the Wyoming Downs property at this time.” As no decision has been made to date
concerning the “Wyoming Downs” property referred to at pages 45-46 of the Decree
this issue remains unresolved.

Lynita‘ proposes two ways for the Court to reach a the resolution of this issue.

First, this Court could amend or Alter its June 3, 2013 Decree of Divorce and enter an

Order for Déclaratory Relief, specifically declaring that Plaintiff and Defendant each

hold & 50% membership interest in Dynasty Development Management, LLC, and all
of its holdings, including the horse racing track and RV park which was purchased by
Plaintiff through Dynasty Development Management, LLC during the course of this
divorce action from Wyoming Racing, LLC for $440,000.00 (“Wyoming Downs”),

This declaratory relief would be consistent with the holding of First Nat'l Bank v,

Wolff, 66 Nev. 51, 202 P.2d 878 (1949), that indicates that “[a]fter the divorce, the

parties to the divorce suit become tenants in common in the omitted property.” Id. at
56,202 P.2d at 881; accord Molvik v. Molvik, 31 Wn.App. 133,639 P.2d 238 (1982},
Henn v. Henn, 26 Cal.3d 323, 161 Cal.Rptr. 502, 605 P.2d 10 (1980). Alternatively,

Lynita requests this Court re-open this case and permit discovery concerning the
transaction involving Dynasty Development Management, LLC and Wyoming Racing,

which occurred in or about January 2013 and resulted in the purchase of Wyoming

5, 2011 Notice of Filing Asset Schedule and Notes to Asset Schedule.
10
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Downs as well as the current status of this asset.” By entering an order reopening
discovery concerning “Wyoming Downs” this Court will ensure both parties have the
opportunity to obtain the necessary information to present all c1§i1ns concerning this
asset during a separate trial proceeding, which will result in a final determination as to
the disposition of this property.

D.  Attorney Fees

The relief requested by Lynita in this Motion is not extraordinary. Rather, itis
warranted and justified under the circumstances. While Lynita expects that Eric and/or
the ELN Trust will oppose this Motion, as he has opposed nearly every request made
by Lynita during this litigation, should this Court find that Eric and/or the ELN Trust
has unnecessarily increased the costs of litigation as related to this Motion then Lynita
requests an award of attorneys fees commensurate with the fees and costs she will incur
in defending against any such opposition(s}).

. CONCLUSION

Based upon the foregoing, Lynita respectfully requests the Court to alter or
amend its following Orders and grant her requests for relief:

1. That the Court Amend or Alter its June 3, 2013 Decree of Divorce to
provide more specificity and clarity concerning the Mississippi real property awarded
to each of the parties in this action, more specifically, to enter an Order listing the
parcels of real property awarded to either Eric or Lynita, by both Parcel ID and Legal
Description as set forth on the attached Exhibit A;

2. That the Court Amend or Alter its June 3, 2013 Decree of Divorce to
Order Eric and/or Lana Martin, in her capacity as the individual delegated by Eric to
“defend, maintain and pursue any and all actions on behalf of the Eric L. Nelson
Nevada Trust dated May 30, 2001 in relation to such claims” as set forth in the

document entitled “Delegation of Lana A. Martin” dated August 19, 2011 to execute

" Based upon information available online it appears that Eric intends to conduct a 16 day horse
racing event at Wyoming Downs as early as Spring 2014, See Exhibit C.

11
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the correction Warranty Deeds attached as Exhibit B to this Motion within ten (10)
days of presentation;

3. That the Court Amend or Alter its June 3, 2013 Decree of Divorce to
include an Order requiring the parties to this action to execute any and all deeds,
assignments, or any and all other instruments that may be required in order to
effectuate the transfer of any and all interest either may have in and to the property
awarded to Eric or Lynita (or either party’s respective Trust) as set forth in the June 3,
2013 Decree of Divorce within ten (10) days of presentation, or if any party refuses to
sign said documents then the Clerk of the Court shall sign the documents for the party
that refuses to sign said documents to ensure that there is a full and complete transfer
of the interest of one to the other as provided in the Decree of Divorce,

4, That the Court Amend or Alter its June 3, 2013 Decree of Divorce and
enter an Order awarding Lynita an additional $151,166 in cash or other assets
previously designated as being awarded to Eric in light of Eric’s sale of two (2) of the
seventeen (17) Banone, LLC rental properties, awarded to Lynita in the Decree, during
the pendency of this action;

5. That the Court Amend or Alter its June 3, 2013 Decree of Divorce and
enter an Order for Declaratory Relief, specifically declaring that Eric and Lynita,
through their respective trusts, each holds a 50% membership interest in Dynasty
Development Management, LLC, and all of its holdings, including the horse racing
track and RV park which was purchased by the ELN Trust through Dynasty
Development Management, LLC during the course of this divorce action from
Wyoming Racing, LLC for $440,000.00, OR ALTERNATIVELY, to re-open this case
and permit discovery concerning the transaction involving Dynasty Development
Management, LLC, Wyoming Racing, LLC, and the purchase an interest in Wyoming
Racing, LLC a horse racing track and RV park for $440,000.00 which occurred in or
about January 2013, as well as the current status of this asset, so that a separate trial

date can be set to malke a determination as to the disposition of this asset.
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6. For such further relief as deemed appropriate in the premises including

an award of attorneys fees and costs should this Court find that Eric and/or the ELN

Trust has unnecessarily increased the costs of litigation as related to this Motion.

DATED this_| /%ay of June, 2013,

13

THE DICKERSON LAW GROUP

KATHERINE L. PROVOST, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 008414

1745 Village Center Circle

Las Vegas, Nevada 89134
Attorneys for Defendant
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DECLARATION OF KATHERINE L. PROVOST, ESQ.

STATE OF NEVADA )
)
COUNTY OF CLARK )

I, KATHERINE L. PROVOST, ESQ., declare under penalty of perjury under
the law of the State of Nevada that the following statement is true and correc-t:

1. I am over the age of 18 vears. I am an attorney at THE DICKERSON
LAW GROUP, and one (1) of the attorneys representing Defendant, LYNITA
NELSON (“Lynita”), in this action. IThave personal knowledge of the facts contained
herein, and I am competent to testify thereto.

2. I am making this declaration in support of DEFENDANT'S MOTION
TO AMEND OR ALTER JUDGMENT, FOR DECLARATORY AND RELATED
RELIEE( the “Motion”).

3. I have prepared the Motion and swear, to the best of my knowledge, that
the facts as set forth therein are true and accurate, save and except any fact stated upon
information and belief, and as to such facts I believe them to be true. I hereby reaffirm
said facts as if set forth fully herein to the extent that they are not recited herein. If
called upon by this Court, I will testify as to my personal knowledge of the truth and
accuracy of the statements contained therein.

FURTHER DECLARANT SAYETH NAUGHT.

14
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ERIC L. NELSON

-V5-

LYNITA SUE NELSON

Plaintiff(s),

Defendant(s).

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

CASE NO. D411537
DEPT. NO. O

FAMILY COURT
MOTION/OPPOSITION FEE
INFORMATION SHEET

(NRS 19.0312)

Party Filing Motion/Opposition: [ | Plaintiff/Petitioner

Defendant/Respondent

MOTION FOR OPPQOSITION TO Defendant's Motion to Amend or Alter Judament, for

Declaratory and Related Relief

Motions and
Oppositions to Motions
filed after entry of a final
order pursuant to NRS
125, 125B or 125C are
subject to the Re-open
filing fee of $25.00,
unless specifically
excluded. (NRS 19.0312)

NOTICE:

if it is determined that a motion or

| opposition is filed without payment

of the appropriate fee, the matter
may be faken off the Court's
calendar or may remain undecided
until payment is made.

Mark correct answer with an “X.”
1. No final Decree or Custody Order has been
entered. [ ] YES [X] NO

2. This document is filed solely to adjust the amount of
support for a child. No other request is made.

[ IYES [XINO

3. This motion is made for reconsideration or a new
trial and is filed within 10 days of the Judge’s Order
If YES, provide file date of Order:

[ YEs [IXNO

If you answered YES to any of the questions above,
you are not subject to the $25 fee.

Motion/Opposition XIS

1S NOT subject to $25 filing fee

Dated this 17" of June288 2.1 X

'Q?/}ﬁm /L“// rA/ (e \

gLl

"Printed Ndme of Preparer

ignature of Preparer

Motion-Opposition Fee.doc/1/30/05
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EXHIBIT “A”

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, and DECREED that the following
Mississippi properties shall remain in or be transferred into the ERIC L. NELSON
NEVADA TRUST w/a/d 5/30/01:

(1) Parcel ID 176-0-13-086.001 - Lots 107 & 18-37, Land In Water
Ranchettes;

(2) Parcel ID 176-0-13-086.002 - Lots 8-17, Land in Water Ranchettes;

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, and DECREED that the following
Mississippi properties shall remain in or be transferred into the LSN NEVADA
TRUST wa/d 5/30/01:

(1) Parcel ID 164P-0-19-063.000 - Lots 1-16, Block 79, Gulfview Subdivision
and Part of abandoned Waite & Michigan Street

(2) Parcel ID 164K-0-20-014.000 - Lots 7 & 8, Block 93, Gulfview
Subdivision

(3) Parcel ID 164K-0-20-016.000 - Parcels D, E, & Kand Part Lots 4 & 5,
Block 103 Gulfview Subdivision

(4) Parcel 1D 164IK-0-20-017.000 - Parts of Lots B & C, Block 103 Gulfview
Subdivision

(5) Parcel 1D 164IK-0-20-017.001 - Part of Lots 2, 3 and Part of 13-16, Block
103, Gulfview Subdivision

(6) Parcel ID 164IK-0-20-018.000 - Lot A and 1, Block 103, Gulfview
Subdivision

(7) Parcel 1D 164Q-0-20-015.000 - Part of Lot 7, Block 103, Gulfview
Subdivision, Parcel GG

(8) Parcel ID 164Q-0-20-016.000 - Part of Lots F and 6. Block 103, Gulfview
Subdivision

(9) Parcel ID 1641-0-19-071.000 - Lot 5, Block 82, Gulfview (L-3-72)
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(10)! Parcel ID 164F-0-18-003.000 - Part of the NE 1/4 of SE /4 Section
18, Township 9 South, Range 14 West

(11)* Parcel 1D 164F-0-18-003.001 - Part of the NE 114 of SE 1/4 South of
Railroad

(12)? Parcel ID 164F-0-18-003.002 - Part of the SE 1/4-SE 1/4, Section 18,
Township 9 South, Range 14 West

(13} Parcel 1D 164K-0-20-001.000 - All of Block 88, Gulfview Subdivision
(14) Parcel 1D 164IK-0-20-002.000 - All of Block 89, Gulfview Subdivision
(15) Parcel ID 164K-0-20-003.000 - All of Block 90 Gulfview Subdivision

(16) Parcel ID 164K-0-20-004.000 - All of Block 91, Gulfview Subdivision

(17) Parcel ID 1641-0-20-005.000 - Lots 1 & 2, Block 92, Gulfview
Subdivision {T-4-50 AA53-51) o

(18) Parcel ID 164I-0-20-006.000 - Lot 3, Block 92, Gulfview Subdivision
(19) Parcel ID 164K-0-20-007.000 - Lot 4, Blocl 92, Gulfview Subdivision

(20) Parcel ID 164IK-0-20-008.001 - Lots 9 & 10, Block 92, Gulfview
Subdivision and part of abandoned Michigan Street

(21) Parcel ID 164K-0-20-009.000 - Lot 11 , Block 92, Gulfview Subdivision
(22) Parcel ID 164K-0-20-012.000 - Lot 14, Block 92, Gulfview Subdivision

(23) Parcel ID 164K-0-20-020.000 - Lots 13, 20, and east half of Lots 14 &
19, Block 10, Gulfview Subdivision

" Title to this property is held in the name of Grotta Financial Partnership, an entity in which
the LSN Trust holds a 16.67% interest.

% Title to this property is held in the name of Grotta Financial Partnership, an entity in which
the LSN Trust holds a 16.67% interest.

3 Title to this property is held in the name of Grotta Financial Partnership, an entity in which
the LSN Trust holds a 16.67% interest.
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(24) Parcel ID 1641-0-20-022.000 - Part of Lots 9-12 and water lot, Gulfview
Subdivision

(25) Parcel 1D 164K-0-20-024.000 - Part of Block 104 Gulfview Subdivision
and Lots 21-24 Water Lot

(26) Parcel ID 164K-0-20-028.000 - Lots 12, 21 -24, Block 104, Gulfview
Subdivision

(27) Parcel 1D 164K-0-20-029.000 - Lot 17, Block 104 , Gulfview Subdivision

(28) Parcel ID 164K-0-20-030.000 - Lots 1-16, Block 105, Gulfview
Subdivision

(29) Parcel 1D 164K-0-20-031.000 - Part of Lots 11 & 12, Block 112 Gulfview
Subdivision and part of abandoned Ladner Street :

- (30) Parcel ID 164K-0-20-032.000 - Part of Lots 12 & 13, (74'x150") Block 11,
Gulfview Subdivision - .

(31) Parcel 1D 164K-0-20-033.000 - All of Lot 14 , Part of Lots 10-12 & Part =
of Auston Street, Block 112, Gulfview Subdivision _ o

(32) Parcel ID 164K-0-20- 034 000 - Part of Lots 10 & 11, Block 112 Gulfview
Subdivision

(33) Parcel ID 1 64K-0-20-035.000 - Part of Lots 1, 2, 13-16, Block 112,
Gulfview Subdivision

(34) Parcel ID 164XK-0-20-037.000 - Lots 1-14, Block 106, Gulfview
Subdivision

(35) Parcel ID 1641-0-20-038.000 - Part of Lots 3-6, All of 7- 11, Part of
12-15, Block 111, Gulfview Subdivision

(36) Parcel ID 164K-0-20-041.000 - Part of Lots 1-5 & 15-10, Block 111,
Gulfview Subdivision

(37) Parcel ID 164K-0-20-042.000 - All of Block 113, Gulfview Subdivision

(38) Parcel ID 164K-0-20-044.000 - Part of Block 110, Gulfview Subdivision
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(39) Parcel ID 1641(-0-20-046.000 - All of Block 107, Gulfview Subdivision
(40) Parcel ID 164K-0-20-047.000 - All of Block 108, Gulfview Subdivision
(41) Parcel ID 1641K-0-20-048.000 - All of Block 109,Gulfview Subdivision

(42) Parcel ID 164K-0-20-049.000 - Lots 1-16, Block 115, Gulfview
Subdivision

(43) Parcel ID 164L-0-19-052.000 - Lot 9, Block 61, Gulfview Subdivision

(44) Parcel ID 1641-0-19-053.000 - All of Block 61 except Lot 9, Gulfview
Subdivision

(45) Parcel ID 164L-0-19-064.000 - Lots 1 -4 & 13-16, Block 70, Gulfview
Subdivision

(46) Parcel ID 164L-0-19-080.001 - Lots 15 & 16, Block 83, Gulfview
Subdivision & part of abandoned Michigan Street

(47) Parcel ID 1640—0-17-053.000 - Block 40-A, 4 & 5, Chalona Beach AA-17

(48) Parcel ID 1641( 0-20-023.000 - Lots 9-12, Block 104, Gulfview
Subdivision

(49) Parcel ID 1641K-0-20-023.001 - Part of Block 104, Gulfview Subdivision

(50) Parcel 1D 164P-0-19-059.000 - Lots 9-12 Block 82, Gulfview
Subdivision .

AAPP 4774



Exhibit “B”

AAPP 4775



Prepared By & Return To: Grantor: Dynasty, Inc.

Je'Nell B. Blum MSB#1 00466 3611 8. Lindell Rd,, Ste 201
2909 13" Straet ~ Suite 601 Las Vegas, NV 89103
Gulfport, MS 39501 Ph 702-362-3030

Ph 228-868-1111
File No.: 2809.0001
Grantee: Dynasty Limited

Index In: 3611 8, Lindell Rd., Ste 201
Blocks 88, 8%,50,91,105,107,L08,109, Las Vegas, NV 82103
110,111,112,113 & 115 AND Ph 702-362-3030

Lots 1-14 Block 106 AND
Lots 12,21, 22, & 23, Block 104
in Sec 20-T9S-R12W,

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI
CQUNTY OF HANCOCK

CORRECTED QUITCLAIM DEED

FGR AND IN CONSIDERATION of Ten Dollars ($10.00) cash in hand paid, and other good
and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of all of which is herebyy acknowledged,
DYNASTY, INC,, Grantor, does hereby sell, convey and quitciaim unto DYNASTY LIMITED,
Grantee, any and all interest that it may hold in the following described real property situated in the
Hancock County, Mississippi, and being more particularly described as follows:

[SEE EXHIBIT “A” ATTACHED]

This canveyance is subject to any and all recorded rights-of-way, restrictiehs, reservations,
covenants and easements.

This correcled Quitclaim Deed is given to correct the lagal description and notary
acknowledgment in that Quitclaim Deed dated September 19, 2003 and recorded in Deed Book
BB270, Page 675.

Witness my signature, this the day of , 2013,

DYNASTY, INC.

Eric L. Nelson
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STATE OF

COUNTY OF

PERSONALLY APPEARED BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority in aud for the
aforesaid County and State, on this day of , 2013, within my
jurisdiction, the within named Evic L. Nelson, who acknowledged that he is of

Dynasty, Ine., and that for and on behalf of said corporation, and as its act and deed, he executed
the above and foregoing Instrument, after first baving been duly authorized by said corporation so
o do,

NOTARY PUBLIC

My cominissiot expires:
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EXHIBIT A"

PARCEL 1: All of Blocks 88, 89,90,91, 103, 187, 108, 109 and (15, GULFVIEW SUBDIVISION,
Hancock County, Mississippi, as per the official plat of said subdivision on file in the office of the
Cierk of the Chancery Court of Hancock County, Mississippi.

PARCEL 2: Lots | through 14, inclusive, Block 106, GULFVIEW SUBDIVISION, Hancock
County, Mississippi, as per the official plat of said subdivision on file in the office of the Clerk of
the Chancery Court of Hancock County, Mississippi.

PARCEL3; AllofBlock |10, GULFVIEW SUBDIVISION, Hancock County, Mississippi, as per
the official plat of said subdivision on file in the office of the Clerk of the Chancery Court of
Hancock County, Mississippi; LESS AND EXCEPT that part of said Block previously conveyed by

Grace A. Ortte, by deed dated January 12, 1952 and recorded in Book I-9, Page 133 and deed dated

Aungust 7, 1978 and recorded in Book AA-26, Page 487, Deed Records of Hancock County,

Mississippi.

PARCEL 4: All of Block 11§, GULFVIEW SUBDIVISION, Hancock County, Mississippi, as per
the official plat of said subdivision on file in the office of the Clerk of the Chancery Court of
Hancock County, Mississippi; LESS AND EXCEPT that part of said Block previously conveyed by
Grace A. Ortfc, by deed dated January 12, 1952 and recorded in Book [-9, Page 133 and deed dated
April 22, 1954, and recorded in Book I-8, pags 495, Deed Records of Hancock County, Mississippi.

PARCEL5: All of Block 112, lying Northwest of Beach Boulevard in GULFVIEW SUBDIVISION,
Hancock County, Mississippi, as per the official plat of said subdivision on file in the office of the
Clerk of the Chancery Court of Hancock County, Mississippi; LESS AND EXCEPT that part
previously conveyed by Grace A. Orite to N.8. Hunt, by deed dated March 16, 1960 and recorded
in Book M-7, Page 91, Deed Records of Hancack County, Mississippi.

PARCEL 6: All that part of Block [13, lying Northwesterly of Beach Boulevard, GULFVIEW
SUBDIVISION, Hancock County, Mississippi, as per the officisl plat of said subdivision on file in
the office of the Clerk of the Chancery Court of Hancock County, Mississippi.

PARCEL 7: All of Grantor’s right, title and interest in and to all alleyways, streets and avenues
which have been previously abandoned by governmetal action or which have been abandoned by
impiication.

PARCEL §: All of Grantor’s right, title and interest, including riparian rights, in and to any property
lying East and Southeast of Beach Boulevard and East and Southeast of any of parcels of property
described above,

Together with all and singular the rights, privileges, improvements and appurtenances to the
same belonging or in any wise appertaining,

For the same consideration as above mentioned, the Grantor herein does also convey and
quitciaim unto the Grantee herein, all of its right, tifle and interest in and to the following described
property located in Hancock County, Mississippi, and being more particularly described as follows,
to-wit:

PARCEL I: A parcel of land situated in part of Blocks 135 and 112, GULFVIEW SUBDIVISION,
Hancock County, Mississippi, and being more fully described as follows:

Commencing at the intersection of the North right of way of Lakeshore Road with the Northwesterly
right of way of Beach Boulevard; thence Nosth 23 degrees 37 minutes 44 seconds along the
Northwesterly right of way of Beach Boulevard, 545.00 feel to a point, said point being the place of
beginning; thence South 23 degrees 37 minutes 44 seconds West along fence line 89,60 feet to a
fence corner; thence North 65 degrees 58 minutes 44 secounds West along fence line [46.30 feet to
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a fence corner; thence North 22 degrees 24 minutes 59 seconds East along fence line 169.29 feet to
a fence comer; thence South 64 degrees 09 minutes 25 seconds East along a fence [ine 150.00 feet
to a point on the Northwesterly right of way of Beach Boulevard; thence South 32 degrees 37
minutes 44 seconds West along the Northwesterly right of way of Beach Boulevard and a fence line
75 feet to the place of beginning. Containing 24,703 squate feet of land, more or less. LESS AND
EXCEPT that portion previousty conveyed to Notman Du'Rapav on September 2, 1971, and
recorded in Book W-9, Page 271, Deed Records of Hancock County, Mississippi.

PARCEL 2: All that part of Lots 12, 21, 22 and 23, Block 104, GULFVIEW SUBDIVISION not
previously sold.

PARCEL3: All of the Lots, Biocks and Abandoned Streets in Gulfview Subdivision whether or not
correctly described above which are bounded on the North by the Nerth line of Section 20, Township
9 South, Range 14 West; on the West by the West fine of Section 20, Township 9 South, Range 14
West; on the South by Central Avenue; and on the East or Southeast by Beach Boulevard,

Together with all and singular the rights, privileges, improvements and appurtenances Lo the
same belonging or in any wise appertaining, and including riparian and/or litteral rights adjacent to
the above described property.
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Prepared By & Return To: Grantor; Dynasty, Inc.

Je™Nell B, Blum MSB#100466 3611 S. Lindel! Rd., Ste 201
2909 13 Strest - Suite 601 Las Vegas, NV 89103
Gulfport, MS 39501 Ph 702-362-3030

Ph 228-868-1111
File No.: 2809.0001
Grantee: Eric L, Nelson, Nevada Trust

Index In: 3611 S. Lindell Rd., Ste 201
Blocks 88, 89,90,91,105,107,108,109, Las Vepas, NV 85103
110,111,112,113 & 115 AND Ph 702-362-3030

Lots 1-14 Block 106 AND
Lats 12, 21,22, & 23, Block 104
m Sec 20-T9S-R12W.

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI
COUNTY OF HANCOCK

CORRECTED QUITCLAIM DEED

FOR ANDIN CONSIDERATION of Ten Dellars ($10.00) cash in hand paid, and other good
and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of all of which is hereby acknowledged,
DYNASTY, INC,, Grantor, does hereby selt, convey and quitclaim unto ERIC L. NELSON
NEVADA TRUST u/a/d 5-30-01, Grantee, any and all interest that it may tiold in the following
described real property situated in the Hancock County, Mississippi, and being moye particularly de-
seribed as follows:

[SEE EXHIBIT “A” ATTACHED]

This conveyance is subject to any and all recorded rights-of-way, restrictions, reservations,
covenants and easements.

This comected Quitclaim Deed is given to correct the lepal description and notary
acknowledgment in that Quitclaim Deed dated September 19, 2003 and tecordad in Deed Book
BB27Y, Page 236.

Witness my signature, this the  day of , 2013,

DYNASTY, INC.

Eric L. Nalson
Titie:
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STATE OF

COUNTY OF

PERSONALLY APPEARED BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority in and for the
aforesaid County and State, on this day of , 2013, within my
jurisdiction, the within named Eric L. Nelson, who acknowledged that he is of

Dynasty, Inc., and that for and on behatf of said corporation, and as its act and deed, he executed
the above and foregoing instrument, after first having been duly authorized by said corporation so
ta do.

NOTARY PUBLIC

My commission expires:
)
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EXHIBIT “A”

PARCEL I: All of Blocks 88, 89,90, 91,105, 107,108, 109and 115, GULFVIEW SUBDIVISION,
Hancock County, Mississippi, as per the official plat of said subdivision on file in the office of the
Clerk of the Chancery Court of Hancock County, Mississippi.

PARCEL 2: Lots | through 14, inclusive, Block 106, GULFVIEW SUBDIVISION, Hancock
County, Mississippi, as per the official plat of said subdivision on file in the office of the Clerk of
the Chancery Court of Hancock County, Mississippi.

PARCELZ:  AllofBlock 110, GULFVIEW SUBDIVISION, Hancock County, Mississippi, as per
the official plat of said subdivision on file in the office of the Clerk of the Chancery Court of
Hancock County, Mississippi; LESS AND EXCEPT that part of gaid Block previously conveyed by
Grace A, Ortte, by deed dated January 12, 1952 and recorded in Book [-9, Page 133 and deed dated
August 7, 1978 and recorded in Book AA-26, Page 487, Deed Records of Hancock County,
Mississippi.

PARCEL 4: All of Block 1), GULFVIEW SUBDIVISION, Hancock County, Mississippi, as per
the official plat of said subdivision on file in the office of the Clerk of the Chancery Court of
Hancock County, Mississippi; LESS AND EXCEPT that part of said Block previously conveyed by
Grace A. Ortte, by deed dated Januvary 12, 1952 and recorded in Book 1-9, Page 133 and deed dated
April 22, 1954, and recorded in Book I-8, page 495, Deed Records of Hancock County, Mississippi.

PARCEL 5: Al of Block 112, [ying Northwest of Beach Boulevard in GULFVIEW SUBDIVISION,
Hancock County, Mississippi, as per the official plat of said subdivision on file in the office of the

Clerk of the Chancery Court of Hancock County, Mississippi; LESS AND EXCEPT thal part -

previously conveyed by Grace A. Orite to N.S. Hunt, by deed dated March 16, 1960 and recorded
in Book M-7, Page 91, Deed Records of Hancock County, Mississtppi,

PARCEL 6: All that part of Block 113, lying Northwesterly of Beach Boulevard, GULFVIEW
SUBDIVISION, Hancock Couinty, Mississippi, as per the official plat of said subdivision on file in
the office of the Clerk of the Chancery Court of Hancock County, Mississippi.

PARCEL 7: All of Grantor’s right, title and intersst in and to all alleyways, streets and avenues
which have been previously abandoned by governmental action or which have been sbandoned by
implication.

FPARCEL 8: All of Grantor’s right, title and interest, including riparian rights, in and to any property
lying East and Southeast of Beach Boulevard and Fast and Southcast of any of parcels of property
described above.

Together with all and singular the rights, privileges, improvements and appuitenances to the
same belonging or in any wise appertaining,

For the same consideration a5 above mentioned, the Grantor herein does also convey and
quitclaim unto the Grantee herein, all of its right, title and interest in and to the following described
property located in Hancock County, Mississippi, and being more particularly deseribed as follows,
to-wit:

PARCEL 1: A parcel of land situated in part of Blocks [05and 112, GULFVIEW SUBDIVISION,
Hancock County, Mississippi, and being more fully described as follows:

Commencing at the intersection of the North right of way of Lakeshore Road with the Northwesterly
right of way of Beach Boulevard; thence North 23 degrees 37 minutes 44 seconds along the
Northwesterly right of way of Beach Boulevard, 545.00 feet to a point, said point being the place of
beginning; thence South 23 degrees 37 minutes 44 seconds West afong fence line 89.60 feet to a
fence corner; thence North 65 degrees 58 minutes 44 seconds West along fence line 146,30 feet to
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a fence corner; thence North 22 degrees 24 minutes 59 scconds East along fence line 169.29 fzet o
a fence corner; thence South 64 degrees 09 minutes 25 seconds Eagt elong a fence line 150.00 feet
to & point on the Northwesterly right of way of Beach Bouievard; thence South 32 degrees 37
minutes 44 seconds West alony the Northwesterly right of way of Beach Boulevard and a fence line
75 feet to the place of beginning. Containing 24,703 square feet of land, more or less. LESS AND
EXCEPT that portion previously conveyed to Norman Du'Rapau on September 2, 1971, and
recorded in Book W-9, Page 271, Deed Records of Hancock County, Mississippi.

PARCEL 2: Alj that part of Lots 12, 21, 22 and 23, Block 104, GULEVIEW SUBDIVISION not
previously sold. .

PARCEL3: All ofthe Lots, Blocksand Abandoned Streets in Gulfview Subdivision whether or not
correctly described above which are bounded on the North by the North line of Section 20, Township
9 South, Range [4 West; on the West by the West line of Section 20, Township 9 South, Range 14
West; on the South by Central Avenug; and on the East or Southeast by Beach Boulevard,

Togetiier with all and singular the rights, privileges, improvements and appurtenances to the
same belonging or in any wise appertaining, and including riparian and/or littoral rights adjacent to
the above deseribed property.
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Prepared By & Return To; Grantor: Dynasty Limiled

Je'Nell B, Blum MSB#100466 3611 3. Lindel! Rd., Ste 201
2909 13" Street - Suite 601 Las Vegas, NV 89103
Gulfport, MS 39501 Ph 702-362-3030

Ph 228-868-1111
File No.: 2809.0001
Grantee: Eric Nelson Nevada Trust

Index In: 3611 8. Lindell Rd., Ste 201
Blocks 88, 89,90,%1,105,107,108,109, Las Vegas, NV 89103
L10,011,112,113 & 115 AND Ph 702-362-3030

Lots i-14 Block 106 AND
Lots 12, 21, 22, & 23, Block [04
in Sec 20-T9S-R12W.

STATE OF MISSISSIPP:
COUNTY OF HANCOCK

CORRECTED GRANT, BARGAIN, SALE DEED

FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION of Ten Dollars {(510.00) cash ir: hand paid, and other good
and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of all of which is hereby acknowledged,
DYNASTY LIMITED, Grantor, does hereby grant, bargain sell and convey unto ERIC L.
NELSON TRUSTEE OF ERIC L. NELSON NEVADA TRUST uw/a/d 5-30-01 Grantee, any and
all interest that it may hold in the fofllowing described real property situated in the Hancock County,
Mississippi, &and being more particularly described as follows:

[SEE EXHIBIT “A” ATTACHED)]

This conveyance is subject o any and all recorded rights-of-way, restrictions, reservations,
covenants and easements.

This corrected Quitciaim Deed is given to comeet the legal description and notary
acknowledgment in that Quitclaim Deed dated November 12, 2004 and recorded in Deed Book
BR279, Page 234,

Witness my signature, this the day of . 2013,

DYNASTY LIMITED

By

Eric L. Nelson
Title:
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STATE OF
COUNTY OF

PERSONALLY APPEARED BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority in and for the
aforesaid County and State, on this day of , 2013, within my
jurisdiction, the within named Krie L. Nelson, who acknowledged that he is
of Dynagty Limited, and that for and on behalf of said corporation,
and as its act and deed, he executed the above instrument, after first having been duly authorized so
o do.

NOTARY PUBLIC

My commission expires:
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EXHIBIT “A”

PARCEL 1. All of Blacks 88, 89,90, 91, 105, 107, 108, 109 and 115, GULFVIEW SUBDIVISION,
Hancack County, Mississippi, as per the official plat of said subdivision on file in the office of the
Clerk of the Chancery Court of Hancock County, Mississippi.

PARCEL Z: Lots | through 14, inclusive, Block 106, GULFVIEW SUBDIVISION, Hancock
County, Mississippi, as per the official plat of said subdivision on file in the office of the Clerk of
the Chancery Court of Hancock Comty, Mississippi.

PARCEL3:  AllofBlock 110, GULFVIEW SUBDIVISION, Hancock County, Mississippi, as per
the official plat of said subdivision on file in the office of the Clerk of the Chancery Court of

Hancock County, Mississippi; LESS AND EXCEPT that part of said Block previously conveyed by

Grace A. Orite, by deed dated January 12, 1952 and recorded in Book -3, Page 133 and deed dated

Auvgust 7, 1978 and recorded in Book AA-26, Page 487, Deed Records of Hancack County,

Mississippi.

PARCEL 4: All of Block 111, GULFVIEW SUBDIVISION, Hancock County, Mississippi, as per
the official plat of said subdivision on file in the office of the Clerk of the Chancery Court of
Hancock County, Mississippi; LESS AND EXCEPT that part of said Block previously conveyed by
Grace A. Ortte, by decd dated January 12, 1952 and recorded in Book [-9, Page 133 and deed dated
April 22, 1954, and recordsd in Book )-8, page 495, Deed Records of Hancock County, Mississippi.

PARCEL5: All of Block 112, tying Northwest of Beach Boulevard in GULFVIEW SUBDIVISION, -

Hancock County, Mississippi, as per the official plat of said subdivision on file in the office of the
Cletk of the Chancery Court of Hancack County, Mississippi; LESS AND EXCEPT that part
previously conveyed by Grace A, Ortte to N.S, Hunt, by deed dated March 16, 1960 and recorded
in Book M-7, Page 91, Deed Records of Hancock County, Mississippi.

PARCEL 6&: All that part of Biock 113, lying Notthwesterly of Beach Boulevard, GULFVIEW
SUBDIVISION, Hancock County, Mississippi, as per the official plat of said subdivision on file in.
the office of the Clerk of the Chancery Court of Hancock County, Mississippi.

FARCEL 7: All of Grantor's right, title and interest in and to all alleyways, streets and avenues
which have been previousty abandoned by governmental action or which have been abandoned by
imptlication,

PARCEL 8: All of Grantor’s right, title and interest, including riparian rights, in and to any property
tying Bast and Southeast of Beach Boulevard and East and Southeast of any of parcels of property
described above.

Together with all and singular the rights, privileges, improvements and appurtenances to the
same belonging or in any wise appertaining.

Far the same consideralion as above mentioned, the Grantor herein does also convey and
quitclaim unto the Grantee herein, all of its right, title and interest in and to the following described
praperty located in Hancosk County, Mississippi, and being more particularly described as follows,
to-wit:

PARCEL I: A parcel of land situated in part of Blogks 105 and {12, GULFVIEW SUBDIVISION,
Haneock County, Mississippi, and being maore fuily deseribed as foliows:

Commencing at the intersection of the North right of way of Lakeshore Road with the Northwesterly
right of way of Beach Bounlevard; thence MNorth 23 degrees 37 minntes 44 seconds along the
Northwesterly right of way of Beach Boulevard, 545.00 feet to a point, said point being the place of
beginning; thence South 23 degrees 37 minutes 44 seconds West along fence line 89.60 feet to a
fence corner; thence North 65 degrees 58 minutes 44 seconds West along Tence line 146.30 feet to
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a fence corner; thence North 22 degrees 24 minutes 59 seconds East along fence line 169.29 feet lo
a fence corner, thence South 64 degrees 09 minutes 25 seconds East along a fence line 150.00 feet
te a point on the Northwesterly right of way of Beach Boulevard: thence South 32 degrees 37
minutes 44 seconds West along the Northwesterly right of way of Beach Boulevard and a fence line
75 feet to the place of beginning. Containing 24,703 square feet of land, more or less. LESS AND
EXCEPT that poréion previously conveyed to Norman Du’Rapau on September 2, 1971, and
recorded in Book W-9, Pape 271, Deed Records of Hancock County, Mississippi,

PARCEL 2: All that part of Lots 12, 21, 22 and 23, Block 104, GULFVIEW SUBDIVISION not
previously soid.

PARCEL 3: All of the Lots, Blocks and Abandoned Streets in Gulfview Subdivision whether or not
correctly deseribed above which are bounded on the North by the North line of Section 20, Township
9 South, Range 14 West; on the West by the West line of Section 20, Township 9 South, Range 14
West: an the South by Central Avenue; and on the East or Southeast by Beach Boulevard,

Together with ali and singuiar the rights, privileges, improvements and appurtenances to the
same belonging or in any wise appertaining, and including riparian and/or littoral rights adjacent to
the above described property.
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Prepared By & Return To: Grantor;Eric L. Nelson, Nevada Trust

Je'Nell B. Blum MSB#100466 3611 S. Lindell Rd., Ste 201
2909 13" Street - Suite 601 Las Vegas, NV 89103
Gulfport, MS 39301 Ph 702-362-3030

Ph228-8a8-111!
File No.: 2809.0001
Granfee: LSN Nevada Trust

Index In: 3611 S. Lindell Rd., Ste 201
Blocks 88, 89,20,91,103,107,108,109, Las Vegas, NV 89103
LIG, 111,112,113 & 115 AND Ph 702-362-3030

Lotg 1-14 Biock 106 AND
Lots 12,21, 22, & 23, Block 104
in Sec 20-T9S5-R12W,

STATE OF MISSISSiPPI
COUNTY OF HANCOCK

CORRBRECTED GRANT, BARGAIN, SALE DEED

FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION of Ten Doltars ($10.00) cash in hand paid, and other good
and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of all of which is hereby acknowledged,
ERIC L. NELSON NEVADA TRUST w/a/d 5/30/01, Grantor, does herely grant, bargain sell and
convey unto LSN NEVADA TRUST v/a/d 5/30/01, Grantee, any and all interest that it may hold
in the following described real property situated in the Hancock County, Mississippi, and being more
particularly described as follows:

[SEE EXHIBIT “A” ATTACHED]

This conveyance is subject to any and all recorded rights-of-way, restrictions, reservations,
covenants and easements,

This carrected Quitclaim Deed iz given to correct the legal description and notary
acknowledgment in that Quilelaim Deed dated November 12, 2004 and recorded in Deed Book
BB297, Page 588.

Witness my signature, thisthe  day of , 2013,

ERIC L, NELSON
NEVADA TRUST u/a/d 5/30/0%

Eri¢ L. Nelson, Trustee
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STATEOF
COUNTY OF

PERSONALLY APPEARED BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority in and for the
aforesaid County and State, on this day of . 2013, within my
jurisdiction, the within narmned Eric L. Nelson, who acknowiedged that he is Trustee of the Eric L.
Nelson Nevada Trust u/a/d 5/30/01, and in said representative capacity in executed the above
instrument, after first having been duly authorized so ta do.

NOTARY PUBLIC

My commission expires:
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EXHIBIT "A”

PARCEL 1: All of Blocks 88, 89,90, 91, 105, 107, 108, 149 and 115, GULFVIEW SUBDIVISION,
Hancock Counly, Mississippi, as per the official plat of said subdivision on file in the office of the
Clerk of the Chancery Court of Hancock County, Mississippl.

PARCEL 2: Lots 1 through 14, inclusive, Block 106, GULFVIEW SUBDIVISICON, Hancock
County, Mississippi, as per the official plat of said subdivision on file in the office of the Clerk of
the Chancery Court of Hancock County, Mississippi.

PARCEL3: AllofBlock § 10, GULFVIEW SUBDIVISION, Hancock County, Mississippi, as per
the official plat of said subdivision on file in the office of the Clerk of the Chancery Court of
Hancock County, Mississippi; LESS AND EXCEPT that part of said Block previously conveyed by
Grace A. Ortie, by deed dated January 12, {952 and recorded in Book 1-9, Page 133 and deed dated
August 7, 1978 and recorded in Book AA-26, Page 487, Deed Records of Hancock County,
Mississippi,

PARCEL 4: All of Biock 111, GULFVIEW SUBDIVISION, Hancock County, Mississippi, as per
the official plat of said subdivision on file in the office of the Clerk of the Chancery Court of
Hancock County, Mississippi; LESS AND EXCEPT that part of said Block previously conveyed by

Grace A. Ortte, by deed dated January (2, 1952 and recorded in Book I-9, Page 133 and dsed dated .

April 22, 1954, and recorded in Book J-8, page 495, Deed Records of Hancock County, Mississippi,

PARCEL 5: All of Block 112, lying Northwest of Beach Boulevard in GULFVIEW SUBDIVISION,
Hancock County, Mississippi, as per the official plat of said subdivision or file in the office of the
Clerk of the Chancery Court of Hancock County, Mississippi; LESS AND EXCEPT that part
previously conveyed by Grace A. Ortte to N.5. Hunt, by deed dated March 16, 1960 and recorded
in Book M-7, Page 91, Deed Records of Hancock County, Mississippi.

PARCEL 6: All that part of Block 113, lying Northwesterly of Beach Boulevard, GULFVIEW
SUBDIVISION, Hancock County, Mississippi, as per the official plat of said subdivision on file in
the office of the Clerk of the Chancery Court of Hancock County, Mississippi.

PARCEL 7: All of Grantor’s right, title and interest in and to all alleyways, streets and avenues
which have been previously abandoned by govemmental action or which have been abandoned by
implication,

PARCEL B8: All of Grantor’s riglt, title and interest, including riparinnrights, in and to any property
lying Bast and Sontheast of Beach Boulevard and East and Southeast of any of parcels of property
described above,

Together with all and siagular the rights, privileges, improvements and appurienances to the
same belonging or in any wise appertaining.

For the same consideration as above mentioned, the Grantor herein does also convey and
quitclaitm unto the Grantee herein, all of its right, title and interest in and to the following described
property located in Hancock County, Mississippi, and being more particularly described as foliows,
to-wit:

PARCEL 1: A parcel of land sitnated in part of Blocks 105 and 112, GULFVIEW SUBDIVISION,
Hancock County, Mississippi, and being more fully described as foliows:

Commencing at the intersection of the North right of way of Lakeshore Road with the Northwesterly
right of way of Beach Boulevard; thence Nocth 23 degrees 37 minutes 44 seconds along the
Northwesterly right of way of Beach Boulevard, 545.00 feet to a point, said point being the place of
beginning; thence South 23 degrees 37 minutes 44 seconds West along fence line 89.60 feet to a
fence comer; thence North €5 degrees 58 minutes 44 seconds West along fence line 146.30 feet to
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a fence corner; thence Morth 22 degrees 24 minutes 59 seconds East along fence line 169,29 feet to
a fence corner; thence South 64 degrees 0% minutes 25 seconds East along a fence line 150.00 feet
to a point on the Northwesterly right of way of Beach Boulevard, thence South 32 degrees 37
minutes 44 seconds West along the Northwesterly right of way of Beach Boulevard and a fence line
75 feet to the place of beginning, Containing 24,703 square feet of land, more or less. LESS AND
EXCEPT that portion previously conveyed to Morman Du’Rapau on September 2, 1971, and
recorded in Book W-9, Page 271, Deed Records of Hancock County, Mississippi,

PARCEL 2: All that part of Lots 12, 21, 22 and 23, Block 104, GULFVIEW SUBDIVISION not
previousty sold.

PARCEL 3: All ofthe Lots, Blocks and Abandeoned Streets in Gulfview Subdivision whether or not
correctly deseribed above which are bounded onthe North by the North line of Section 20, Township
9 South, Range 14 West; on the West by the West line of Section 20, Township 9 South, Range 14
West; on the South by Central Avenue; and on the Fast or Southeast by Beach Boulevard,

Together with afl and singular the rights, privileges, improvements and appurtenances to the
same belonging or in any wise appertaining, and including riparian and/or littors] rights adjacent to
the above described property.
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(Q-Racing: Wyoming Downs Looks to Reopen in 2014

CAMERICAN QUARTER'
MORSE ASSOCIATION:

MEWS  ABOQUT  CLASSIFIEDS  EN ESPANOL  FOUNDATION  MUSEUM RACIHG RANGCHING

Wyoming Downs Looks to Reopen in 2014
Foliowing Wyoming iegislation, Wyoming Downs looks to reapen.

Edited Press Release
March 1, 2013

Wyoming Downs in Evanston,
Wyoming, which has not conducted
live racing since 2009, is looking to run
18 days in 2014,

The change comes with the new
legislation passed February 27, which
allowes pari-muiuel wagering on
historic races. Wyoming is the second
state in the country to statutorily allow
this type of wagering. Arkansas passed
legislation in 2001,

“The law will have profound effects on the horse racing indusiry throughout
Wyarning, Utah and surrounding states,” said Wyoming Downs owner Eric Nefson,
"We are very excited to re-open the 200 acre Wyoming Downs Thoroughbred and
Quarter horse track in Evanston, Wyoming."

According to Nelson, current plans include 16 racing dates in summer 2014 and the
reapehing of off-track betting throughout Wyoming. Nelson says these actions will
bring jobs, higher purses and a more robtist bottom line. House Bili 25 permits
equipment that allows wagering on past horse racing performances.

“Greater volume in wagering on hoth live and historic races will result in more and
better racing, and make it more profitable for horse irainers and owners," Nelson
said, "Exciting times are ahead at Wyoming Downs, and will benefit the entire equine
industry."

Wyoming Downs is the only private race track in Wyoming with over 815 stalis and a
5,00C person grandstand. Evanston sits in the southwest corner of the state, near
the Utah horder, Sweetwater Downs in Rock Springs, about 100 miles to the
northeast, resumed live racing in 2011 after an 18-year ahsence and conducted four
-day meets in 2011-12,

"The race is on to provide full racing and to fulfili the 16 day racing minimum required
by the State of Wyoming Pari-Mutuel Commission Rules and Regulations,” Nelson
said.

‘I want to extend a special thank you fo Governor Matt Meade; HB25 sponsors
Senator John Schiffer and House Representative Sue Wallis," he concluded. "And,
thank yati to all of those whe joined as a united group to support the revitalizaticn
of the Wyoming horse industry: legislators, Charlie Moore, Executive Directer and
the Wyoming Pari-mutuel Cominission; former Executive Director of the Wyoming
Pari-mutuet Commission Frank Lamb; Judy Horton, AQHA Regional Director;
American Horse Council; Wyoming All Breeds Racing Association, Ron Cook and
Whitey Kaul; Joan Ramos, Wyoming Downs Director of Corporate Operations;
Wyoming Horseracing LLC, Eugene Joyce, fair meet operator; and Government
Adfairs Consulting.”
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Races possible at Wyoming Downs in 2014

Evanston, WY — Wyoming Downs Récetrack, which has not conducted live racing since 2009, is
hoping to run 16 days of racing in 2014.

That change comes as a result of new legislation passed last Wednesday, which allows pari-mutual
wagering on historic races. Wyoming is the second state in the country to statutorily allow this type of
wagering. Arkansas passed similar legislation in 2001,

Wyoming Downs owner Eric Nelson said, “The law will have profound effects on the horse racing
industry throughout Wyoming, Utah, and surrounding states. We are very excited to re-open the 200
acre Wyoming Downs Thoroughbred and Quarter Horse Track in Evanston.”

Nelson said current plans include 16 racing dates in summer 2014 and the reopening of off-track
betting throughout Wyoming. He said this will help bring jobs, higher purses, and a more robust
bottom line. House Bill 25 permits equipment that allows wagering on past horse performances.

Wyoming Downs is the only private race track in Wyoming. It houses over 815 stalls and a 5,000
person grandstand. Sweetwater Downs, in Rock Springs, resumed live racing in 2011 after an 18-year
absence. Sweetwater Downs conducted four-day meets in 2011 and 2012.

By Deborah Demander, KNYN/KADQ News Director
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Wyoming horse racing industry expects boost from
historic wagering

MARCH 03, 2013 9:00 AM + BY JOSHUA WOLFSON
STAR-TRIBUNE STAFF WRITER

A new Jaw that will allow wagering on
historic horse races in Wyoming could
revitalize an industry betting on a comeback,
track operators say.

In July, Wyoming will become the third state
in the nation to permit gamblers to:bet cn
historic races using self-service machines at
bars and other locations. The entire racing
industry should benefit from the machines,
which can generate far more revenue than
tradl‘uonal SImulcast betting, said Eugene Joyce, managing partner of the state’s only
operatmg horse-racing outfit. -

Track operators such as Joyce rely on off-site betting to subsidize live events, which
typically lose money. If they earn more through historic wagering, they can cffer bigger
live purses. That, in turn, attracts more racers to the state and increases demand for
Wyoming-bred horses.

“The horse racing industry has been knocked down in this state,” Joyce said. “This will
allow it to get back on its feet.”

Wyoming already permits off-track betting on live races. The new law legalizes wagering
on old contests.

The machines store roughly 21,000 races. The terminals don’t reveal the date of the
meets or the names of the horses before a bet is placed, but do provide information on
the animals’ performance records. That allows bettors to exercise some skill and
judgment, Joyce said.

Gamblers can wager more often on historic races than live ones. It's possible that historic
wagering could generate 15 to 20 times the money of traditional simulcast racing, Joyce
said.

“It injects a lot more revenue into the equation,” he said.

Revenue is exactly what the industry needs as it fries to rebound from a difficult period.
The state went without live racing in 2010 after the closure of Wycming Downs in
Evanston, which at the time had been the state’s only operating track.
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In 2011, Joyce began running live races at Sweetwater Downs in Rock Springs. He also
operates off-track betting sites in four Wyoming cities, including Mills,

Joyce originally applied to host four live race days this year, but plans to add more dates
now that historic wagering has become law. Next year, he's planning 16 days of races.

That's also when real estate broker Eric Nelson plans to re-open Wyoming Downs. He
announced the decision Thursday, a day after Gov. Matt Mead signed historic wagering
into law.

Joyce, who owned Wyoming Downs from 1998 to 2006, has plans for 16 live race days
in the summer of 2014, He also intends to open off-track betting sites this year, said Joan
Ramos, director of corporate operations for Wyoming Downs.

“We are hoping to see a revitalization of horse racing,” she said.
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.uhm: New law jump-starts horce racing at Wyoming Downs

¢ Steve Luhm| The SaK Lake Tribuna
rst Published Mar 09 2013 0438 pm
15| Updated Mar 09 2013 11:42 pm

View Photos {1 photos)

's been four years since Utahns who live along the Wasatch Front could jump in their car, drive less than three hours and bet on a live horse race. -
hat's about to change.

Fyoming Downs owner Eric Nelson has announced he will reopen his race track — located just across the state line in Evanston — for a 16-day
1eet in 2014.

his is huge news for Utah breeders, owners, trainers and racing fans, whose options are severely limited because of their state’s moralistic stance
u parimutuel wagering,

rankly, the Utah guys have been hanging on by their fingernails," says Fugene Joyce of Wyoming Horse Racing LLC. "Actually, I don't know how
1ey've done it. But T think — I hope - they're now going to be rewarded for sticking with it."

syee’s family owned Wyoming Downs through most of the 1990s. Toeday, he operates four off-track betting sites around the state,
ince 2011, Joyce has also conducted live four-day race meets in Rock Springs — a 31/2-hour drive from downtown Salt Lake City.

ike Nelson at Wyoming Downs, Joyee wants to expand the Rock Springs meet and possibly start racing i Casper and Cheyenne in the not-too-
istant future.

A'e hope this is the beginning of a renaissance for racing in Wyoming and Utah," Joyee said.
‘e includes Utah in his optimistie forecast because "the majority of our participants — horsemen and fans — come from there."

f course, Nelson and Joyce did not wake up one morning and suddenly decide it was a good time te invest millions of dollars in expanded
perations.

he key to their decision was provided by the Wyoming Legistature, which passed a bill in February that allows "historic race” wagering on video
rminals located at the state’s race tracks and OTB sites.

hink of it as casino horse racing.

he new law goes into effect July 1, when Wyoming will join Arkansas as the only two states offering historic race wagering.
['his will have profound effeets o the horse racing industry throughout Wyoming, Utah and surrounding states,” said Nelson.
‘ow profound?

yyee estimated the parimutuel handle from historic racing could be as much as $100 million annually, or 10 times what the four existing off-track
atting sites now generate. The new reveuus wili be pumped intc lve racing.

Ihis gives a track operator like myself the ability tc run more days and offer more purse money,” Joyee said. ”... The intent of the governor and
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gislators is to see an increase in live racing. That's what I'm dedicated to do."

tah horsemen have already noticed,

n its Facebook page, the Utah Quarter Horse Racing Association posted this response to the new legislation: "This is really a shot in the arm for
1 Intermountain owners, breeders, trainers and anyone [else] in the race indusiry. Congratulations, Wyoming."

thm @sltrib.com

Eind Jobs at Job.com www.Job.com I o
Over 1 Milion Job Listings Here. Search tho New | *®
Job.cam Now. AdCholces [
ym the Web by Taboala
110 Most Scandalous Looks at the Grammys Billionalre Tells Americans to Prepare For "Financlal Ruin”
ide Magazine A . ’ Moneynews .
igns You'll Get Cancer Julia Roberts' Malibu Mansion Is An Architect's Dream
1smax Lonny
ymments
http://m.slirib.com/sltrib/mobile3/55975045-219/racing-wyoming-joy ce-race html.csp AAP6I£ 1:{/7



L T - o =~ E N o B ~ - L I o VI T . U ¥ B e

ONAT CENTRE

REFR, LTD.
AVENUE
&9129
HONE)
MILE}

LL.Hu:":n'

B 2
oo o~

SovronoN Dwicoms &
CHEYENNE WEST PROFESS
9060 WEST CHEYENN
LAS VEGAS, NEVAD
{702} 853-5483 (TELE
(702} 853-5485 {FaCs
E-MaIL: s&ff@sdfiviaw.com

OPP

MARK A. SOLOMON, ESQ.
Nevada State Bar No. 0418
E-mail:msolomon(@sdinvlaw.com
JEFFREY P. LUSZECK

Nevada State Bar No. 9619

E-mail: jluszeck{@sdfnvlaw.com
SOLOMON DWIGGINS & FREER, LTD,
Cheyenne West Professional Centre’
9060 W. Cheyenne Avenue
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Attorneys for Distribution

Trustee of the ERIC L. NELSON
NEVADA TRUST dated May 30, 2001

Electronically Filed

06/18/2013 01:29:32 PM

Qi b b

CLERK OF THE COURT

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEYADA

ERIC L. NELSON,
Plaintiff/Counterdefendant,

V8.

LYNITA SUE NELSON, LANA MARTIN, as

Distribution Trustee of the ERIC L. NELSON
NEVADA TRUST dated May 30, 2001

Defendants/Counterclaimants.

LANA MARTIN, Distribution Trustee of the
ERIC L. NELSON NEVADA TRUST dated
May 30, 2001,

Crossclaimant,
\'%

LYNITA SUE NELSON,

Crossdefendant.

) Case No. D-411537
) Dept. No. O

)

)
JHEARING DATE: June 19, 2013
JIEARING TIME: 2:00 p.m.

M’ v v “eapret” et "o’
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OPPOSITION TO MOTION FOR PAYMENT OF FUNDS BELONGING T0 DEFENDANT PURSUANT

To COURT’S DECREE To ENSURE RECEIPT OF SAME, AND FOR IMMEDIATE PAYMENT OF

COURT APPOINTED EXPERT; AND COUNTERMOTION TO STAY PAYMENTS AND TRANSFER

PROPERTY PENDING APPEAL AND/OR RESOLUTION TO THE NEVADA SUPREME COURT FOR

AN EXTRAORDINARY WRIT
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CHEYINNE WEST PROFESSIONAL CENTRE
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D
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8060 WEST CHEYENKE AVENUE

The Distribution Trustee (“Trustee™) of the ERIC L. NELSON NEVADA TRUST dated May
30, 2001 (“ELN Trust”), by and through her Counsel of Record, Solomon Dwiggins & Freer, Ltd.,
hereby file this Opposition to Lynita Nelson’s Motion for Payment of Funds Belonging to Defendant
Pursuant to Court’s Decree to Ensure Receipt of Same, and for Immediate Payment of Court
Appointed Expert (“Motion™); and Countermotion to Stay Payments and Transfer Property Pending
Appeal and/or Resolution to the Nevada Supreme Court for An Extraordinary Writ
(“Countermotion™).

The ELN Trust adamantly opposcs the relief requested in the Motion. As this Court is
certainly aware, a Divorce Decree was issued by this Court on June 3, 2013, wherein the ELN Trust
was given 30 days from issuance to make certain payments to Mrs, Nelson, Mr, Dickerson and Mr.
Bertsch. Upon information and belief, this Court granted the ELN Trust 30 days to make such
payments in order to grant the ELN Trust sufficient time to explore its legal options, including filing
an appeal. The ELN Trust intends to file an appeal and/or an extraordinary writ regarding numerous
findings and rulings contained within the Divorce Decree which the ELN Trust contend were clearly
erroneous or contrary to law. Such rulings include, but are not limited to, the following:

1. Relying upon a layman’s characterization of “community property” in
contravention of Nevada law;

2, Holding that the ELN SSS'T is responsible to pay Mr. Nelson’s spousal
support obligation and to satisfy Mr. Nelson’s child support arrearages
obligation based upon statutes from other jurisdictions;

3. The Court substituting its judgment for the Distribution Trustee; and

4, Holding the ELN Trust liable for acts that were purportedly undertaken by
Mr. Nelson.

NRCP 62 authorizes this Court to grant a stay pending appeal and pending a motion to alter
or amend a judgment made pursuant to NRCP 59. Ms. Nelson filed a Motion to Amend or Alter
JTudgment, for Declaratory and Related Relief on June 17, 2013, which is scheduled to be heard on

Tuly 17,2013, Further, the Nevada Supreme Court will not entertain a motion to stay pending appeal

Page 2 of 4

AAPP 4800



e v e e I =

L0 TN N T Ve TN e T | T 0 N N0 N O T S S S Sy Py U e T
~] & th B W N = D D e =~y B L N e O

(707) $55-548 3 {TELSPHONE)
{702} B53-5485 (FACSIMILE)

9060 WEST CHEYENNE AVENUE
LAS VEGAS, NEVADAROL2S
E-Mall: sdfi@sdfmlaw.com

(]
o =]

SOLOMON DWIGGINS & FREER, LTD.
CHEVENNE WEST PROFESSIONAL CENTRE

or resolution of original writ proceedings unless or until the appellant is able to show that (1) “moving
first in the district court would be impracticable;” or (2) the “district court denied the motion or failed
to afford the relief requested. . .” See NRAP 8(a)(2)(A).

Here, a stay pending appeal and/or writ is appropriate because the ELN Trust will be
irreparably harmed if a stay is not granted because Ms, Nelson and/or the SN trust are seeking to
alter the contractual obligations between the ELN Trust and third-parties. For example, and by no
means of limitation, Counsel for Ms. Nelson and the LSN Trust served Mr, Nelson with a“Thirty (30)
Day Notice of Termination of Tenancy for the property located at 36111 S, Lindell Road, Suite 201,
Las Vegas, Nevada 89103 (“Lindell Property™),” which requires Mr. Nelson to vacate such property
unless he enters into a “binding lease agreement” with the LSN Trust.! The Lindell Property is where
the ELN Trust conducts business, Counsel for Ms, Nelson and the LSN Trust has also notified Joan
B. Ramos that the Note dated February 23, 2010, and corresponding Deed of Trust with Assignment
of Rents has been assigned and transferred to the LSN Trust.” Further, Counsel for Ms, Nelson and
the LSN Trust has already contacted some or all of the tenants of Banone, LL.C, advising said tenants
to make all future reﬁtal payments to her, and to possibly enter into a new lease with the LSN Trust.”

Additionally, the ELN Trust is concerned that if it 1s forced to make an immediate payment
to Ms., Nelson, Mr. Dickerson and Mr. Bertsch it will be unable to recoup said funds if successful on
appeal. Specifically, with respect to Ms. Nelson, from 2009 through March 2012 she has received
and spent over $2,000,000.00 in income alone* and as she admitted in the Motion, she “has

approximately $19,000.00 in her bank accounts, but has outstanding credit card balances of

: See Correspondence from Robert P. Dickerson, Esq. dated June 10, 2013, and Third
Day Notice of Termination of Tenancy, attached hereto as Exhibit 1,

2 See Correspondence from Katherine L. Provost, Esq, dated June 7, 2013, to Joan

Ramos, attached hereto as Exhibit 2,

3 See Correspondence from Katherine L. Provost, Esq. Dated June 7, 2013, to the
current tenant of 2209 Farmouth Circle, attached hereto as Exhibit 3.

] See Notice of Filing Income and Expense Reports for Lynita Nelson for the Period

of January 1, 2011 through March 31, 2013, previously filed on May 1, 2012.
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SoLoMON DWIGAMNS & FREER. LTD. .
CHEYERE WEST PROFESSIONAL CENTRE

8060 WEST CHEYENNE AVENLUE

$53,674.00, current household bills of $3,130.00. > See Motion at 6:10-13.

For these reasons, the ELN Trust respectfully requests that the Divorce Decree be stayed in
its entirety pending appeal and/or filing an extraordinary writ. Alternatively, if this Court is not
inclined to stay the relicf granted in the Divorce Decree, the ELN Trust respectfully requests that this
Court deny Ms. Nelson’s Motion for immediate payment so that the ELN Trust will have thirty days,
which is what the Court initially granted to make such payments, to file an appeal or extraordinary
wril,

DATED this 18" day of June, 2013,

SOLOMON DWIGGINS & FREER, LTD.

e 04

\SDLOMON ESQ.
Nev State Bar No. 0418
JEFFREY P, LUSZECK
Nevada State Bar No. 9619
Cheyenne West Professional Centre’
9060 West Cheyenne Avenue
Las Vegas, Nevada 89129
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ERIC L. NELSON

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Plaintiff(s),

_VS_

LYNITA SUE NELSON

Defendani(s).

CASE NO. D411537
DEPT.NO. O

FAMILY COURT

MOTION/OPPOSITION FEE
INFORMATION SHEET

(NRS 19.0312)

Party Filing Motion/Opposition:

Plaintiff/Petitioner

Defendant/Respondent

MOTION FOR OPPOSITION TO MOTION FOR PAYMENT OF FUNDS
BELONGING TO THE DEFENDANT PURSUANT TO COURT'S DECREE TO

ENSURE RECEIPT OF SAME, AND FOR IMMEDIATE PAYMENT OF COURT

APPOINTED EXPERT; AND COUNTERMOTION TO STAY PAYMENTS AND

TRANSFER PROPERTY PENDING APPEAL AND/OR RESOLUTION TO THE

NEVADA SUPREME COURT FOR AN EXTRAORDINARY WRIT

Motions and
Oppositions to Motions
filed after entry of a final
order pursuant to NRS
125, 125B or 125C are
subject to the Re-open
filing fee of $25.00,
unless specifically
excluded. (NRS 19.0312)

NOTICE:

if it is determined that a moftion or
opposition is fited without payment
of the appropriate fee, the matter
may be taken off the Court's
calendar or may remain uhdecided
until payment is made.

Mark correct answer with an “X.”
1. No final Decree or Custody Order has been

entered.

YES

NO

2. This document is filed solely {o adjust the amount of
support for a child. No other request is made.

YES

NO

3. This motion is made for reconsideration or a new
trial and is filed within 10 days of the Judge’s Order
If YES, provide file date of Order:

YES

NO

If you answered YES to any of the questions above,
you are not subject to the $25 fee.

Motion/Opposition XIS

IS NOT subject to $25 filing fee
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Dated this 17" of June, 20013
Y (£ Lus el

Printed Name of Preparer

Motion-Opposition Fee,doc/1/30/05
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THE DICKERSON LAW GROUP

ROBERT P. DICKERSGN A PROFESSIONAL CORFORATION OF ATTGRNEYS AT LAMW AREA CODE (702)
KATHERINE L. PROVOST HILLS CENTER NORTH BUSINESS PARK TELEPHONE 388-8604G
REMNA G, HUGHES 1745 VILLAGE CENTER CIRCLE FAX 388.0210
JOSEF KARACSONYE 1.AS VEGAS, NEVADA 59134

June 10, 2013

Eric L. Nelson VIA ITAND DELIVERY
Nelson & Associstes

ELN Nevada Trust, u/a/d 5/30/01

Dynasty Development Group, LLC

Dynasty Development Management, LLC

and All Others In Possession

3611 S. Lindell Road, Suite 201

Las Vegas, Nevada 89103

Re; 30611 S, LINDELL ROAD, SUITE 201

As you are aware, effective June 3, 2013, the property located at 3611 S. Lindell
Road, Suite 201 has come under new ownership, The new property owner is the LSN
Nevada Trust wa/d 5/30/01, Along with this letter you have been served with a Thirty
(30) Day Notice of Termination of Tenancy for the property located at 3611 S. Lindell
Road, Suite 201, Las Vegas, Nevada 89103,

As you are the former owner/occupant of this property, Ms, Clark Nelson desires
to provide you the ability to remain in your current location contingent upon your
entering into a binding lease agreement with the LSN Nevada Trust w/a/d 5/30/01 and
timely payment of rent. If you are interested in remaining in your current location,
please have your attorney(s) contact Robert P. Dickerson at this office to discuss this
matter upon your receipt of this letter. Alternately, please vacate the premises within
thirty (30) days.

Sincerely,
Robert P, Dickerson

cc: Lynita Clark Nelson
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THIRTY (30) DAY NOTICE OF TERMINATION OF TENANCY

'To; Eric L. Nelson; Nelson & Associates; ELN Nevada Trust u/a/d/ 5/30/01:
Dynasty Development Group, LLC; Dynasty Development Management,
LLC
3611 S. Lindell Road, Suite 201
Las Vegas, Nevada 89103

TO: AND ALL OTHERS IN POSSESSION
YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED that your tenancy of the above-described

Premises is being terminated by the Landlord effective thirty (30) days from receipt of
this Notice, to wit: on or about July 10, 2013,

You are hereby warned, therefore, to vacate the Premises on or before the date
above-referenced or a Complaint for Unlawful Detainer will be filed, which shall seek
Attorneys’ Fees and Costs. If a Court determines that you are guilty of unlawful
detainer, it may issuc a summary order for your removal or an order providing for your
nonadmittance, directing the sheriff ox constable to remove you within twenty-four (24)
hours after receipt. of the order.

DATED this 10" day of June, 2013,

ByMW

ROBERT P. DICKERSON, ESQ.
Attorney for Landlord

Landlord’s Name and Address:

LSN Nevada Trust u/a/d 5/30/01
¢/o Robert P, Dickerson, Esq.
THE DICKERSON LAW GROUP
1745 Village Center Circle

Las Vegas, NV 89134
702-388-8600

Page 1 of 2
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PROOF OF SERVICE:

[ ]

[ ]

[ ]

On , 2013, I delivered a copy of the foregoing Notice to the
tenant personally, in the presence of a witness.

On , 2013, I handed the Notice to a person of suitable age and
discretion at the place of residence/business, and I mailed a copy to the tenant
at the tenant’s place of residence on , 200__, having obtaincd a
Certificate of Mailing,

On , 2013, T posted the Notice in a conspicuous place on the
door of the tenant’s residence, and I mailed a copy to the tenant at the
tenant’s place of residence on , 2013, having obtained a
Certificate of Mailing,

AM PPM

Signature of server Date  Time

AM PM
Signature of witness Date  Time

SUBSCRIBEDD) AND SWORN to before ine
this day of 2013,

Notary Public in and for said
County and State

Acknowledgment of receipt of Notice only. Signing does NOT inhibit Legal Rights

AM PM
Signature of Tenant Date Time

Page 2 of 2
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THE DICKERSON LAW GROUP

ROBERT P, DICKERSQON A FROGESSIONAL CORPORATION OF ATTORNEYS AT LAW . AREA CODE. {702}
KATHERINE L. PROVOST © HILLS CENTER NORTH BUSINESS PARK TELEPHONE 328-36({
REMA G, HUGHES [745 VILLAGE CENTER CIRCLE PAX 3880210
JOSEF KARACSONYI LAS VEGAS, NEVADA 89154
June 7, 2013
Joan Ramos YIA CERTIFIED AND
436 BEuropa Way U.S. MAIL

Las Vegas, Nevada 89145

Re: NOTIFICATION OF ASSIGNMENT OF NOTE
AND DEED OF TRUST
Dear Ms. Ramos:

You are hereby notified that on fune 3, 2013 thc Note dated February 23,2010
between Joan B Ramos, Trustee of the Joan B Ramos Trust wa/d October 4, 2004 and
Banone, LLC and the corresponding Deed of Trust With Assignment of Rents has been
assigned and transferred to the LSN Nevada Trust u/a/d 5/30/01.

You are now to send all payments due under the terms of the Note to the
following address:

LSN Nevada Trust

¢/o The Dickerson Law Group
1745 Village Center Circle
Las Vegas, Nevada 89134

You are further notified that the August 25, 2011 Memorandum of
Understanding entered into between you and Eric L. Nelson, on behalf of Banone, LLC
is hereby null and void as it relates to your obligation te make thé payments called for.
by the Note to the current holder of the Note. Therefore, on or before July 1, 2013, you
must malke a payment of $520.00 to satisfy your obligation to the current Note holder,

You may also direct all inquiries and questions concerning this assignment to
Lynita Clark Nelson at (702) 569-3696.

Sincerely,

THE DICKERSON LAW GROUP

e

Attorneys for LSN Nevada Trust
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5
{

6 EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT

7 FAMILY DIVISION

8 CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

9

10 | ERIC L. NELSON,

)
)
11 Plaintiff, ) CASE NO, D~09-411537-D
12 fvs. ; DEPT. O
]3I LYNITA NELSON, ; {SEALED)
14 Defendant. ;
15 !
16 BEFCRE THE HCONORABLE FRANK P, SULLIVAN
DISTRICT COURT JUDGE
17
18 TRANSCRIPT RE: MOTION
19
20 WEDNESDAY, JUNE 1%, 2013
21
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D-09-411537-00 NELSCN 06192013 TRANSCRIPT (SEALED)
VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC (520) 303-7356
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APPEARANCES ;

The
For

The
For

The

For

Plaintiff:
the Plaintiff:

Defendant:

the Defendant:

Trustee:

the ELN Trust:

NOT PRESENT

RHONDA FORSBERG, ESQ.
64 N. Pecos Rd., #700
Henderson, Nevada 89074
(702) 990-6448

LYNITA NELSON

ROBERT DICKERSON, ESQ,
KATHERINE PROVOST, ESQ.
1745 Village Ctr. Cir,
Las Vegas, Nevada 89134
(702) 388-8600

ROCHELLE McGOWAN

JOAN RAMOS

JEFFREY LUSZECK, ESQ.
9060 W, Cheyenne Ave.
Las Vegas, Nevada 89129
(702) B853-5483

D-05-411537-D NELSON 08/19/2013 TRANSCRIFT (SEALED)
VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC (520) 303-7356
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LAS VEGAS, NEVADA WEDNESDAY, JUNE 19, 2013

PROCEEDINGS

{THE PROCEEDINGS BEGAN AT 14:37:51)

THE COURT: This is the time set in the matter of
Eric Nelson and Lynita Nelson, case number D-411537. Can we

have everybody's appearance for the record? We'll start with

our Trust.

MR. LUSZECK: Jeff Luszeck, counsel for distribution
Trustee ¢of the ELN Trust.

THE COURT: Thank you.

M5. FORSERG: Good afternocoon, Your Honor. Rhonda
Forsberqg, 9557 on behalf of Eric Nelson.

MR. DICKERSON: Your Honor, Bob Dickerson, bar
number 945 and Katherine Provest, bar number 8414 on behalf of
Lynita Nelson who is present.

“ THE COURT: 1It's good to see you again, Ms. Lynita.
I'm sorry Mr. Eric's not here. 1It's always a pleasure to see
both of the parties. Everybedy can sit down and get
comfortable. This is on Mr. Dickersen's motion on behalf of
Ms. Nelson for motion for payment of funds pursuant to this
Court's divorce and decree that was entered by this Court and
requested immediate payment.

The Court had ordered payment within 30 days of the

D-09-411337-D NELSON 06/19/2013 TRANSCRIPT (SEALED)
VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC (520) 303-7356
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decree and they request immediate payment concerns that the
money 1f they don't get it, they may never sese it.

I've also have read ELN Trust and an opposition to
the motion for payment of funds pursuant to the Court's
decree. And basically a countermotion to stay payments and
transfer of pos -- and transfer of other property ordered by
this Court pending appeal or resolution to the Nevada Supreme

Court for an extraordinary wit -- writ I guess I should say.

I have read the paperwork. This is your motion, Mr.

Dickerson. I'll give you a chance to highlight or identify
anything that you think you want me spend special attention
to.

MS. FCORSERG: Your Honor, one thing before he goes.
I just want to make sure —-- I wasn't sure 1f the Court got my
joinder to her opposition and then the countermotion for
disqualification.

THE COURT: No, did -- did you get a copy of that?

MR, DICKERSQON: Yes, we did.

THE COURT: CQOkay.

MR. DICKERSON: It was -- arrived today by email, so

THE COURT: Okay. I didn't have a chance --
MR. DICKERSCN: +~- it really hasn't --

THE CQURT: -+ to review that.

D-09-411537-D NELSON 06/19/2013 TRANSCRIPT (SEALED)
VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC (520) 203-7356
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MR. DICKERSON: =~ finally got served on us.

THE CCURT: ©OCkay. I haven't had a chance to review
that. So what did you file on the Jjoinder?

MS, FORSERG: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. FORSERG: We did a joinder and request for
disqualification for non -- non-lawyer employee, Your Honor.
I actually brought extra copies just in case since it was --

THE COURT: Okay. Let me see, Are you ready to
address? What do you want --

MR, DICKERSON: Yes, we have it. And I --

THE COURT: Okay. Want to give me a copy and if
everybody is okay to address, we address. If you need more
time, I'1ll give you time fto --

MR. DICKERSON: I prefer we have an affidavit.

MS. FORSERG: And we can always move it to another
hearing that you have schedule too, so --

THE COURT: Okay. So have you guys —-

MR, DICKERSON: &And if I may.

THE COURT: -- all made sure it's for everybody?

MR. DICKERSON: This is the affidavit in response to
that.

M5. FORSERG: I have read that alsc, Your Honor.

THE CQURT: Have itz

D-09-411537-D NELSON 06/19/2013 TRANSCRIPT (SEALED)
VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC (520) 303-7356
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MS&, FORSERG: Yeah.

THE COURT: Counsel, dc you have a position on that
as your -- in this one and not -—

MR. LUSZECK: Well, it deoesn't involve —-

THE COURT: Ckay.

MS. FORSERG: Yeah,.

MR. LUSZECK: ~-- the Trust, Your Honor.

THE CQOURT: All right. I want to make sure
everybody is comfortable on that and we'll try to see if we
can get everything resolved today. Mr. Dickerson.

MR, DICKERSCON: Yes, Judge. &nd -~ and I don't know
1f you want to take time tc review that first, but dealing
with our motion --

THE COQURT: Ckay.

MR. DICKERSON: =-- our motion is rather simple.

It's set out to specifically in the motion what our request is
and the reascns for it. I believe in light of your specific
findings of fact and conclusions of law with respect to the --

the likelihood that Eric Nelson will not honor any of these

Court's crders that —-- that it's imperative and -- and I —-
it's very imperative. I -- I was kind of surprised to see
that the -- that the injuncticn was -- was dissclved

immediately at that point in time.

I don't know where the funds are. I don't know,

0-09-411537-D NELSON 06/18/2013 TRANSCRIPT {SEALED)
VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC (520) 303-7356
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I've been attempting to get a held of Dave Stephens (ph). He

2]l has not returned my callsg, I don't know if the trust has

3| taken the entire 1.8 million plus all the interest that has
4 |l been accrued on that over the last year, year and a half that
3 it's -- it's been there.

6 THE COURT: My intent was when I said dissolve it

7 was to order immediate distribution within the 30 days I think
B -— at least maybe it wasn't as c¢lear as I thought. And I said
9 we'll distribute A, B, €, D, E and then the remaining 500,000

IO} to Mr. Nelson. That was my intent.

11 MR. DICKERSON: Well --
12 THE CQURT: Not -- that's —-
13 MR. DICKER3SON: -- my -— my hope was is that that

14 | was the intent ~--

15 THE CQURT: Yeah,
16 MR. DICKERSON: -- and my hope was that it weould
17 | remain with -- with Mr, Stephens and that Mr. Stephens would

18 || cut the checks that Your Heonor had ordered. I don't know why
19 )it -- it would have necessitated a -- a 30 day period. And
20 f we're asking that Ycur Honor order that those monies be

21 || released today. Ms. Nelson has no monies available to her.

22 || As you see, we've set it -- T believe she has about 19,000,
23 THE COURT: 19,000 in --
24 " MR, DICKERSON: She has significant debt.

D-09-411637-D NELSON 061972013 TRANSCRIPT (SEALED)
VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC (520) 303-7356
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1 THE COURT:; -- credit card bills --

2 MR. DICKERSON: I think it's alsc --

3 “ THE COURT: -- about 53, 000.

4 MR, DICKERSON: -- ironic and it -- it goes to tell

5 || you what we've been dealing with in this case. You know that
6| this -- the case was filed in January of 2009. The parties

7 | have been going through divorce problems for years prior to

8| that. They separated in June of 2008. &nd I think the -- the
9| record reflects that approximately since 2008 at most Lynita
10 || Nelson has received about $30,000 from Eric Nelson,

il He left her this account roughly $2,000,000 that she
12 | was strictly had to rely upon that. Receives no income from
13 || any other source, had to rely on those monies and that money
14y is down to 19,000 which they -- they throw a line in their

15 [ opposition pointing out that she's gone through the

16| 2,000,000, That $2,000,000 was what she used for the

17 | purposes of her living expenses which Your Honor has already

18 I determined. It's ai least $240,000 a year and she use those

19 || money for the purposes of -- of her litigation expenses,
20 And I think it's ironic seeing that, Your Honor she
21 is here and she's not —-- she doesn't have the money available

22 || for her to go on wvacation. And while Eric Nelson is not here,
23 || because he's spending two and a half weeks in Thailand with at

24 | least three of his children.

D-09-411837-D NELSON 06/19/2013 TRANSCRIPT (SEALED)
VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC (520) 303-7356
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So in fairness, I mean, something needs to be done
to get money to this woman. She's waited a -- a considerable
amount. of tilme, And I will simply ask that you enter the
order that we've requested. I -- I prepared a proposed order
for your consideration for that purpese and it's simply
directing it at bavid ~— Dave Stephens still retains those
monies, that he is to release 51,032,742 to Lynita and 835,258
to Larry Bertsch and the -- the balance he can release to Eric
Nelson pursuant to —-- pursuant to your decree of divorce. And
as I mentioned, T do have a proposed order if Your Honor's
inclined to sign it.

THE COURT: Okay. Counsel?

MR, LUSZECK: Your Honor, I don't have much to add
other than what's in our opposition in -- in countermotion.

THE COURT: You're concerned if I gave the money and
paid it and then he was successful on getting me --

MR. LUSZECK: Correct.

THE COURT:; -- overruled that the money would be
gone, they wouldn't get it. Is that kind of --

MR, LUSZECK:; Yeah, I mean we're --

TEE COURT: ~-- a little bit --

MR, LUSZECK: -- we're essentially concerned that
the ELN Trust is going to suffer irreferahle harm if the

payment has to be made and the property i1s fTransferred over

D-09-411537-D NELSON 08/19/2013 TRANSCRIPT (SEALED)
VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC (520) 303-7356
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from the ELN Trust to the LSN Trust. We are going to file an

2l appeal with the Nevada Supreme Court. We would ask that any
31 type of transfer or payments be stay pending our appeal.
4 I think -- the argument that's been made essentially

5y it's akin to a motion for reconsideration. The allegations
6 || that we've heard today and that are in t{he moticn for payment

7| are the same arguments that we've heard before in a trial.

8 || There's no new evidence, no new facts, no new law. We think

9||the 30 days is appropriate to give us the -- the Trust ample
l 10| time to -- to appeal the decision which it's going to do.

11 MR. DICKERSCON: Well -- well, there are new facts.

I2 || There's the facts that you found and you found that she is

13  entitled to that money and it's time that she be paid that

14 || money and it's time that she be able to enjoy life like Eric
15 | Nelson has been doing since they separated in June of 2008,

16| It's ~- it's the only fair way to do it. They -- they ask for
17 a -~ Your Honor to issue -- to stay the proceedings.
ISFJEssentially, they're asking her -- you to allow this woman to
19 [ be out on the street and not have any money available to her
20 || while they decide to pursue the appeal.

21 I'11 bring to their attention right now. I mean, if
22 | they do file a notice of appeal, they obviously need to file
23 | their motion for stay and they're going to have o post a

24 || supersedeas bond for the amount of the judgment that you have

D-09-411637-D NELSON 06/19/2013 TRANSCRIPT (SEALED)
VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC (520) 303-7356
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found in her favor which is well in excess I belileve of six,
57,000,000 that they would have to do.

And our intent at that peint in time Judge is we
will be filing a Honeycutt mction seeking to have you pursue
that finding that you made that you find that the trusts are
invalid and that they -- and that the trusts are not
effective. And -- and that would be cur intent as we file in
a Honeycutt motion so the supreme court can consider that
issue also,.

THE CCOURT: And I did look into on anticipation the
supersedeas bond that the judgment and the Court would add
interest on that, I believe five and a quarter percent
interest, I think. Plus I would add two years interest on
that, because the supreme court takes a couple years. Plusg
costs I think could be added. They can be anywhere from 50 to
a hundred thousand., So I did lcok at some of those things
that that bond could be kind of costly, but I do respect your
right for the Trust to do as they deem appropriate.

My issue is do you know if that money's been -- have
you -- would your client -- do you know if that money's been
distributed? Because my intent was for Mr. Stephens to give
that out to her and to give back the trust, but I could have
bheen clearer when I logked at it. I thought it was ~- when

you're writing anvthing, it's not clearer than when you look

D-09-411537-D NELSON 06/19/2013 TRANSCRIPT (SEALED)
VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC (520) 303-7356
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at it. When I looked at -- so I probably should have been
very specific, but that's why I try to say this money, this
meney and then the remaining to Mr, Nelson, because I figured
they may have some concerns that the money could dissipate.

MR, LUSZECK: Yes. 1It's my understanding the money
has been transferred from the trust account to Lthe ELN Trust.

MR. DICKERSON: S0 they have already --

MR. LUSZECK: Do you know if Mr. Nelson == do you
know 1if Mr, Nelson's got his 500 grand? Do you know if they
distributed it and just transferred to the trust?

MR. LUSZECK: That I don't know, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR, DICKERSON: So what they've already done is they
have already taken benefits of your judgment and now they're
telling after we take the benefits of our judgment we're going
to file an appeal. And they can't do that, And they -- they
very well have waived their rights to appeal,

MR. LUSZECK:; I =-- I deon't think that's true, Your
Honor. I believe the order -- the divorce decree has been
complied with and I don't think we've waived any rights to
appeal.

THE COURT: Okay. Yeah. We'll deal with that when
it comes, My concern on this case is I thought that there

could be possible appeals on that. I felt that -- give people
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some time. I did feel that I would try to keep the trust in
place in order to provide the protecticn from creditors, so I
didn't want them to lose the intent as I found the intent of
their trust which was to protect from creditors on both sides.
They didn't want to open up Ms. Lynita either to any attacks
by creditcrs as to her thing through Eric or otherwise. 8o I
did feel on that,

I'1l deal with those issues about setting aside
appropriately with Honeycuti or whatever comes down on that,
but I'm very -- the reason I asked you if those monies have
been transferred, because if they left the money with Mr,
Stephens I wouldn't been as concerned saying they left it
there, fine, they're doing it on the up and up. They had
concerns on that and they just want to protect that.

But I'l1l be honest with you. My findings on that
and your client's got a lot of issues from this Court felt on
credibility. I'm not the only judge that founds those issues.
Issues about dissipating estates and the bankruptcy estate
that I was concerned that this stuff could disappear. So that
was my intent.

If that money is stayed with Mr. Stephens in his
trust, then I'd have been more comfortable saying hey, the
money ain't going anywhere. Mr. Stephens -- Atftorney Stephens

has it. He's an hcnorable, Money being transferred to Nelson
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Trust -— to his trust, I'm worried about that, because I think

they could get distributions on that. Other ways to get that
money out, transfer it to family members as he done to the
other property on that. As I made my findings, getting out
and had the estate thrown. So I'm troubled by that and the
fact that they transferred to the trust. I'm very concerned
now.

As far as that going, I'm inclined to grant theilr
motion and make that money payable within 24 hours. And as
far as that, I'm also would consider if you -- as far as if
you want me to -- my concern is for -- for the trust for their
appeal purposes, their concern that wait a minute, that money
is gone. We give it to Ms. Nelson now, Now you kind of
screwed us all because we can't get it back. But the issue is
other property. They have two. There's other ways we can do
and ought to make -- there's some collateral there if it
disappeared over the next two years.

But I think =-- there's other ways I could protect
that if it's appropriate, because there is sizable real estate
that could be pledged as collateral if necessary. So I think
that there is a remedy. I don't think she's going to go and
get rid of all the property in her trust during the pending of
the appeal on that, so I'm not so sure that you couldn't get

that money back.
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I think there's collateral there that could be
assigned by this Court to cover the million dollars and scome
change paid to Ms., Nelson so that if you were successful on

appeal, they would have collateral. I think I could probably

do a -- bond if I needed to to protect that. There's a couple
options, I think I could do that, that would solve the trust
concern that if they're successful on appeal, that they'd be
able to get the money and property back, 5So did you want to
address that specifically, counsel? And I'1ll have Mr.
Dickerson respond or 1t doesn't —-

MR. LUSZECK: I mean, [ discovery --

THE COURT: -- because I'm inclined to order that
money released immediately, so I want to give you a chance --

MR, DICKERSON: I -- I don't believe though that
this is the appropriate time to do this --

THE COURT; Well --

MR. DICKERSON: -- because they have yet to file the
appeal,

THE COQURT: Appeal and the supersedeas bonds and --

MR, LUSZECK: Right.

THE COURT: -- everything and address it at that
time.

MR. LUSZECK: Well --

THE COURT: But -=-
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1 MR. LUSZECK: But --

2 THE COURT: -- let me give you a chance,

3 MR. LUSZECK: -~ before we go on -—— well --

4 THE COURT: Yeah.

5 MR. LUSZECK: -- I don't know that we fechnically

6| can file an appeal right now, because you filed NRCP 55 -~ 59

74 motion which may preclude us from doing that. So we're going
81 to have to seek a writ,

9 THE COURT: Okay.

10 MR, LUSZECK: And first up, before we can seek a

Il fwrit is seeking a stay from this Court. So procedurally, we
12 | had no other choice but to seek this relief from this Court
13 || before we file a writ.

14 | THE COURT: Okay.

15 MR. DICKERSON: You have to file a writ and a writ
16 || would be an improper method when you have a final judgment.
17§ There -~ there is a relief by an appeal. And as Your Honor
18 || pointed out, there is sufficient security with respect to the
19 || other preoperty. It's nect -- they ——- they have -- they've gotl
20 || to transfer that property. That our next motion that comes.
21 {| They're going to refuse to do that.

22 MR, LUSZECK: Well -~

23 MR. DICKERSONM: So I would ask that Your Honor enter

24 | the order today that we filed an order in open court that the
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record reflect that it's being served on both counsel at this
time and that Lana Martin as the distribution trustee of the
ELN Trust that she be directed to distribute those monies in
the form of an apprepriate cashier's check made payable to
both Ms. Nelson and to Larry Bertsch and that Your Honor set
this for a status hearing on Mcnday with ordering that Lana
Martin be here if she has refused to pay these fees so that
you can hold her in contempt at that point in time if she
refuses to honor Court's crder.

MR, LU3ZECK: Your Honor, Mr. Nelson's out of the
country and he has to approve any distributions of the
distribution --

MR, DICKERSON: No.

MR. LUSZECK: -~ trustee meets.

MR. DICKERSON: No,

MR. LUSZECK: TFfurther --

MS. PROVOST: No.

MR. DICKERSON: That's not the argument you made --

THE COURT: Wait. Wait., Wait. DLet's =~ I'm
talking now.

MR. LUSZECK: Further --

THE COURT: That's not according to what they said,
And now maybe that might take a thing that —-- that he --

MR. LUSZECK: Okay.
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THE COURT: -- came up with sald the distribution

trustee approved everything, she had to have prove it and nct
him. He could reguest the --

MR. LUSZECK: Well, no.

THE COURT: ~-- distribution --

MR, LUSZECK: I agree —-

THE CQURT: -- but she could approve --

MR. LUSZECK: ~-- but I believe the investment

trustee has veto power. Secondly, it's my understanding Lana
Martin has resigned as distribution trustee for health reasons

and Nola Harbor (ph) is the current distribution trustee.

MS. PROVOST: ©h, the sister.

MR, DICKXERSON; Then they need —-- then they need his
sister,

MR, LUSZECK: BAnd I don't 1f she has access to the
accounts or not. I -- I just don't know.

THE COURT: Falr enough., Fair enough.

MR, LUSZECK: I understand what you're saying and I
understand the concern, but I think having that done within 24
hours I don't know if that's feasible.

THE CQURT: Okay. Did you have -- did you have a
proposed order, Mr, Dickerson? Let me see 1t. Here's what
I'm going to do. TI'll give you chance on that. I'm going to

grant the motion for the immediate release of the funds. I'm
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going tc give you up to the release by Friday, 5:00 o'clock.
That gives you two days. That way you can try to get
extraordinary relief if necessary. 24 hours is kind of tough,
gives you a chance a talk. I -~ I believe Thailand has
telephones and emails in Thailand I believe they have, so I
imagine that it -- Mr. Nelscon can be contacted.

I have serious concerns with that money being
transferred into the trust that that meney would dissipate.
And that's my concerns on that. If it's still with Mr.
Stephens' account, I would have frozen that account, you know,
if I needed to on that, but I'm concerned cn that.

So I am going to grant the moticn, I'm denying the
motion for stay. . I'll give you a chance to -- now you can
pursue your extraordinary relief if the supreme court has
deemed appropriate. And I will address any issues at that
time at the supersedeas bonds or otherwise, whatever needs to
be done.

This case has been going on for a long time. I
respect both parties., I am sericusly concerned. Mr, Nelson
has bheen controlling the estate essentially sgince day one.
Now he's losing control of the estate. And no disrespect to
him, T expect a lct of problems trying to get payment.

That's why I did lump sums with my findings, because 1 can see

this going on til the world ended to be honest. And T do
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respect reople's rights to -—- to do all their legal basis and
I do respect that.

I am going to grant the motion., It's hereby ordered
that as follows., Good cause being shown. Well, I guess Mr,
Stephens got to change there where it says ordered Dave
Stephens to immediately upon present pay Lynita or attorneys.
That's =~ I think we have to modify thalt order to simply put
it —

MR. DICKERSON: But the next -- but the next order
covers that —-

THE COURT: The next covers it, does it?

MR. DICKERSON: -- that it's already distributed.

THE COURT: Okay. I'l1l get it going. It's further
ordered that if said 1.568 million or any portions therecf has
already been transferred to Mr, Nelson to the trust. The ELN
Trust 1s to pay Ms., Nelson the order of this Court. I haven't
added up those numbers, but I think that includes the lump sum
spousal and the child support. I'll add, again, add it up. I
haven't added it up, but I'll go by counsel's --

MR, DICKERSON: It said out of the motion, Your
Honor.

THE COURT: OQkay. Of the $1,032,742 and shall Mr.
Bertsch who has been waiting a long time for his fees. 35,280

will be that within 48 hours. So let's delineate that within
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1] 48 hours. The presentation of this order. I'm going to sign
2| it today and get it dated. What's the date today?

3 THE CLERK: The 19th,

4 THE COURT: The 19th. I will initial. Let's get

51 these filed and get them served, get taken care of now. That
6 | would give them two business days to get it done. I'm denying
71 the motion for stay as I think this case -- let the supreme

8 | court intervene and do what they need to do as they deemn
9|lappropriate. This case has been ongoing since 2009 January.
10 | We've had numerous, numerous mctions, numerous, numerous

11 | hearings. And I respect the party's right tec litigate, but I
12 | think it's time that 1t needs to be resolved and it needs to
13 | be off of my desk up to the supreme court and let them handle
14 {] it as they deem appropriate.

15 I do not believe that the release of those funds put
16 | you at any risk from the trust, because I do believe that Ms.
17  Nelson has significant resources that will -- could be akle to
18 | be collateral if —— if you need that. And so I don't think

190 I've identified any wrongdoing on Ms. Nelson that she would

20 || try to get rid of funds and not pay any funds if the sgsuprene
21 || court was indeed overturned it and said she was not entitled
22 || to said funds. B&nd therefore, that's the basis for the order
23l of this Court. And then we have another -- did you want to

24 | deal with this motion we have pending as to --
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MR. DICKERSON: If you care to -~ if you want to

2| review that, yes, and to determine whether you feel you need
3 anything more. I -- we pointed out that the -- the motion is
4 || not supported by any affidavit of any person having personal
5| knowledge. It's simply Ms. Forsberg's reliance upon --
6 MS. FORSERG: That's not really true, because --
7 MR, DICKERSON: -- on her --
8 MS, FORSERG: -- I do know Jeanette (ph) —--
9 THE, COURT: Okay. Why don't --
10 MS. FORSERG: -- weorked for Jimmerson,
11 THE COURT: Why don't we take a 10 minute recess,
12 } get that order all for you and let me go in the back and read
13 it —--
14 MS. FORSERG: That's fine.
15 THE COURT: -- come back until then when we got
16 | evervbody here.
17 MS. FORSERG: Yes, please.
18 MR. DICKERSON: Okay.
19 MS. FORSERG: Thank you.
20 THE COURT: Counsel, you can hang around or not,
21| You can leave,
22 MR. LUSZECK: ©Qkay. Thank you, Your Honor.
23 THE COQURT: Thanks, counsel.
24 MR. DICKERSON: Your Honor, may stick around so that
|
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1 we can for the record to reflect that he has been served with

2l the —- with the order?

3 THE COURT: Okay. She has to -~ you got to file it
4| first.

5 MR. DICKERSON: And then was Your Honor inclined to
6 || set this matter for a brief hearing in -- on Monday?

7 THE COURT: Absolutely. If they want to get there
8| so we get it resolved, because -- and if 1t's not distributed,

9 we can have the Nola Harbor or whoever needs to be here for

10 {| the trust, because Mr. Nelson will still be out do you know 1if

11 || he's -~

12 MS, FORSERG: He will be.

13 MR, LUSZECK: I bkelleve so.

14 THE COURT: 8o when we put on a status check because

15 |} the payment of the order, that way we'll see 1f there's

16 Il anything pending on that Just to try to get it resclved for

17 § vou quys. We'll put on the status check as the Monday

18 | afternoon as to payment under the order and that will give you
19 time on that while we're locking at that and I1'll go in the

20 || back and read these two and come back in --

21 MS. FORSERG: Thank you, Your Honor.
22 THE COURT: -- about 10 minutes.

23 MR. DICKERSCN: 8o your order --

24 THE COURT: Whatever time works --
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Harbor or -- or whoever the distribution trustee is --

of the ELN Trust.

Monday?

THE COURT: I will look at one now and see what
works counsel, Just look at my calendar and I'll -- whatever
time I'm —-

check with her too, bhecause I don't know her schedule --

work it out if they need to be here at —-

MR, DICKERSON: You order is --
THE COQURT: -- for counsel, I'm here all the time.

MR. DICKERSON: Your order then is to recognize Nola

THE COURT: Or whoever was the distribution trustee

MR. DICKERSON: Here on Menday. And what time on

THE CLEREK: I'm still looking.

MR. LUSZECK: Your Honor, and I'm going to have to

THE COQURT: 2:307

MR. LUSZECK: -- is, sgo --

THE COURT: If you need a different time --

MR. LUSZECK: -- obviously there may be issues.
THE COURT: -- just call counsel and we can —-
MR, LUSZECK: Okay.

TEE COURT: =-- do -- call my law clerk and we can

MR. DICKERSON: And -- and --

THE CQURT: ~—- 10:00 or 12:00. We'll work something
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out.

MR. DICKERSON: BAnd just one other comment and
again, it's -- it's -- well -- because I don't know if Jeff is
going to leave.

MS. FORSERG: He's not. He's walting for the crder.

THE COURT: We'll have him hang around until he gets
the order, so we ——

MR, DICKERSON: But —- but just one other comment
for the record is --

THE CQURT: Let's keep it on the record while we got
just so we --

MR, DICKERSON: This --

THE CQURT; -- makeé sure there's --

MR, DICKERSON: This matter is here today based upon
the fact that we filed a motion for ex parte relief on the day
that Your Honor's findings of fact, conclusions of law and
decree of divorce were entered. That day we filed an ex parte
and unfortunately it was denied. We anticipated this would
happen. And I -- I just respectfully suggest that in the
future when you're dealing with an individual such as Eric
Nelscon, you have to know --

Ms. FORSERG: Your Honor —-

MR, DICKERSON: ~-- that this is going to happen.

MS. FORSERG: =~~~ we have to gbject to this.
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MR, DICKERSON: This is absolutely going to happen

MS. FORSERG: We object to his statement.

MR. DICKERSON: -- and the likelihood we will get
these monies by Friday, I -- I -- 1t -- it will be a surprise.

THE COURT: Yeah, well, I did consider when I got
the ex parte, I don't do anything ex parte, because it gives
the appearance that it's being done. I did nhave concerns, but
I felt that Mr. -- the funds were in the trust fund with the
attorney, so I wasn't teoo worried. Should -- and I maybe
should have clarified my order better, so that one's on me.
But we'll ~- we'll get that money —--

MR, DICKERSON: Thank vou, Your Honor.

THE COURT: -- unless the supreme court says
otherwise. Thanks, everybody.

MR, DICKERSON: And Your Honor, and for the record
reflect that I'm providing your -- I'1l have your --

MR. LUSZECK: Thank you.

MR, DICKERSON: -- I'll have your marshal provide a
copy to both --

THE COURT: The reccrd reflect that the order's been
signed by the Court today approving the motion for the
immediate disposal -- dispersal to Ms., Nelson within 48 hours.

It will be by 5:00 o'clock on close of business c¢n Friday,
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1| 5:00 o'clock. Copies been served to counsel Mr. Luszeck on
2 I behalf of the ELN Trust and to Ms, Forsberg on behalf of Eric

J || Nelson. Thanks, everybecdy,

4 MR, LUSZECK: OQkay. Thank you.

5 MS. FORSERG: Thank you.

6 THE COURT: It's good fo see you, Mr. Luszeck.

7 THEZ MARSHAL: The court's in recess.

3 {(Off record)

9 THE MARSHAL: Have a seat, folks.

10 THE COURT: This is recalling the matter of Eric

11 || Nelson and Lynita Nelson, case number 411537. This Court took
12 8 a brief recess so I could read the motion filed on behalf of
13 | Mr. EBric Nelson, the joinder in opposition. We've already

14 | kind of addressed that at the previous, but this was the

15 | motion as far as —-- what would we call that, I guess to —-

16 | trying to ~- trying teo think what I would call it.

17 MS. FORSERG; Disgualifying?

18 THE COURT: Disgualify a --

19 MS. FORSERG: Sorry.

20 THE CQURT: -- non-attorney, a non-attorney from the

21 || case on it, I have read that and I did read the polnts and
22 | authorities and the countermotion, I alsc read the affidavit
23 || submitted by Jeanette Lacker (ph). Ms. Forsberg, is there

24 || anything you want to add in to the argument or anything?
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MS. FORSERG: Your Honor, only one. They're both
not huge law firms. Jimmerson's wasn't huge, so she had to be
involved in thirngs. And Dickerson’'s isn't huge, because of
course most family firms are not, His is -- not everyone's,
but that's the only thing, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Mr. Dickerson, anything else?

MR. DICKERSON: Nothing further, Your Honcr.

TEE COURT: This Court has reviewed that. I did
read the affidavit submitted by Jeanette Lacker. She
indicated that she had been employed for the Jimmerson Law
Firm from I think September 2008 through 2012 was when this
case would have been involved. T think the case officially
was filed with 2009 if I remember. I don't remember how long
Mr. Jimmerson was involved in the case tc be honest and when
he got out, I'm not sure when he got out ¢of the case,

Indicated ocur main concerned was did she acquire
confidential information. That was my concern in this case.
I do note that both firms are relatively small firms.
According to the affidavit, she indicated that during the
employment she's been employed since April 1st, 2013, went to
Dickerson Law Firm. She did disclose that she had been
working for Jimmerson prior. She had ancther involvement with
Michelle Roberts after she left Jimmerson in February 2012

through April 2013 and came to work for the Dickerson Law Firm
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on April lst.

So he said tﬁat prior to receiving an offer of
employment with -- with Attorney Dickerson's firm she did
disclose -- list any cases that she -- if that remained in
controversy between the Dickerson Firm and any of her former
employers including the Jimmerscn Firm. She said she was --
she's not aware of when Jimmerson first got retained to the
action,

In the matter she said during her employment with
the Jimmerson Firm she performed very limited work. She did
basically her -- she would review files, Her reviewed the
files, indicated that the paralegal assigned was Shahana
Polselli and not her. And the legal —— legal assistant
assigned te the Nelson case was Jessica Dennis (ph).

As she indicated, she did not attend any
confidential meetings with Eric Nelson and Mr. Jimmerson when
Mr. Jimmerson represented Eric. She also indicated she did
quote, I did not participate in any meeting with Mr. Jimmerson
or Mr. Nelson or any client for that matter, that such
meetings were attended to by the paralegal assigned to that
case and not the legal assistance. And the -- and the
paralegal in that case had been Shahana FPolselli,

She indicated that the only document she worked on

was a Plaintiff's first supplemental, NRCP 16,1 disclosure of
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1|l doccuments, witnesses and documents. She indicated that would
2 [ have been initially prepared by Shahana Polselli and annctated
30 by Mr. Jimmerson. And that would have been delivered teo her

44 to insert anncotations so that she ¢an have it then signed

SH finally by Mr., Jimmerson and then complete their certificate

6 of service and mailing process.

7 She gaid if there's any other documents that she

8 || would have worked cn would have been certificates of service

9| prepared by other parties. She indicated that quote, 1

10 || ocbtained no confidential information by Mr. Nelson or this

11 | matter due to my empl -- my employer as cne of Mr. Jimmerson's
12 | legal assistants. She said her interactions consisted at the
13 f office of saying hello, goodbye 1f she saw Mr. Nelson come

14 || into the coffice or answer the telephone. $She said she quote,
15 || never had any telephonic conference or conversation with Mr.
16 || Nelson or any associate with Mr. Nelscn.

17 Do you feel, counsel, that the -- her putting

18 | annotations in to the 16.1 disclosure witnesses and documents
19 | would give her access to any confidential information? I'm

20 || not sure what that would have been entailed to be honest, but
2 -~

22 MS. FORSERG: We would think that -- that it would,
231|Your Honor, but we are not sure that's our concern is, because

24 || you're geing through all of it. You're interacting with all
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1§ of this stuff when you're putting together documents for a

2 | witness list and everything like that. So that's where --

3 || where her -- his concern is.

4 THE CQURT: Okay., Well, based on the -- the

5l affidavit and the issue I -- this Court -- based on the

6 || information provided at this time, it dces -- did not say that

7§ she acquired any confidential information abecut the former

8 client. If you got some more information specific, I'll be

9 glad teo look at it. I'm not sure if this citing this 16.1,

10 | dis -- disclosure of witnesses and documents means that she

11 | reviewed all the documents or have seen those documents. So I
12 | do not feel at this time that she -- the non-lawyer employees
13 | acquired any confidential information as te Mr., Nelson.

14 I -- I also notice that they did have some screening
15 || procedures in place according to the affidavit, that during

16 || her employment with Mr. Dickerson she wag advised of course

17 | she cannot work in any capacity on the Nelson case. And the
18 | long, she also informed that she would be screened from any

19 | access to any of the work product existing in that Nelson case
20 | and was provided with a copy of the Leibowitz (ph)

21 || determination ascertained akout the screening of non-lawyers
22 || or she would risk termination and that she has fully complied
23 | with those requirements.

24 I do know that these are both small -- really small
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law firms. The issue i1s number one, I do not see any evidence
that she did acquire any confidential about a former client
and that number two, it looks like they had a screening
process that would screen her from access to this case to
provide any information on this case in order to screen her
from any contact regarding this case or any input to make sure
that there was not any unfairness to Mr. Nelson to using the
information acquired.

And for all those reasons, I am denving the motion
at this time. And again, if you have more specifics, I'd be
glad to look at it after something more specific. But based
on the information provided and the affidavit and opposition
too, I do not believe there's any evidence that she acquired
any confidential information and furthermore that Mr.
Dickerson had a sufficient screening in there to safeguard any
-- Mr. Nelson from any disclosure. Do you want Lo prepare the
order on that, Mr. Dickerson? Or do ycu want --

MR, DICKERSON: I --

THE COURT: Do you want an order on that cor --

MR, DICRERSON: Can we certify the minutes as the
Court's order.

THE COURT: Okay with that or do you want to -~

MS. FORSERG: Well, as long as the minutes say that

we can look at more specifi¢s. That's the only -- my only
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concern would be —-

THE CQURT: Okay. If you got something that's more

gpecific -~

would be glad to look at it,

the minutes do include that portion.
MR, DICKERSON: Thank you.
MS. FORSERG:; Thank you, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Thank you.

THE MARSHAL: Thank you, guys.

| an order of this Court. Certify that.

M8, FORSERG: Thank you, Your Honor.

your envelcpe downstairs,
MR. DICKERSCN: Thank you, Your Honor.
MS. PROVOST: Thank you, Your Hongcr.
THE CQURT: Thank you.
MS. FORSERG: Thank you,

(PROCEEDINGS CCNCLUDED AT 155;17:13)

* ok k& ok Kk Kk

M3, FORSERG: -- to make sure that they're --

THE COURT: ~- you think that their affidavit, I

MS. FCRSERG: As long as it includes that,

okay with that, Your Honor, but we just want to make sure that

TEE COURT: We'll have the minute order suffice as

THE COURT: We'll certify that and we'll leave it 1in

we're

D-09-411537-D NELSON 06/19/2013 TRANSCRIPT (SEALED)
VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC {520) 303-7358

33

AAPP 4845



fam—y

10
1
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

ATTEST: I do hereby certify that I have truly and

correctly transcribed the digital proceedings in the

above-entitled case to the best of my ability.

YT
Qb Al

/s/ Bdrian N. Medrano
Adrian N. Medrano
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THE DICKERSON LAW GROUP
ROBERT P. DICKERSON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No, 000945
KATHERINE L. PROVOST, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 008414

JOSEF M. KARACSONYI, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 10634

1745 Village Center Circle

Las Vegas, Nevada 89134
Telephone: (702) 388-8600
Facsimile: (702) 388-0210

Email: info@dickersonlawgroup.com
Attorneys for LYNITA SUE NELSON

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

ERIC L. NELSON,

Plaintiff/Counterdefendant,
V.

LYNITA SUE NELSON,

Defendant/Counterclaimant.

ERIC L. NELSON NEVADA TRUST
dated May 30, 2001, and LSN NEVADA
TRUST dated May 30, 2001,

Necessary Parties (joined in this
action pursuant to Stipulation and
Order entered on August 9, 2011)

R T I I i N T T I N g

CASE NO. D-09-411537-D

DEPT NO. “O”
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LANA MARTIN, as Distribution Trustee of
the ERIC L. NELSON NEVADA TRUST
dated May 30, 2001,

Necessary Party (joined in this action
pursuant to Stipulation and Order
entered on August 9, 2011)/ Purported
Counterclaimant and Crossclaimant,

NELSON,

Purported Cross-Defendant and
Counterdefendant,

LYNITA SUE NELSON,

Counterclaimant, Cross-Claimant,
and/or Third Party Plaintiff,

V.

ERIC L. NELSON, individually and as the
Investment Trustee of the ERIC L. NELSON
NEVADA TRUST dated May 30, 2001; the )
ERIC L. NELSON NEVADA TRUST dated )
May 30, 2001; LANA MARTIN, individually,)
and as the current and/or former Distribution )
Trustee of the ERIC L. NELSON NEVADA )
TRUST dated May 30, 2001, and as the )
former Distribution Trustee of the LSN )
NEVADA TRUST dated May 30, 2001); )
NOLA HARBER, individually, and as the )
)
)
)
)

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
;
LYNITA SUE NELSON and ERIC )
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

current and/or former Distribution Trustee

of the ERIC L. NELSON NEVADA TRUST )
dated May 30, 2001, and as the current
and/or former Distribution Trustee of the
LSN NEVADA TRUST dated May 30, 2001;
ROCHELLE McGOWAN, individually;

)
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JOAN B. RAMOS, individually; and DOES I
through X,

Counterdefendant, and/or
Cross-Defendants, and/or
Third Party Defendants.

g WU g T T S e

ORDER FOR PAYMENT OF FUNDS PURSUANT TO JUNE 3, 2013
DECREE OF DIVORCE

THE COURT, having considered the Motion for Payment of Funds Belonging
to Defendant Pursuant to Court’s Decree to Ensure Receipt of Same, and for
Immediate Payment of Court Appointed Expert (the “Motion™) submitted by
Defendant, LYNITA NELSON (“Lynita”), by and through her attorneys, ROBERT P.
DICKERSON, ESQ., KATHERINE L. PROVOST, ESQ. and JOSEF M.
KARACSONYI, ESQ., of THE DICKERSON LAW GROUP, the Opposition to
Motion submitted by the Eric L. Nelson Nevada Trust and the Joinder to Opposition
submitted by Eric L. Nelson, and having reviewed and analyzed the pleadings and
papers on file herein, including the Decree of Divorce entered by the Court on June 3,
2013, and good cause appearing therefore,

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that David Stephens, Esq., shall immediately, upon
presentation of this Order, pay to Lynita or her attomeys the sum of $1,032,742.00
from the $1,568,000.00 held Mr. Stephens’ trust account pursuant to the Court’s prior

orders, and shall also pay from said funds the sum of $35,258.00 to Larry Bertsch.
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IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that if said $1,568,000.00, or any portion thereof,
has already been transferred to Plaintiff, ERIC NELSON (“Eric”), and/or the ELN
Trust, the ELN Trust and Eric shall pay to Lynita or her attorneys the sum of
$1,032,742.00, and shall pay to Larry Bertsch the sum of $35,258.00, within twenty-
four (24) hours of presentation of this Order upon Eric’s and the ELN Trust’s counsel

of record in this matter.

DATED this 14 day of June, 2015.

Submitted by:
THE DICKERSON LAW GROUP

By

ROBERT P. DICKERSON, ESQ,
Nevada Bar No, 000945
KATHERINE L. PROVOST, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 008414

JOSEF M. KARACSONYI, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 010634

1745 Village Center Circle

Las Vegas, Nevada 89134
Attorneys for Defendant
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THE DICKERSON LAW GROUP
ROBERT P. DICKERSON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 000945
KATHERINE L. PROVOST, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 008414

1745 Village Center Circle

Las Vegas, Nevada 89134
Telephone: (702) 388-8600
Facsimile: (702) 388-0210

Email: info@dickersonlawgroup.com
Attorneys for LYNITA S NELSON

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION

CLARIKC COUNTY, NEVADA

ERIC L. NELSON,

Plaintiff/Counterdefendant,
v,

LYNITA SUE NELSON, CASE NO., D-09-411537-D
DEPT NO. “O”

Defendant/Counterclaimant.

ERIC 1. NELSON NEVADA TRUST
dated May 30, 2001, and LSN NEVADA
TRUST dated May 30, 2001,

%

)

)

)

)
Necessary Parties (joined in this 2
action pursuant to Stipulation and ;
Order entered on August 9, 2011) ;
i

)

)

)

LANA MARTIN, as Distribution Trustee of
the ERIC L. NELSON NEVADA TRUST
dated May 30, 2001,

Necessary Party (jloined in this action
pursuant to Stipulation and Order
entered on August 9, 2011)/ Purported
Counterclaimant and Crossclaimant,

V.

LYNITA SUE NELSON and ERIC
NELSON,

Rty

Purported Cross-Defendant and
Counterdefendant,

S
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LYNITA SUE NELSON,

Counterclaimant, Cross-Claimant,
and/or Third Party Plaintiff,

V.

ERIC L. NELSON, individually and as the
Investment Trustee of the ERIC L. NELSON
NEVADA TRUST dated May 30, 2001; the
ERIC L. NELSON NEVADA TRUST dated
May 30, 2001; LANA MARTIN, individually,
and as the current and/or former Distribution
Trustee of the ERIC L. NELSON NEVADA
TRUST dated May 30, 2001, and as the
former Distribution Trustee of the LSN
NEVADA TRUST dated May 30, 2001);

Counterdefendant, and/or
Cross-Defendants, and/or
Third Party Defendants,

REPLY TO
OPPOSITION TO DEFENDANT'S MOTION TO AMEND OR ALTER
JUDGMENT, FOR DECLARATORY AND REILATED RELIEF AND JOINDER
TO OPPOSITION

COMES NOW Defendant, LYNITA SUE NELSON (“Lynita”™), by and through
her attorneys, ROBERT P. DICKERSON, ESQ., and KATHERINE L. PROVOST,
ESQ., of THE DICKERSON LAW GROUP, and hereby files this Reply to the
Opposition to Defendant’s Motion to Amend or Alter Judgment, for Declaratory and

Related Relief filed by the unnamed,’ Distribution Trustee of the ERIC L. NELSON

' This Court should note that the ELN Trust is now failing to name the person authorized to
bring and pursue legal action on behalf of the trust, As this Court should recall, Lana Martin, was the
named party as Distribution Trustee of the ELN Trust, authorized to defend and maintain the District
Court proceedings on behalf of the ELN Trust. Yet, at the June 19, 2013 court proceeding, counsel for
the ELN Trust represented that Nola Harber was now the current Distribution Trustee, and
representative of the Trust. It is well-settled that “a party to a litigation is either a natural or an artificial
person.” Causgy v. Carpenters So. Ney. Vacation Trust, 95 Nev. 609, 610, 600 P.2d 244, 245 (1979).
Accordingly, “it is the trustee, or trustees, rather than the trust itself that is entitled to bring suit.” Id.
At no time during the divorce action, or ever since, has any motion been brought pursuant to NRCP
25(c) to substitute Nola Harber in the place of Lana Martin, as Distribution Trustee for the ELN Trust,
and the individual authorized to bring or maintain suit on behalf of the ELN Trust. Without the
provisions of NRCP 25(c), allowing for the continued prosecution of an action against an original party

Page 2 of 9
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NEVADA TRUST dated May 30,(“ELN Trust Opposition”) and Joinder to Opposition
filed by Plaintiff, Eric Nelson,

This Reply is made and based upon the records, papers and pleadings on file
herein, the Points and Authorities, and the argument of counsel presented at the

hearing on the matter.

Dated this i Y}k day of July, 2013.

THE DICKERSON LAW GROUP

B
yROBERT P. DICKERSON, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 000945
KATHERINE L. PROVOST, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No, 008414
1745 Village Center Circle
Las Vegas,%\levada 89134
Attorney for Defendant

POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

By its very request for this Court to stay a decision on Lynita’s pending Motion,
the ELN Trust seeks to utilize threats of writ proceedings to the Nevada Supreme
Court from allowing this Court to exercise its judicially granted authority to decide
matters associated with this divorce action. Fortunately, Lynita believes this Court is
far past being threatened into such actions. There is no basis for this Court to
postpone issuing a ruling on the pending Motion as neither the ELN Trust’s writ
proceedings nor the emergency stay which temporarily alleviates the ELN Trust of its

obligation to transfer to Lynita the sum of $1,032,742.00 and to transfer to Larry

even after transfer of such party's interest in the litigation, a party could transfer its interests to avoid
compliance with a court's orders, In theory, Eric could have the Distribution Trustee of the ELN Trust
changed continuously to avoid compliance with the District Court's Decree. NRCP 25(c) prevents a
party from having to litigate against such a moving target, and only allows for the substitution of a
successor in interest upon motion, There has never been any motion to substitute Ms. Harber in the
place of Ms. Martin. Accordingly, Lynita submits that Ms. Harber does not have standing to maintain
the filed Opposition.

Page3 of 9
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Bertsch the sum of $35,258.00 from the $1,568,000.00 previously enjoined and held
Mr. Stephens’ trust account pursuant to the Court’s prior orders, restricts this Court
from issuing a decision on the pending motion. In fact, the ELN Trust submitted a
second request for emergency stay and second Petition for Writ of Prohibition in an
attempt to further stay this Court’s June 3, 2013 Decree. In response, the Supreme
Court issued an order suggesting that such extraordinary intervention is not warranted
or proper. Exhibit A. Thus, at this time, there is no basis for this Court not to
proceed with the instant Motion.

1. Banone Properties

The ELN Trust suggests that Lynita would somehow receive a windfall if this
Court altered the June 3, 2013 Decree to remedy the illusory award it granted to her
when it awarded her Banone, LLC at a value of $1,184,236. In support of this theory
the ELN Trust indicates that it holds a Deed of Trust and Assignment of Rents for the
property sold in violation of the Joint Preliminary Injunction during this action to the
McGowan's (the parent’s of Eric’s employee, Rochelle McGowan) and that this could
easily be transferred to Lynita to satisfy this property sale. Setting aside the ELN
Trust’s arguments with respect to whether this Court has the authority to Order the
transfer of assets from the ELN Trust to the LSN Trust (as this argument is now one
for the Nevada Supreme Court to determine, this Court having already found that it
has the necessary jurisdiction and authority to enter such an order), it was not until
Lynita pointed out the discrepancy that exists with respect to the Banone, LLC
properties did the offer to transfer this Deed of Trust and Assignment of Rents to
Lynita first appear. While Lynita would not be opposed to this transfer, provided the
aforementioned Deed of Trust and Assignment of Rents requires actual monthly
payments to be made towards the outstanding balance owed under the Deed (as this
information is not believed to have been previously disclosed to the Court or Mr.
Bertsch, Lynita and her counsel are operating without this knowledge), as this Court

is well aware of the issues that already exist with Lynita’s ability to collect the monies
Page 4 of 9
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which are owed to her under this Court’s Decree of Divorce, caution should be the rule
of the day in considering whether the ELN Trust’s offer is little more than lip service
with no legitimate expectation that a transfer ordered by this Court would ever result
in compensation to Lynita. An alternate suggestion to compensate Lynita for the
$88,166 value of the Farmouth Circle property by way of transferring to Lynita
Banone-AZ property of comparable value.

The second argument of the ELN Trust is that Lynita has been compensated for
the sale of the Roseridge Avenue property as the proceceds from the sale of this property
were placed in the gencral operating account and utilized to maintain and manage
properties, many of which were transferred to the LSN Trust. This is quite the
argument to make when the ELN Trust well knows that (1) neither Eric nor the ELN
Trust has transferred any property to Lynita since the entry of the June 3, 2013 Decree
and has instead attempted to circumvent this Court’s orders through improper efforts
to obtain writ relief from the Nevada Supreme Court and (2) even if this were true, this
would not fix the problem of the illusory award of $63,000 in Banone, LLC assets (the
stated value of the Roseridge property sold to Eric’s employee, Keith Little, during the
pendency of this action, in violation of the Joint Preliminary Injunction) which was
awarded to Lynita but which Eric’s action and direction has removed from her grasp.

This Court has ruled that Lynita is entitled to receive assets equal to $1,184,236
as valued by Larry Bertsch at the time of the divorce. Lynita is asking this Court to fix
the illusory award which resulted from Eric’s actions by ordering the transfer of
additional assets to her to compensate her for the properties which Eric sold during the
pendency of this action. Asthe ELN Trust’s emergency stay has temporarily taken the
$1,568,000.00 in cash out of play for this purpose, this Court should look to other

assets to compensate Lynita. Again, the most simple approach to resolve this inequity
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would be to order the transfer to Lynita of certain Banone-AZ properties identified by
Larry Bertsch as having comparable value to those which Eric removed from play.”
The final, and most outrageous argument, advanced by the ELN Trust against
the requested relief is that property values in Las Vegas have increased and therefore
Lynita has already been over compensated for the Banone, LLC assets sold by Eric. If
this argument were to hold any weight than all of the assets at issue in this divorce
would need to be re-valued as of current date, Clearly this Court is not going to re-
value property that was disposed of in the Decree, post-trial. Though, if this Court
were so inclined it should note that CNN Money.com has compared the increase of
average property values across the country and has noted that while property values in
Las Vegas (Banone, LLC) have increased an average of 11% growth over the past 12
months, the Phoenix, AZ area (Banone-AZ) has recorded the largest increase of average
property values at 47% growth in the same time period. Exhibit B. Given this
knowledge does the ELN Trust and Eric truly desire to have all of the assets re-valued

today? One would think not.

2. Wryoming Downs

The ELN Trust clearly fails to understand the basic tenants of community
property law in Nevada. Dynasty Development Management, LLC was created by Eric
Nelson during the pendency of this divorce action. Similarly, contrary to this Court’s
express order, the current interest in Wyoming Downs was purchased and obtained
during the pendency of this divorce action. NRS 123.220 defines community property
and confirms that all property “acquired after marriage by either husband or wife, or
both, is community property” unless otherwise provided by (1) An agreement in
writing between the spouses, or, (2) A decree of separate maintenance tssued by a court

of competent jurisdiction. No such agreements or decrees exist with regard to

2 The Court should be careful in awarding Banone-AZ property to Lynita to ensure that Eric has
not encumbered any such property since the time of trial.
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Wyoming Downs. Therefore, this asset is presumed to be community property and the
burden is on the ELN Trust to prove otherwise.

This Court’s Decree makes clear that it was making no decision at the time of
trial as to Wyoming Downs because “this Court is without sufficient information
regarding the details of the repurchase of the property, the value of the property and
the encumbrances on the property to make a determination as to the disposition of the
property”. The problem with this ruling is that it leaves an item of community
property unadjudicated and the Decree open to interpretation —is it a final judgment?
an interlocutory order? To ensure that the Decree is a final Order this Court should
issue a ruling on Wyoming Downs.

This Court has never denied that Lynita has a community interest in Wyoming
Downs, or that Wyoming Downs is community property. Similarly, Lynita has never
acquiesced her interest in Wyoming Downs by any action taken during the course of
this divorce. This Court must resolve this issue at the earliest possible opportunity so
as to ensure there is closure in the divorce action. Lynita’s Motion has set forth two
ways for this Court to do so - (1) award each of the parties’ a 50% interest in this asset;
or (2) re-open discovery as to this asset and hold future proceedings concerning this
asset, leading to a final adjudication over the same. The ELN Trust’s Opposition
apparently raises an additional way of resolving this issue, which is to confirm that
Wyoming Downs is 100% ELN Trust property. However, if that is so, then this Court
will still need to determine a value for Wyoming Downs, and will also need to revisit
its equalization of the trusts and adjust its overall disposition of the assets to ensure
the intent of the parties to equalize the trusts is maintained.

3. Mississippi Properties

Lynita’s request for additional specificity concerning the Mississippi properties
is unopposed and must be granted.

Lynita’s Mississippi counsel has provided the correction Warranty Deeds

attached as Exhibit B to Lynita’s Motion. Such Deeds have been prepared by and
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represent to be that which is required to ensure Lynita can obtain clear title to the
Mississippi properties awarded to her by this Court’s June 3, 2013 Decree. Cleatly,
Mississippi counsel, whose focus is Mississippi real property law, are in the best
position to know what is required to ensure clear title transfers to Lynita. Neither this
Court, nor the ELN Trust, nor Eric (whose efforts to transfer title in Mississippi have
already resulted in compromised title and a lawsuit over the property awarded to
Lynita by the Decree) are able to opine in any educated way that there is any basis for
the Deeds not to be signed as requested.

The ELN Trust (and Eric) have had years to hire and consult with whatever
experts they desire to leamn about Mississippi real property law or any other area of
practice. In fact, Eric has had Mississippi counsel for the duration of these divorce
proceedings (Harold Duke, Esq.) and asked this Court to recognize an alleged
outstanding bill owed to his Mississippi counsel in excess of $400,000. Any request
at this juncture for additional time to now determine if the Deeds prepared by Lynita’s
Mississippi counsel are the most efficient way to clear title is nothing more than one
further effort to prevent Lynita from receiving any of the benefits afforded to her by

the Decree and should be denied.

4. Attorneys Fees

As this Court is well aware, the ELN Trust and Eric have worked in conjoined
efforts to ensure that Lynita is delayed if not dispossessed of all of the benefits awarded
to her by this Court’s June 3, 2012 Decree. Lynita’s Motion has been brought in good
faith and the relief requested by Lynita it is warranted and justified under the
circumstances. Nothing Lynita has done for the years this case has been pending has

unnecessarily increased the costs of litigation. The same holds true now. As Lynita
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will be the prevailing party on all of the issues raised by her Motion, fees should be
awarded.
DATED this Mﬁay of July, 2013.
Respectfully submitted,
THE DICKERSON LAW GROUP

By
ROBERT P. RSON, )
Nevada Bar No. 000945
KATHERINE L. PROVOST, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 008414
1745 Village Center Circle
Las Vegas, Nevada 89134
Attorneys for Defendant
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SUPREME GOURT
OF
NEVADA

(@) 1947 «fiEe

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

NOLA HARBER, AS DISTRIBUTION No. 63545
TRUSTEE OF THE ERIC L. NELSON

NEVADA TRUST DATED MAY 30, 2001,

Petitioner, F E L E D
vs. JUL 10 201
THE EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT :
COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA, CLETRASW%M
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF

DEPUTY CLERK

CLARK; AND THE HONORABLE
FRANK P. SULLIVAN, DISTRICT
JUDGE,

Respondents,

and

ERIC 1.. NELSON AND LYNITA S.
NELSON, INDIVIDUALLY: AND LSN
NEVADA TRUST DATED MAY 30, 2001,
Real Parties in Interest.

ORDER DIRECTING SUPPLEMENT TO PETITION
AND DIRECTING ANSWER

This is an original petition for a writ of ‘.pr-oh_-ibition challenging
provisions of a district cou':rt divorce d‘ecreé that direct the transfer of -
certain assets from the Eric L. Nelson Nevada Trust. Petitioner has also -
filed an emergency motion for a stay of those provisions of the divorce
decree.

It is petitioner’s burden to demonstrate that this court’s
extraordinary intervention is warranted. Pan v. Eighth Judicial Dist. .
Court, 120 Nev, 222, 228, 88 P.3d 840, 844 (2004). Writ relief is generally
not available when the petitioner has a plain, speedy, and adequate
remedy at law. See NRS 34.330; Intl Game Tech., Inc. v. Second Judicial -
Dist. Court, 124 Nev. 193, 197, 179 P.3d 556, 558 (2008). The right to
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appeal is generally considered an adequate legal remedy that precludes
extraordinary relief. Int’l Game Tech., 124 Nev. at 197, 179 P.3d at 558.
A divorce decree is appealable as a final judgment when it finally resolves
all issues pertaining to the dissolution of the parties’ marriage, including
the division of property. See Lee v. GNLV Corp., 116 Nev, 424, 426, 996
P.2d 416, 417 (2000) (recognizing that a final judgment is one that
disposes of all issues presented and leaves nothing for the court's future
constderation, except for certain post-judgment issues).

Petitioner contends that extraordinary relief is appropriate
because an adequately legal remedy is . not available. Specifically,
petitioner asserts that an appeal cannot immediately be taken from the
divorce decree because of a pending motion in the distriet court to alter or
amend the judgment under NRCP 59. Further, petitioner acknowledges
that the divorce decree is not a final judgment because the district court
has not disposed of all of' the assets, including the disposition of the
Wyoming Downs property, which also appears to be the subject of the
NRCP 59 motion. Nevertheless, petitioner has not established why an
appeal from the final divorce decree, once it is entered, is not an adequate
remedy in the ordinary course of the law. It seems that petitioner is
essentially seeking to prevent enforcement of Whail:" appears to be an
interlocutory order. See Gojack v. Second Judicial Dist. Court, 95 Nev.
443, 596 P.2d 237 (1979)-(holding that the trial court lacked authority to
enter a final divorce decree without contemporaneously disposing of the
parties’ community property); but see Smith v. Smith, 100 Nev. 610, 691
P.2d 428 (1984) (recognizing an exception to the rule prohibiting

bifurcated divorce proceedings where the parties so stipulate). This court
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discourages such piecemeal review. See Valley Bank of Nev. v. Ginsburg,
110 Nev. 440, 444, 874 P.2d 729, 733 (1994).

Accordingly, petitioner shall have until Monday, dJuly 15,
2013, at 4 p.m. to file and serve a supplement to the petition
demonstrating why extraordinary relief is warranted at this time, given
that the issues can ultimately be raised on appeal from a final judgment.
The real parties in interest shall have 11 days after the supplement is
served to file and serve an answer to the petition, as supplemented. We
defer ruling on petitioner’s motion for a stay at this time.

All documents submitted in response to this order shall be
filed and served personally, electronically, or by facsimile transmission
with the clerk of this court in Carson City. See NRAP 2; NRAP
25(a)(2)(B)(i); NRAP 25(a)(4). For purposes of this petition, we suspend

| application of NRAP 25(a)(2)(B)(ii)-(iv) and NRAP 26(b)(1)(B).

It is so ORDERED.

Parragun‘re

C’WW ;

Cherry

cc:  Hon. Frank P. Sullivan, District Judge
Solomon Dwiggins & Freer
Radford J. Smith, Chtd.
Dickerson Law Group
Eighth District Court Clerk
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Phoenix leads price rise charge
Third quarter numbers are in for nearly 150 markets. How
does your home town stack up?

Phoenix real estate recorded a 55.2 percent increase in
house prices over the past 12 months, according to the latest
data from the National Association of Realtors. NAR's third-
quarter median existing single-family home price survey,
covering changes in 147 metropolitan statistical areas,
revealed that the average home nationwide appreciated by
14.7 percent since last year. Homes in only six metro areas
lost value, Trailing just behind Phoenix were two Florida
cities: Orlando, where prices grew 44.8 percent, and the
Cape Coral-Fort Myers area, where they rose 42.5 percent.
Only in six areas did homes jose value led by Elmira New
York, where they fell 5.4 percent. Topeka was down 1.3 percent and Youngstown Ohio inched down 1.0
percent. Some formerly white-hot markets slowed a bit. San Diego recorded a 6.3 percent gain after
growing nearly 30 percent between 2003 and 2004, Las Vegas, which soared 48.7 percent during that
same period, grew only 10.5 percent over the latest 12 months. Regionally, the South recorded the
slimmest gain, at 7.7 percent, while the West had the highest - 18.8 percent. The Midwest (13.1 percent)
trailed the Northeast (13.2 percent) slightly for second place.

< datatextrow1 { font: normal 12px Arial; } .datatextrow2 { font. normal 12px Arial; text-

align:center; } .datatextrow3 { font; bold 12px Arial; text-align:right; } .datatextrow3red { font: bold 12px
Arial; text-align:right; color:red; } .datatextrow4 { font: normal 12px Arial; text-align:right; } .datatexthead
{ font: bold 14px/24px Arial; text-align: center; background-color: #003368; color:

#FFFFFEF; } .datatextheadsort { font: bold 14px/24px Arial; text-align: center; background-color:
#336699; color: #FFFFFF; } Results are ranked by growth. Click column headings to re-sort

Metropolitan Area State Growth %@1

Phoenix-Mesa-Scotisdale AZ 47.0% $243,400
Cape Coral-Fort Myers FL 45.2% $266,800
Palm Bay-Melbourne-Titusville FL 40.0% $204,000
Orlando FL 36.5% $232,200
Sarasota-Bradenton-Venice FL 34.3% $367,800
Reno-Sparks NV 32.1% $357,400
Miami-Fort Lauderdale-Miami Beach FL 31.7% $371,600
Deltona-Daytona Beach-Ormond Beach FL 31.2% $194,000
Durham NC 30.8% $198,500

http://cnnmoney printthis.clickability . com/pt/cpt?expire=&title=Historicthome+pricetinca o pp Y8853



Historic home price increases

Tucson

Hagerstown-Martinsburg

Honoluiu
Washington-Ariington-Alexandria
Atlantic City

Riverside-San Bernardino-Ontario
Spokane

Davenport-Moline-Rock Island
Allentown-Bethlehem-Easton

Virginia Beach-Norfolk-Newport News
Pensacola-Ferry Pass-Brent
Tampa-St.Petersburg-Clearwater
Edison
Sacramento—-Arden-Arcade--Roseville
Ocala

New York-Wayne-White Plains
Seattle-Tacoma-Bellevue

Dover

Rockford

Cumberland

New York-Northern New Jersey-Long
Island

Albuguerque
Eugene-Springfield
Baltimore-Towson

Danville
Porttand-Vancouver-Beaverton
Reading

Boise City-Nampa

New Haven-Milford

Syracuse

Richmond

Kankakee-Bradley
Montgomery

Hartford-West Hartford-East Hartford
Kingston

Salem

Trenton-Ewing

AZ 30.0%
MDAV 28.7%
HI 28.1%
DC/VA/MDAMWY 26.2%
NJ 25.7%
CA 24.8%
WA 24.6%
AL 24.0%
PA/NJ 23.9%
VA/NC 23.8%
FL 23.3%
FL 23.3%
NJ 22.8%
CA 22.5%
FL 20.5%
NY/NJ 20.0%
WA 19.9%
DE 19.4%
IL 18.6%
MD/VWV 18.6%
NY/NJ/PA 18.3%
NM - 18.1%
OR 18.0%
MD 17.5%
IL 16.9%
ORMWVA 16.6%
PA 16.5%
D 15.8%
cT 15.0%
NY 14.8%
VA 14.7%
iL 14.6%
AL 14.0%
cT 13.9%
NY 13.8%
OR 13.7%
NJ 13.5%

$228,500
$206,000
$577,800
$420,200
$244,900
$367,600
$158,600
$133,800
$249,100
$192,000
$163,600
$195,000
$394,100
$377,400
$135,300
$506,800
$310,300
$176,300
$122,700
$88,600

$452,700

$171,700
$192,400
$264,700
$73,400

$238,000
$140,400
$161,800
$283,800
$108,700
$198,400
$132,300
$133,300
$257,700
$250,700
$172,000
$267,700

Page2 of 5
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El Paso

Colordo Springs

Madison

Nassau-Suffolk

Farmington

Green Bay

San Francisco-Oakland-Fremont
Decatur

Peoria

Shreveport-Bossier City
Philadelphia-Camden-Wiimington
Albany-Schenectady-Troy
Springfield

Amarillo

Las Vegas-Paradise

New Orleans-Metairie-Kenner
Jackson

Columbia

Mobile

Corpus Christi

Binghamton

Champaign-Urbana
Newark-Union
Milwaukee-Waukesha-West Allis
Tallahassee

Gulfport-Biloxi

Knoxville

Minneapolis-St. Paul-Bloomington
South Bend-Mishawaka
Portland-South Portland-Biddeford
Memphis

l.os Angeles-Long Beach-Santa Ana
Nashville-Davidson--Murfreesboro
San Diego-Carlshad-San Marcos
Oklahoma City
Chicago-Naperville-Joliet

Saint Louis

Jacksonville

PA/NJ/DE/MD

NY
MA
>
NV

LA
MS
SC

AL

X
NY

[
NJ/PA
W

FL
MS
TN
MN/WI
iN

ME
TN/MS/AR
CA
™
CA
OK

I
MO/IL
FL

13.4%
13.0%
13.0%
12.8%
12.6%
12.4%
12.3%
12.3%
12.3%
12.3%
12.2%
11.6%
11.4%
11.4%
11.2%
11.0%
11.0%
10.8%
10.5%
10.3%
10.2%
9.9%
9.9%
9.9%
9.7%
9.6%
9.1%
9.0%
8.8%
8.8%
8.5%
8.3%
8.3%
8.2%
8.1%
8.0%
7.9%
7.8%

$108,900
$214,200
$220,100
$467,700
$151,800
$159,200
$726,900
$86,800

$110,500
$125,100
$211,000
$176,100
$197,900
$107,400
$300,100
$152,600
$131,700
$133,700
$129,100
$123,000
$93,300

$137,600
$414,400
$216,800
$163,300
$124,000
$143,400
$237,700
$102,100
$247,200
$150,100
$474,800
$159,700
$605,600
$115,700
$263,600
$141,900
$166,600

Page 3 of 5
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Historic home price increases Page 4 of 5

AR 7.7%  $118,900
Bridgeport-Stamford-Norwatk CT 7.6%  $487,300
San Antonio TX 7.5% $134,000
Raleigh-Cary NC 7.4%  $185200
Gainesville FL 7.0% $178,800
Barnstable Town MA 7.0%  $398,600
Glens Falls NY 7.0% $142,000
Fargo ND/MN 6.8% $132,600
Pittsfield MA 6.6% $211,800
Boston-Cambridge-Quincy MA/NH 6.6% $418,500
Providence-New Bedford-Fall River RI/MA 8.3% $291,600
Anaheim-Santa Ana (Orange Co.) CA 8.2% $696,100
Atlanta-Sandy Springs-Marietta GA 6.2% $166,500
Sioux Falls sSD 8.2%  $137,700
Dallas-Fort Worth-Arlington TX 57% $149,100
Charleston Wy 57% $121,700
Waterloo/Cedar Falls IA 5.6%  $100,700
Baton Rouge LA 56%  $135,400
Greensboro-High Point NC 55%  $148,000
Rochester NY 53% $110,700
Salt Lake City uTt 52% $169,900
Greenville SC 51%  $143,200
Austin-Round Rock TX 5.0% $166,800
Worcester MA 4.7%  $292,300
Erie PA 4.7%  $98,500
Boulder CO 4.5%  $346,200
Birmingham-Hoover AL 44% $156,100
Bloomington-Normal IL 4.4%  $155,800
Norwich-New London CT 4.3% $246,800
Springfield e 43% $109,000
Ft. Wayne IN 43% $102,800
Gary-Hammond IN 40% $129,600
Lexington-Fayette KY 3.9% $144.800
Cleveland-Elyria-Mentor OH 3.9% $144,700
Columbus OH 3.7% $155,900
Kennewick-Richland-Pasco WA 3.7% $152,700
Tulsa OK 36% $117,400
Grand Rapids Mi 3.3% $139,000

http://cnnmoney . printthis.clickability.com/pt/cpt7expire=&title=Historicthome+price tincia A PR Y8883
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MO/KS 3.3% $157,100
Akron OH 3.3% $119,800
Appleton Wi 3.2% $129,600
Omaha NE/IA 3.1%  $137,300
Spartanburg SC 3.0% $118,700
Denver-Aurora Co 2.7% $248,400
Louisville KY/IN 2.5% $136,800
Houston-Baytown-Sugar Land ™ 2.4% $142,500
Des Moines 1A 2.3% $145,100
Lansing-E.Lansing Ml 2.3% $143,600
Lincoln NE 2.2% $138,300
Buffalo-Niagara Falls NY 1.6% $97,500
Toledo OH 1.6% $118,600
Yakima WA 1.4% $134,800
Pittsburgh PA 0.9% $118,500
Charleston-North Charleston SC 0.9% $193,600
Cincinnati-Middietown OH/KY/IN 0.7% $148,500
Beaumont-Port Arthur TX 0.6% $96,500
Wichita KS 0.5% $106,300
Detroit-Warren-Livonia Mi 0.4% $169,200
Cedar Rapids (A -0.2% $131,600
Dayton OH -0.3% $119,400
Topeka KS -06% $103,100
Indianapolis IN -1.0% $124,600
Chattanooga TN/GA -1.0% $130,500
Youngstown-Warren-Boardman OH/PA -2.7% $82,900
Kalamazoo-Portage Mi -3.5% $122,600

Find this article at:
http:imoney.cnn.comipfifeatures/lists/nar_2q05

] check the box to include the list of links referenced in the article.

© 2007 Cable News Network LP, LLP,
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CERT

THE DICKERSON LAW GROUP
ROBERT P. DICKERSON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 000945
KATHERINE L. PROVOST, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 008414

JOSEF M. KARACSONYI, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 010634

1745 Village Center Circle

Las Vegas, Nevada 89134
Telephone: (702) 388-8600
Facsimile: (702) 388-0210

Email: info@dickersonlawegroup.com
Attorneys for LYNITA SUE NELSON

DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

ERIC L. NELSON,

| Plaintiff/Counterdefendant,
V.
LYNITA SUE NELSON

Defendant/Counterclaimant.

ERIC L. NELSON NEVADA TRUST
dated May 30, 2001, and LSN NEVADA
TRUST dated May 30, 2001,

Necessary Parties (joined in this
action pursuant to Stipulation and
Otder entered on August 9, 2011)

CASE NO. D-09-411537-D
DEPT NO. “O”

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

R g S, N T i
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LANA MARTIN, as Distribution Trustee
of the ERIC L. NELSON NEVADA
TRUST dated May 30, 2001,

Necessary Party (joined in this
action pursuant to Stipulation and
Order entered on August 9, 2011)/
Purported Counterclaimant and
Crossclaimant,

V.

LYNITA SUE NELSON and ERIC
NELSON,

Purported Cross-Defendant and
Counterdefendant,

LYNITA SUE NELSON,

Counterclaimant, Cross-Claimant,
and/or Third Party Plaintiff,

V.

the Investment Trustee of the ERIC L.
NELSON NEVADA TRUST dated May
30, 2001; the ERIC L. NELSON
NEVADA TRUST dated May 30, 2001;
LANA MARTIN, individually, and as the
current and/or former Distribution
Trustee of the ERIC L. NELSON
NEVADA TRUST dated May 30, 2001,
and as the former Distribution Trustee of
the LSN NEVADA TRUST dated Ma
30, 2001; NOLA HARBER, individually,
and as the current and/or former
Distribution Trustee of the ERIC L.
NELSON NEVADA TRUST dated May
30, 2001, and as the current and/or
former Distribution Trustee of the LSN
NEVADA TRUST dated May 30, 2001;
ROCHELLE McGOWAN, individually;
JOAN B. RAMOS, individually; and
DOES I through X,

Counterdefendants, and/or
Cross-Defendants, and/or

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
g
ERIC L. NELSON, individually, and as )
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
Third Party Defendants. g
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CERTIFICATE OF MAILING
I HEREBY CERTIFY that I am serving via U.S. Mail to Plaintiff’s and Lana

Martin’s Trustee counsel, a true and correct copy of the foregoing REPLY TO

OPPOSITION TO DEFENDANT’S MOTION TO AMEND OR_ALTER

JUDGMENT, FOR DECLARATORY AND RELATED RELIEF AND JOINDER

1
TO OPPOSITION to the following at their last known addresses on this i}t’day of
July, 2013,

RHONDA K. FORSBERG, ESQ .
RADFORD J. SMITH, CHARTERED
64 North Pecos Road, Ste. 700
Henderson, Nevada 89074
Attorneys for Plaintiff

MARICA. SOLOMON, ESQ.
SOLOMON, DWIGGINS, FREER & MORSE, LTD.
9060 W. Cheyenne Avenue
Las Vegas, N}évada 89129
Attorneys for Third-Party Defendants

C@MH /Lo/& éﬁ»g

An employee of The Dickerson Law Group
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D-09-411537-D

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Divorce - Complaint COURT MINUTES July 22, 2013

Eric L
Vs.
Lynita Nelson, Defendant.

D-09-411537-D Nelson, Plaintiff.

July 22,2013 2:00 PM Motion

HEARD BY: Sullivan, Frank P. COURTROOM: Courtroom 05

COURT CLERK: Paul D. Donahue

PARTIES:
Carli Nelson, Subject Minor, not present
Eric Nelson, Plaintiff, Counter Defendant,
present
Garett Nelson, Subject Minor, not present
Joan Ramos, Other, not present

Rhonda Forsberg, Attorney, present

Jeffrey Luszeck, Attorney, present

Lana Martin, Cross Claimant, not present
Lynita Nelson, Defendant, Counter Claimant,
present

Rochelle McGowan, Other, not present

Mark Solomon, Attorney, present
Robert Dickerson, Attorney, present

Jetfrey Luszeck, Attorney, present

JOURNAL ENTRIES

- MOTION: EX PARTE APPLICATION FOR ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE WHY ERIC NELSON
SHOULD NOT BE HELD IN CONTEMPT FOR VIOLATIONS OF JUNE 3, 2013 DECREE OF
DIVORCE AND JUNE 19, 2013 ORDER AND MOTION FOR A FINDING OF CONTEMPT, FOR
IMPLEMENTATION OF THE PENALTIES OF CONTEMPT, FOR FEES AND COSTS AND FOR
OTHER RELATED RELIEF. MOTION: DEFT'S MOTION TO AMEND OR ALTER JUDGMENT, FOR
DECLARATORY AND RELATED RELIEF. ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE: ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE.

Court noted the court has also reviewed the Opposition.
Attorney Dickerson noted exhibit A attached to their Motion filed on June 17 setting out specific

orders they would like included for the 2 parcels and Mississippi properties should remain in or
transferred to the ELN Trust which is 50 parcels to be amended or altered. Exhibit B prepared Deeds

| PRINT DATE: | 07/25/2013 | Page 1 0f 9 | Minutes Date: | July 22, 2013
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D-09-411537-D

by Mississippi Counsel to be signed and title transferred to ELN Trust in which Opposition has no
objection to signing the deed.

Attorney Solomon stated they do not object to the relief request except page 6 line 5 and page 8 line
17 in the Motion they represent they are asking for quit claim deeds which some are grant bargain
deeds requires warranties.

Attorney Provost stated she contacted Mississippi Counsel who advised her grant bargain sale deed
is entitled grant bargain sale deed because that is how chain of title has been made to Mr. Nelson in
the past.

All parties stated as to the grant bargain sale deed they are in agreement waiving warranties for a
clean title which can be signed right away.

Attorney Solomon noted a quit claim deed should work and if they want a grant bargain deed
without warranty is fine. Attorney Solomon requested to review and sign deeds by the end of the
month.

COURT ORDERED, 13 Quit Claim Deeds for the Banjuan property and 1 Quit Claim deed for Lindel
property by July 21, 2013 on or before business 5:00 pm.

Attorney Dickerson stated next issue is $151,166. Attorney Dickerson requested the payment to be
issued by Eric Ne!son to Lynita Nelson.

Attorney Solomon stated Mr. Nelson does not have the authority to transfer distributions out.

Court FINDS, Mr. Eric Nelson went to pay for property and has been controlling all distributions and
property transfers. Mr. Nelson sold it to Keith Little possibly benefiting Banjuan properties without
thorough accounting. COURT ORDERED, Promissory Note and deed of trust $88,166 transferred to
Lynita Nelson trust $63,000 payable by Mr. Nelson one time cash payment forthwith by end of July
31, 2013 on or before business 5:00 pm. 8 percent interest should be included from June and July.

Attorney Dickerson noted the final issue is dealing with the race track and requested 50 percent
interest fee to be divided into trusts or the other option is to reopen the issue and to have a trial on

the issue.

Court stated not being inclined to approve due to not having enough information from where the
money came.

Attorney Dickerson stated he was given the Opposition this morning. Attorney Dickerson noted an
history of the coutt order that was given on June 19, 2013 and Mr. Nelson has nothing pending in
front of the Supreme Court.

| PRINT DATE: | 07/25/2013 | Page 2 of 9 | Minutes Date: | July 22,2013
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Attorney Forsberg stated the trust all includes the children and the court was specific when ordering

the funds.

Attorney Dickerson requested the order from June 19, 2013 to remain. Attorney Dickerson stated he

can appear telephonically for the Evidentiary Hearing.

Following argumént, Court FINDS, Considering Divorce Decree is the final order and address the
matter under Amy as undisclosed asset. Court needs full accounting at the Status Check. COURT
ORDERED, Evidentiary Hearing and Status Check SET. Discovery cut off before November 22, 2013

at 5:00 pm. June 19, 2013 ORDER TO REMAIN.

INTERIM CONDITIONS:

FUTURE HEARINGS:

Canceled: August 01, 2013 10:00 AM Motion

Reason: Canceled as the result of a hearing cancel, Hearing Canceled Reason: Vacated
Elliott, Jennifer

Courtroom 09

Vinson, Debra

August 01, 2013 4:00 PM Order to Show Cause
Courtroom 05
Sullivan, Frank P.

August 01,2013 4:00 PM Status Check
Courtroom 05
Sullivan, Frank P.

Canceled: August 15, 2013 11:00 AM Motion

September 17, 2013 10:00 AM Motion
Elliott, Jennifer

Courtroom 09

Vinson, Debra

December 11,2013 1:30 PM Evidentiary Hearing
Courtroom 05
Sullivan, Frank P.

PRINT DATE: | 07/25/2013 | Page 3 of 9 Minutes Date: | July 22, 2013
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EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

ERIC L. NELSON,

Plaintiff, CASE NO. D-09-411537-D
V. DEPT. O
LYNITA NELSON, (SEALED)

Defendant.

e Mt et Nt o e e e e

BEFORE THE HONORABLE FRANK P. SULLIVAN
DISTRICT COURT JUDGE

TEANSCRIPT RE: MOTION

MONDAY, JULY 22, 2013

D-09-411837-D NELSON 07/22/2013 TRANSCR\F’T (SEALED)
YERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC (520) 303-7356
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APPEARANCES :

The
For

The
For

The

For

Plaintiff:

the Plaintiff:

Defendant:

the Defendant:

Trustee:

the Trustee:

ERIC L. NELSON

RHONDA FORSBERG, ESQ.
64 N, Pecos Rd., #700
Henderson, Nevada 89074
(702) 9950-6448

LYNTTA NELSON

ROBERT PAUL DICKERSON, ESQ.
KATHERINE PROVOST, E3Q. ‘
1745 Village Center Cir.
Las Vegas, Nevada 89134
(702) 388-8600

DBA DISTRIBUTION TRUSTEE
OF ELN NEVADA TRUST
MARK SOLOMON, ESQ.
JEFFREY P. LUSZECK, ESQ.
9060 W. Cheyenne Ave.
Las Vegas, Nevada 89129
(702) 853-5483

D-09-4115637-0 NELSON 07/22/2013 TRANSCRIPT {SEALED)
VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC (520) 303-7356

2
AAPP 4877




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

LAS VEGAS, NEVADA MONDAY, JULY 22, 2013

PROCEEDTINGS

(THE PROCEEDINGS BEGAN AT 14:19:41)

THE COURT: This is the time set in the matter of
Eric Nelson and Lynita Nelson, case number D-411537. We'll
get everybody's appearances for the record then I kind of
explain where we're at and give everybody a chance to be
heard, We'll start -- I think it's your motion, Mr.
Dickerson.

MR, DICKERSON: Yes, Your Honor. Bobk Dickerson and
Katherine Provost on behalf of Lynita Nelson. My bar number
is 0945. And Katherine's bar number is 8414.

THE COURT: Thank you. Good to see you again, Ms.
Lynita. Mr. Solomon for the Trust.

MR. SOLOMON: Yeah, thank vyou. Mark Solomon, bar
number 418 on hehalf of the distribution trustee. I have ny
assoclate with me, but I think he will be right --

THE COURT: Here he cones.

MR. SOLOMON: -- behind us.

THE COURT: There he goes.

MR. SOLOMON: There he is. Timely. State your
presence.

MR. LUSZECK: Jeff Luszeck, counsel for the
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distribution trustee, the ELN Trust.

MS. FORSBERG: Good afternoon, Your Honor. Rhonda
Forsbkerg, 9557, on behalf of Eric Nelson who 1g present to my
right.

THE COURT: Good to see you as well, Mr. Eric.
Everybody can kind of sit down and get comfortable and I'll
give you an outline of where we're at and have 1t be heard.
This came on with Ms. Lynita's motion to amend or alter
Judgment for -- for declaratory rellief and order to show
cause. I have read the motions and the oppositions as well as
Mr. Eric's notice of joinder to the opposition.

Also I know there was an order to show cause
requested for contempt. I have granted an order shortening
time. I know people wouldn't have enough time. I did get the
response from -- by Ms. Forgberg on behalf of Mr. Erlc, so I
did get a chance to review your oppositlon. I know it was on
very short time, so I'm just golng to give people more time as
needed if they needed that. 8o T do appreciate you getting
such short notice on that as the goal was tryling to save the
family soﬁe time and some court hearings and you were coming
here anyways.

So ag far as -- well, let me zee what we got to
resolve on that. 1 know the -- the one question on -- to

amend or alter the judgment deals with the Missigsippil
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properties as far as a more legal description on which
properties wefe awarded to Ms. Nelson under the decree of
divorce. 2Also they had asked issues about the Banjuan, about
two properties that were transferred throughout the course of
these proceedings to the amount of a hundred aﬁd fifty one
thousand, one sixty-six.

2nd also, the Court did not make a disposition as to
the Wyoming Downs, because I did not have any information
ready provided that -- that adjudicatory hearing as to tracing
Wyoming Downs. And basically that's kind of where we're at.
S0 they're asking for the relief. They're asking me to
identify which parcel numbers and legal descriptions for the
Mississippl properties so they could get those deeds
accordingly executed.

| Algo they want to have the Court order any --

apprise issued any and all deeds or assignments, any necessary
instruments to set forth as far as any property that has been
awarded to either party or to theilr trusts so they can get
those titles straightened out. And they wanted an additional
amendment for the one hundred and fifty-one thousand one
sixty=-six in cash rather assets to Compensate for the Banjuan
properties. And they want an order for 50 percent property
ownership in the Dynasty Development Management, LLC which

owns the Wyoming Downs.
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As far as the opposition, the LSN Trust indicated
they did not oppose the Court provide a more spec --—
specificity as to the Mississippi property, so we'll address
that to see if we're in agreement with those properties are or
not. So they advise the Court of course of their writ of
prohibition as currently pending before the supreme court.
Also 1n response indicated that the properties in the Banjuan,
the 2209 Farmouth property sold by Banjuan that the -- they
were willing to transfer the deed and the promissary note of
88,166 to the LSN Trust if that would resolve that issue.

As of the other property from the Banijuan, the 5704
Roseridge, indicated any monies from those are placed in
operating fund to manage the Banjuan property. And therefore,
that went to the benefit of the other Manjuan -- Banjuan
property as therefore should not be held against them.
Indicating that the Banjuan properties have increased in
value, however, no value was given. And then basically that
the loan taken off for the Wyoming Downs was ——- was occurring
with a $700 against the property and was a hundred percent
financed by the property and therefore, the trust -- Ms.
Lynita's trust, Ms. Lynita's -- community property or separaté
property interest in that Wyoming Downs.

And that's kind of where we're at right now. As far

as the other issues, do you want to deal with these issues
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first and deal with the contempt --

MR. SOLCMCN: Sure.

THE COURT: -~-- separately? Is that an --

MR. SCLCMCON: Yeah, that'll be fine.

THE COURT: -- easier way to do it to see what we're
in agreement with?

MR. SCOLCMON: Appreciate that, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. SOLCMON: I den't think we're involved in the
second motion.

THE COURT: Okay. As far as the agreement, as far
as the Mississippi properties, is there any dispute as to what
the property -- we saw the twco deeds, but T wasn't sure I
could identify --

MR, DICKERSON: We have Exhibit 2 --

THE CCOURT: Yeah.

MR. DICKERSON: -- attached to cur mction.

THE COURT: Yeah, I couldn't identify which of those
preperties with the legal description. I couldn't determine
which ones.

MR. DICKERSON: Tcday sets cut the specific crders
that we would like included as -- as you see, It -- 1t Starté
cut indicating that the following are going to be transferred

to the Eric L. Nelson Trust. And there are two parcels. And
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then the next one it is ordered judge and decree that the
following Mississippi properties shall remain in or be
transferred to the LSN Nevada Trust. And it lists 50 parcels.

THE COURT: Okay. The --

MR. DICKERSON: It's simply asking that the Court's
decree to be altered and amended to include those specific
descriptions of the parcel numbers.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. DICKERSON: And then we had prepared the deeds,

Exnibit B, and these are to be signed -- we're requesting that
those be -- be signed and have titled transferred to the LSN
Trust. The -- the opposition seems to suggest that they

didn't have a problem signing a deed but they wanted to look
at these. Their concern was whether there needed to be a
grant bargain sale deed. They wanted 30 days. This motion
was filed on June 17th. We're now well, well past the -- the
30 days that they would have needed to -- to inguired.

These deeds were prepared by Mississippi counsel
that is representing Mrs. Nelson with respect to lawsuits that
had been filed back there against Mr. Nelson and against the
trust. And according to them, these are the way the deeds
need to read.

MR. SOLOMON: Can I respond to that?

THE COURT: Absolutely. I want to take that as a
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parcel and see what the disputes are.

MR. SOLOMON: It makes a lot more sense to do one
issue at a time.

THE COURT: Sure.

MR. SOLOMON: Your Honor, we -- we don't have any
objection to that relief request except for only one aspect.
In their motion at Page 6, Line 5 and again at Page 8, Line
17, they represent that they're asking for quitclaim deeds.
And we were prepared to say no problem. And then we looked at
the deeds and some of them are quitclaims and some of them are
grant bargain sale deeds. This is not a deal between a buyer
and a seller where we have title insurance and somebody's
making a warranty. This is a property division. And we can
only give what we got. 2And a quitclaim deed obviously works
in Mississippi because half of them are quitclaim deeds. So

MR, DICEKERSON: If I may respond to that.

MR. SOLOMON: -- to -- to say that they went to a
real estate attorney and asked for them to put this together
and put them together with grant bargain sale deeds doesn't
say anything. He could have put them together and we haﬁe
checked that out. He could have put this together with
quitclaim deeds which is the appropriate mechanism to divide

property.
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The grant bargain sale deed as I'm sure Ycur Honor
knows if nothing‘else from law school requires warranties.
And we're nct in a position to make those warranties. I don't
think that was the Court's intent either. The Court's intent
was divide what we have.. And a quitclaim deed does that. Sc
that's our only objection tc that.

THE COURT: Mr. Dickerscn.

MR. DICKERSON: Yeah, if Ms. Prcveost will handle
this. She's more familiar with the -- the discussicns with
the Mississippili ccunsel.

MS. PROVOST: In anticipating this questicn having
received the opposition of the ELN Trust, I did ccntact
Migssissippi counsel and inguire why scme are quitclaim deeds
and some are grant bargain sale deeds. And what Mississippil
has confirmed for me is the reascn ---

MR. SOLOMON: And for the record, Ycur Henor, this
is hearsay.

MS. PROVOST: We -- we'll be more than --

THE COURT: Sc ncted.

MS. PROVOST: ~- 1if Your Honor prefers, we can
always have it certified by affidavit, but --

THE COURT: If I need. Let me see actually if we
can get it resclved.

MS. PROVOST: With respect te the -- the attempts to
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continuously delay and delay and delay, in response, the grant
bargain sale deed 1s entitled grant bargain sale deed because

that 1s how the chain of title has been made due to Mr. Nelson
in the past.

Typically, properties in Mississippi would he
transferred by quitclalim deed, but in the past with respect to
the parcels that are grant bargain sale deed here, Mr. Nelson
previocusly had those done as grant bargaln sale deeds.
Mississippl counsel in speaking with thelr title
representatives, the concern was if now all of a sudden you've
got grant bargain sale deeds coming through the chain of title
and now just a gulitclaim deed at the bottom of the chain of
title, that would create a problem for Mrs. Nelson and
possibly cloud her marketability of the property with respect
to being able to have clear, free and marketable title to the
property.

So the grant bargain sale deeds are‘grant bargain
sale deeds simply because of the fact that in prior chain of
title and prior transfers of this property that is held that
was done. And that was done when Mr. Nelson was the one in
charge of 1t 1n making all of these property transfers.

THE CCURT: Are you requesting with the corrected
grant bargain and sale deed, would you be willing to wealve the

warranties that are only coming --
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MR. DICKERSON: Absolutely.

THE COURT: -- with grant sale?

MS. PROVOST: Absolutely.

MR. DICKERSCON: Yes.

THE COURT: Does that resolve your proklem if they
waived it and as far as any warranties that would gd under
just as they're doing it's -- because they've been advised
that's all they need to get a clean title of --

MR. SCOLOMON: TIf you're sayving we'wve giving a grant
bargain sale deed which has warranties but we get to
specifically say without any warranty, I think that makes the
quitclaim and I'm fine.

THE CCURT: Yeah. Qkay. And that -- does that work
for you if you did it that way? TI'm just trying to get some
way so everybody is comfortable.

MR. DICKERSON: Yeah, it does. Yeah.

MS. PROVQST: Uh-huh (affirmative).

MR. DICKERSON: It -- well, other than what he's
already testified to in this courtroom with respect to the
ownership of those properties. It's Jjust we need to have this
property conveyed. And the only -- according to Mississippi
counsel, in order to not create a cloud in the title, it needs
to be done in the form as they have drafted these four deeds.

THE COURT: But your case specifically with the
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first cne that was able toc correct the grant bargain sale and
deed sc that really would be dealing without the warranties
that's given on a grant bargain sale deed. 0Of course, you
felt he did scomething that viclated the court order. T can
entertain that as a separate action —-

MR. DICKERSON: 2Absolutely.

THE COURT: -- 1f you had a motion to look at that._
But this would be just really for transferring title because
that's your easiest way to get title to Ms. Lynita withcut any
cloud of title, is that kind cf the way I understand it?
Would you be comfortable with that T gpecifically walved that
the ceorrected grant bargain sale deed was —-- that would walve
the warranty?

MR. SOLOMON: On the warranty, that's where we're —-

THE COURT: Yeah. I mean, that would make it
egsentially quitclaim deed and --

MR. SOLOMCN: We would, Your Honor. And we'd be
fine with that.

THE COURT: Well, as long as Mississlppl -- as long
as they call it that way and that's what they label it, I'm
fine. If that gets -- dces that sclve your problem, Mr.
Dickerson, 1if you did it that way?

MR. DICKERSON: Well, they -- it -- what I'm

understanding, your -- your -- you will order that they
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execute these four deeds that are attached wit the
understanding pursuant to court order that the two grant
bargain sales deeds are not included in any warranties by --

MR. SOLOMON: I think the deed has to reflect
without warranty, otherwise it could be relied upon down the
chain and we can be sued.

THE COURT: Well, I mean, if it's sold again that
somebody wouldn't have notice?

MR. SOLOMON: We -- we need to modify the form to
say without warranty.

THE COURT: Does -- does that cause problems for
you? Because normally when you sse the grant -- T -- I see
what you're saying. If she transferred down the road, they
wouldn't have notice that --

MR. SOLOMON: That's my problem.

THE COURT: Is that a way you think yvou can resolve
that with language that's comfortable with Mississippil and get
'er done? Because I don't want to be coming back here and
titling that‘up for 32 --

MR. SOLOMON: Your Honor, I'm -- I'm sure based on
what I've just heard that a quitclaim deed would work. I
mean, there's no reason it wouldn't work. And —-- and the
reason they were —-- change of titles can have warranty deeds

and grants deeds. They can have all sorts of deeds. You can
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get down toc a co -- and that deoesn't cloud title. And I don't
think thev're making that representaticn that it will, because
it can't be made.

MR. DICKERSON: Well, I don't --

MR. SOLOMCN: But that's up te them. If they want a

grant bargain sale deed --

MR. DICKERSON: I don't profess that he is

knowledgeable —-
MR. SOLOMON: -- without a warranty, that's fine.

MR. DICKERSCON: -- as counsel about Mississippl law.
I'm sorry. |

THE COURT: Yeah, I don't know. I don't know how
they do it. I -- I know —-- you know, a gquitclaim deed is
where you basically you guit any claim you have. The

difference with that than when you de¢ the bargain and deed is

yvou're warranting that you have title to it, vyou have the

righﬁ tec transfer it and there's no cther incumbrances octher
than the ones you have disclosed. Where a quitclaim is saying
any ownership I have cor may have in it, I give to you. That's
kind cf the property law 101. So does that werk out for you
if you do something like that --

MR. DICKERSCON: We will work on that with --

THE COURT: -- with the language?

MR. DICKERSCON: -- with respect to the guitclaim
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deeds, will those he executed today and then the two grant
bargain -- the -- the grantT bargain sale deeds, the corrected

grant bargain sale deeds? See, what they're attempted to do

MR. SOLOMON: Well, 1it's kind of --

MR. DICKERSON: -- when it says correct -- 1is
correcting a previous grant bargain sale deed and that's why
it references 1it.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. SOLOMON: You know, 1it's okay when yvou make
warranties to yourself. It's a different thing when you have
to make warranties to third parﬁies.

THE COURT: Okay. Well, any problem signing those
quitclaim deed immediately for the first two?

MR. DICKERSON: If -- if all it's doing 1is
correcting a previous grant bargain sale deed is of record.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. DICKERSON: That's all it's doing.

MR. SOLOMON: Which Eric's testimony was that that
was intended to be conveyed back to him. Now T understand
what the Court did, but it's a whole different thing to convey
yourself something with warranties than to convey it to a
third party.

MR. DICKERSON: Well, now he's conveying it to
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Lynita.

MR. SOLOMON: That's right. That is a third party.

And you're trying to hold him liable for potential defects and

title.

Or at least that has the ability of deoing it and

that's not appropriate in a divorce --

MR. DICKERSON: Then have him --
MR, SOLOMON : -—- division.

MR, DICKERSON: -- convey it to himself and convey

it to Lynita.

THE CQURT: Whatever works out. Does that —--

whatever —-- whatever works out. The two guitclaims, we can

get those signed right away. There's no objection to the

Honer.,

guitclaim deeds of that.

MS. PROVOST: Okay.

MR. SOLOMON: ©No objection to guitclaim deeds, Your

THEE COURT: Okay. Let's get those two signed

forthwith. Do you need a notary or can we do it now or is 1t

something you need to look at? I just want to get it done

within 24 hours or --

M3, PROVOST: What is --
MR. SOLOMON: What is that?
MS., PROVOST: They've had them since -- since June.

MR, DICKERSON: They've had them for --
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M3. PROVOST: They've had them since June.

MR. SOLOMCN: Well, there's no notary here number
one, Your Honor. And number Lwo, who do you want this --
| MR. DICKERSCN: Those are going to be signed by --
Eric Nelson is the trustee of the trust. FEric Nelson has the
authority to do this. Eric Nglson has authority with respect
to that trust to do anything other than to make distributions
to himself.

THE COURT: Than distributions.

MS. PROVCST: To himself.

THE CCURT: Yeah. Yeah.

MR. SOLOMON: So in their motlon, they ask for the
distribution trustee to sign --

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. SOLOMCN: == but they also said that we would
have 10 days to sign these things.

MS. PROVCST: They've had them since June.

MR. SOLOMON: And now they're asking to sign 1t
immediately.

THE COURT: Well, I'll give you some time to look at
it, but I'm going to make 1t a real short window like a day or
two so they got a chance to read it. If 1t's not signed,
we'll put on for a contempt 1f we need. I just wanted to get

ter done. DBut we'll give them a chance to look at 1t and
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we'll make sure that noone thinks that someone's pulling
something fast on them.

As far as the corrected grant bargain sale deed, are
you okay if yeou can work out some language —-

MR. DICKERSON: Yes.

THE COURT: -- to put in there? Okay.

MR. DICKERSON: We'll -- we'll work on that with
counsel and 1f we have to come back, we have to come back.

THE COURT: What's today, Monday? What if T put
this on for Friday? Can I get it done? I want to get a time
certain so we're not back here. If I gave you the close of
business Friday to get the grant bargain sale deed done and
the gquitclaim deed and if not, put on for a status check —--

MR. DICKERSON: That'll be great.

THE COURT: ~—- next Monday just to get 'er done?
I'm just trying to get this done, because otherwise we'll be

back and ferth. If it's been done, I'll just vacate the

- hearing.

MR. DICKERSCON: And Judge, you alsc note that in our
motion we requested that the Court to further alter or amend
and indicate that the parties execute all other deeds and
assignments in order to convey the property. 1 have here --

MS. PROVOST: 211 the deeds relating te the real

property in Banjuan, LLC.
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MR. DICKERSON: All -~ all the deeds relating --

MS. NELSON: In Nevada.

MR. DICKERSON: -- to Banjuan, LLC and all the
property -- and the --

MS. NELSON: Lindale (ph).

MR. DICKERSON: -- Lindale deeds.

THE COURT: ©Okay. Let's make sure we got this one
right. As far as the deeds, the quitclaim deeds, we'll get
those things. The corrected grant bargain sale deed, I --
we're going to sit this hére and work out language that
basically will say that it'll be the corrected one on that but
walving any warranty deeds that normally would go under a
grant bargain, right? And get those all done by Friday, 5:00
o'clock. That'll give you enough time. Today's Monday.

MR. LUSZECK: We can give them to you now. You --

MR. DICKERSON: I'm not asking them today.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. DICKERSON: Because they -- you have until
Friday.

THE COURT: So if we give you --

MR. LUSZECK: We've got other deadlines too by
Friday, but --

THE COURT: Are these -- tome, I don't see a lot of

time. I think they're pretty easy to read. I don't see
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anything like -=
MR. SOLOMON: Yeah, we're okay with the ones he's —-
THE COURT: ' Okay.
MR. éOLOMON: -- he wants tc hand me a new pile --
THE COURT: Okay.

MR. SOLOMON: —— I haven't seen bhefore.

THE COURT: Now that one -- now let's go te the next
one. So we got that resolved as far as the quit -- okay. Is
that clear? By Friday, 5:00 o'clock. If not, we'll -- we'll

glve you a review hearing next weeck before we're done to see
if it hasn't been done. If 1it's been done, we'll just vacate
that because I don't want to make people come down there and
waste anymore of you guys' Lime.

On the othef -—- the second was the Banjuan deeds.

MR. DICKERSON: We have prepared here with respect
to the Banjuan properties —-- we've prepared 13 quitclaim deeds
relating to Banjuan properties. Hand those to counsel now.
And we've prepared one guitclaim deed relating to the Lindale
property.

THE COURT: Okay. I'll deal with that issue next
and give everyhody a chance to be heard on that one, because
that's —— I know the supreme court where we're at, my
understanding of they gave you guys some more time to file

responses, supplementals. Those are the last things you might
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want to bring me up to snuff on that, but do you want to be
heard on the —--

MR. DICKERSCN: There's no --

THE COURT: -- RBanijuan?

MR. DICKERSCN: -~ stay on that lssue.

THE COURT: Yeah, and I know they believed they gave
-~ the -- the writ, they were considering with the stay of the
June 1lz2th order or whatever 1t was. And then they came back
and thev asked to stay the divorce decree. 2And the supreme
court said they wanted more information supplemental to
determine why they needed extraordinary relief instead of Jjust
golng for the regular appeal.

MR. DICKERSCON: And at this polint in time there 1is
no stay with respect to that second writ.

THE COURT: Ckay. Yeah, that was my understanding,
but --

MR. LUSZECK: Thal's correct. Yeah. Nevada Supreme
Court asked for some supplemental briefing. We provided that
and there 1s no current -- there 1is no stay currently in place
with respect to the real property transfers.

MR. SOLOMCN: But the stay motion is pending.

MR. LUSZECK: But the stay motion 1s pending.

THE COURT: Did they give you a time? I know they

gave you time to respond. Do they have a hearing date or did
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they just gave you —-- I know they gave they said within 11
days, you had to respond and --

MR. LUSZECK: C(Correct. There was -- There was no

date by which they indicated they would provide a response by.

THE COURT: Okay. 2nd when is your -- is the time
frame up for the -- you got 11 days to respond either -- after
they had respond?

MR, DICKERSON: We have 11 days to respond.

THEE COURT: You have 11 days®?

MR, DICKERSON: I think that's the —-

MS. PROVOST: We have responded to the -- the
emergency motion for stay and I believe that they have time
for a reply. 1 think it was five days from last week, s0
sometime this week is when the reply is due.

MR. LUSZECK: That sounds -- that sounds --

THE COURT: But the end cof the week is your deadline
about that. Okay. But they didn't give any time when you
could expect a decision or --

MR. LUSZECK: No, they did not.

THE COURT: Did they indicate they would entertain

oral argument or they didn't do that yet? They just kind of

MR. SOLOMON: No. No. Let me clarify, Your Honor.

What they did is on the -- I'll call it the second writ that
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we've filed. We also requested a motion to stay. Instead of
entertaining the motion to stay, they sent back a brief order
saying tell us why an appeal isn't an adequate remedy and
wa'll give you X days to do that. And they basically left in
advance the motion to stay without reaching that.

We have filed as Mr. Luszeck saild the supplemental
brief requested by the supreme court. It's our anticipation
as soon as they file whatever they're entitled to file the
court will reach the motion to stay.

THE CCURT: CQCkay.

MS. PROVOST: It's our -- it's our anticipation that
the court will deny the motion to stay. |

THE COURT: Well, my -- I'll -- I'll be honest with
—— with both sides. My inclination is pushed as forward to
get it moving and let the supreme court do what they're going
to do and stop evervthing or do that, because otherwise we're
going to ke going back and forth on every motion. I would be
inclined to have them execute the Banjuan deeds, bescause we
can have her execute i1t back if the supreme court gives the
stay. But the probklem is I'm kind of in limbo. The same
token on that, the supreme court can maybe give something
émergency in front of supreme court. I just want them to
rasolve it one way or another, because otherwise we're going

to be going back and forth from all of their motiong in this
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Court up to the supreme court back and forth. So I don't‘know
what the supreme court's planning on doing, but they -- they
could issue the stay on that -- on thelr application. And
they didn't is they want to indicate why an extraordinary
relief was warranted.

So I -- I would be inclined to have them and I'll
give vyou guys a chance to respond in a Secdnd, but I am
inclined to have you execute the Banjuan deeds and the supreme
court said nevermind, they stayed the order and I transfer
them back if we had to just so we get this moving forward,
because they Sayrno and then we're sitting there for another
time frame trying to get this case moving one way or the other
by give you guys the appeal.

There was some gquestion as to why my order I made
everybody payable to transferring 30 days. 1 did that because
I assume there would be appeals. And I don't do things high
handed to put the pressure on everybody to try and get them
that same day. I didn't think things would disappear. I
thought that things would be in there and we got credible
terms on that that let the supreme court decide if they
thought it should be stayed longer than the 30 days or
whatever they want to do. But that's why I did it for the 30
days was saying they give everybody a chance to breathe, do

their thing, get the supreme court and not have everyone
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panicking running around because I did respect evervbody's
rights to appeal and I did sﬁspect that what pecple thought
was wisdom of Solomon or Sullivan or cther pecple would think
was the stupidity of Sullivan. So I understood then I want to
give evervbody a chance to get that and let the supreme court
step in any way they want, because these parties need té get
this done. It's been going on since 2008 and the filing since
2009 and needed to get some finalizaticn either through me or
the supreme court.

So I'd be inclined to order the Banjuan deeds to be
-- guitclaims need to be transferred cover along with the
Lindale and ~- and if it comes out the supreme court issues
that stay and cne's executed back cr hold those -- make éure
those properties ceouldn't go anywhere while they determine
that, I'd be glad toc parcel that. I'll alsc ncote that this
appears so that -- but -- but that would be my inclinatiocon is
to get that moving forward since they didn't stay the crder,
but I'll give you a chance to be heard on that if you would
like.

MR. SOLOMON: , Your Honor, we would request that at
least that that be given to the end of this month to -- to
review these deeds and to sign them and turn them over.
OCbviocusly, it's -- 1it's guite a burden to transfer title and

untransfer title. And that'll give us another week to try and
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get. the supreme court to move one way or the other on our stay

motion and we'll tell them this Court's entered this order.

The title is goling to have to transfer in the next eight days.

or whatever that's left of this month unless this Court acts.

And then the supreme court will hopefully move one way or the

other and you'll have our finality at least until -- on that
issue.

THE COURT: Ckay.

MR. DICEERSON: I have no objection to that
suggestion.

THE COURT: All right. What I'll do is court order

MR. DICKERSON: So it would be by the -- by the Ilst
of -- of =-- |

MR, SOLCMON: 1st of August?

MR. DICKERSON: Well --

THE COURT: Yeah, we'll do it by 5:00 o'clock p.m.
on August lst. Is that fair enough? That way what we'll do
is we'll —-

MR. SOLOMON: Anybody know if that's a weekday?

MR. DICKERSON: August 1st is a Thursday.

MR. SOLOMCN: Is that a weekday, does anybody know?

THE COURT: Is that a weekday?

MR. DICKERSON: That's a Thursday.
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MS. PROVOST: . It's a Wednesday —-
THE MARSHAL: Thursday.
ME. SOLCMON: That works.

THE CQURT: Thursday. Does that work?

MS. PROVOST: Can he —-- can he do it on the 31st —-
THE COQURT: Just order -- order then the -- with the
gquitclaim -~ and I want a chance to look at those deeds.

MR, DICKERSON: Can we do 1t on the 31lst? The rents
are due on the 1st.
THE COURT: Okay. By 5:00 --

MR. DICKERSON: I ask that we simply do it by 5:00

THFE, COURT: By 5:00 o'clock p.m. on July 31lst. Does
that work for you? We'll order the 13 quitclaim deeds for the
Banjuan property and the one gquitclaim deed to Lindale to be
executed on or bhefore the close of business on July 3lst, 5:00
o'clock p.m. unless the supreme court issues the stay-or other
thing that would stop that. That gives people a chance to get
that going. ©Of course, I want to give vou a chance to of
course to review all those quitclaim deeds to see 1f you think
they are adegquate. 2And then that gives you some time with the
supreme court when you respond today or this week to sit
through and see if they want to issue a stay and know what's

going on. That way yvou can let them know here's what's
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Sullivan's deing. So if that way they think they need te stay
it, then they can stay it. If not, we get this moving
forward. And that would be the 13 guitclaim deeds for Banjuan
and the cne for Lindale?

MR. DICKERSON: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: ©Okay. All right.

MR. DICKERSON: And the next issue Ycour Henor 1is
that issue dealing with the hundred and fifty-one thousand oné
sixty-six.

THE COURT: Okay. Now they offered to give vou that
88. TIs that sufficient cor is that -- |

MR. DICKERSON: Well, I would -- Judge, the problem
that we have with it is -- I -- I want ftc¢ be careful. I den't
believe IL've seen it, but there's been so much paperwork. I
may have seen it, but we're dealing with promissary notes and
we're dealing with deeds of trust on properties that he has
sold to related parties. I would simply say I would prefer a
court order or directing that Eric Nelson pay to Lynita Nelson
a hundred and fifty-one thousand cne hundred and sixty-six
dollars.

MS. FORSBERG: Your Honor, is he sayving Fric Nelson
personally or these are trust properties, so --

MR. DICKERSON: Well, these are mconies that Eric as

the distribution -- Eric 1is --
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MS. FORSBERG: No.

MR. DICKERSON: -- the one in control of the
trustee.

MS. FORSBERG: The investment Lrustee.

MR. DICKERSON: You can impose a judgment against
Eric and then we're going to get to -- to the point, because a

comment is made in their motion in their opposition to the
contempt order that is totally false. Eric Nelson can write a
check to Lynita Nelson for that 1.03 million or whatever that
number is today. He doesn't need Lana Martin. He deesn't
nead Nola Harbor (ph). He needs no other individual. He can
write a check to her from that trust to hef because he has the
authority to do so.

The only purpose of the distribution trustee is
respect to distribution as to Eric Nelson himself. So I would
ask that you -- you order that Eric Nelson pay her a hundred
and fifty thousand -- fifty-one thousand one hundred and
sixty-six dollars and then we'll deal with him making those
payments and that may very well be another contempt motion.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR..SOLOMON: Cash is very tight, Your Honor. And
to have us take what little cash has been left to our trust
after the award that was made is even more prejudicial.

There's nothing wrong with awarding to them the note and deed
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of trust. That's for —- it's fully secured. It's payable at
eight percent. 1It's ballooned out at the end of 2015. And as
far as I know, it's performing, is that correct? The interest
ig being paid contemporaneously pursuant to the terms.

With respect to the —-- well, I guess you didn't
raise the issue of the other property. Do you want to take
them one at a time or —-

MR. LUSZECK: BSure.

THE COURT: Sure.

MR. DICKERSON: Judge, for counsel to make a
statement with a straight face that cash is scarce when we
know that that 1.58 million deollars that was in Dave Stephen's
trust account safe and gsound te be -- be distributed exactly
as Your Honor had ordered is now in the hands of either the

trust or Eric Nelson. In hisg response, Eric Nelson says he

deesn't have it. At —- at least they've got 1.58 million

dollars in cash sitting there as a result of the monies that
was being held in Mr. Stephens' trust account. And it's from
those monies that we're going to ask that you order that this
100 -- this 150 -— 1 -- 166 be distributed including the
additional monies as we'll deal with the contempt motion. And
I'll addresg that later. But the --

MR. SOLOMON: Your -- Your Honor awarded —-—

MR. DICKERSON: -- with respect —--
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MR. SOLOMON: -- real property that —-
MR. DICKERSON: -- with respect to the --
MR. SOLOMON: TI'm sorry.

THE COURT: Let him finish, vyeah.

MR. DICKERSON: -- with respect to the property of

the notes, he says -- he says that they're performing. So

what -- what she's going to be receiving is asset that is far
less than -- than what jou have ordered, because if that -~ 1if
payments have been made on the promissary note, then we have a
lesser amount than what you p:eviously ordered on -- on each
of these situations. So we simply ask that Eric Nelson put
himself in this position. He chose to sell those properties
to -- to related parties. He has received the benefits of
that and continues to receive the benefits of that.

Based upon your decisions, she's short based -~ with

equalization of the hundred and fifty-one, one sixty-six and

we ask that you order Eric Nelson to pay that forthwith.

MR. SOLOMON: Several things with respect to that,
Your Honor. Number one, principal has not been paid on the
note. It's interest only at eight percent, the full amount
payable in December of 2015. So there's been no conversion of
any portion or reduction of -- of that amount.
| Your Honor split the properties. This is ancther

property. It is simply unfair at this point, because contrary
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Lo what counsel Just said, if you order this to be paid of
cash, then he's going to still want if he prevails on the
other issue the balance of the cash to be awarded. So he's
really asking for more cash.

Eric does not have the authority to tfansfer
distributions out as the investment trustee. Under the theory
of trust law, these are payments made to Eric. And then from
Eric awarded over there. That regquires the distribution
trustes., But with respect to tThe Farmouth Circle property,
vou've got real property, you've gofL better -- you've gotL it
pre-sold. You've got a performing, no paying or income and
she's got the probability of receiving the entire cash amount
in the end of 2015. "

| With respect to the other property, the Roseridge,
Your Honor was correct in your preliminary statements that
that was sold in due course prior fo any injunction being
entered in April of 2012 to the ELN Trust and that those funds
were in fact used for the expenses of upkeeping the rest of
the properties including the salaries, Taxes, upksep on the
rentals, just like Lynita had $2,000,000 of cash or LSN had
52,000,000 of cash at the initiation of this divorce. So did
ELN have expenseé assoclated with upkeeping its properties.
And that's gone. And it was gone before the Court entered the

decree.
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If anything, Ycur Honor, when vyou think about it,
what that would do if that money is gone just like most of her
$2,00,000 is gone, it left that much left to be divided
between the two of them. So 1f -- 1if anything, you end up
with ELN Trust having $61,510 more than the 50 percent split
that vou intended and that's the amount that needs to be
divided so that each side gets half of that $61,000 and that
accomplishes what I think vou were trying to do in vour decree
to balance ocut this trust and the amounts.

The fact that it was sold before and used in
expenses i1s no different than any other cash being used by
either trust and gone by the time the Court entered this
decree.

Sc our pesiticn is with respect te Farmouth, they
shcoculd get the -- the note and the deed of trust which is
squarely within the intent of the Court. And with respect to
the Roseridge, the most they should get is half of the
additional $61,510 that the Court awarded cn the ELN side.

MR. DICKERSON: Well, I don't —-

MR. SOLOMON: And that's put them in a parity.

MR. DICKERSON: I do not know of any motion to
altered or amended has it been filed by the trust. So that
issue is not before. You made your order with respect to

these. Eric Nelscn has put himself in this peosition. 1It's
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the same thing as Eric Nelscn using well in excess of a
million dollars teo bulld that mansicn cof his. And it's -- the
game thing with respect tc what he 4did with respect to the
preperty and giving meoney to his brother fcor the Russell Recad
property. |

He has continued thrcughcut this case to ignore this
Court's jecint preliminary injuncticon which was issued at the
incepticn of this case. He continues to do this. And -- and
he should be the one that -- that pays any burden cr -- czr
takes the risk with respect tco that ncte, because you crdered
her the prcperty. Now they're saying Lynita, wait until
December cof 2015. She could have sold that property as socn
as the deed is signed. And sc he's -- he's reaping the
benefits cof 1it. He'll ccollect his eight percent. I'm just
simply asking that Your Honor enter an — and award and -- and
crder him tc pay a hundred and fifty-cne thcusand cne
sixty-six to Lynita feorthwith.

THE CCURT: I believe the -- thcse two properties,
did I include those in the value --

MR. DICKERSON: Yes, you did.

TEE CQOURT: -- when I did? I thcught I --

MR. DICKERSON: Yes.

THE COURT: -- had included those because I saw —-—
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MR. DICKERSON: They were --

THE COQURT: -- those when T --

MR. DICKERSON: They were in Mr. Rertch's (ph) --

THE CQURT: -- looked at my order and showed them on
Mr., -- my purchase report was showing that there needed to be
an cffset for that and I just did not address it.

MR. SOLOMON: Right, bkut that was at --

MR. DICKERSON: And Mr. Bertch -- and Mr. -—-

MR. SOLOMON: -- at the.end of 2011, Your Honor.

And these were sold in January of 2012.

THE CQURT: '12, January 23rd, vyeah.

MR. DICKERSON: Actually, Mr. Bertch's was not 2011
I don't believe.

THE COURT: No, his --

MR. DICKERSON: Mr. Bertch's updated continued to
update. At no time did Eric Nelson ever inform Mr. Bertch the
s£atus of those properties.

THE COURT: Okay. Well --

ME. SOLOMON: Your Honor, it is December of 2011. I
have just reviewed it, number one. And number two, counsel
never informed us of every expenditure that the LSN made --
Trust made throughout any of this divorce --

MR. DICKERSON: The only expenditure he has is the
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THE COURT: Let -- let him finish.

MR, SOLOMON: -- and to say that joint preliminary
injunction applies to the EILN Trust is simply wrong.
Otherwise, the Court wouldn't have had to enter its own
injuncticn in April of 2012,

THE COURT: All right. Here's -- here's what we're
going to deo. I've heard enough on that. What I'm going to do
is I'm going to award the note, the promissary note and the
deed of trust for the $88,166 to be transferred to Ms. Lynita
Nelsen's trust forthwith. That's $63,000. I'm going to order
him to pay her that $63,000. TI'm not comfortable that it went
to -- to pay for property. I have no idea. I'm not going to
look at acccounting to show where it went to.

Mr. Nelson has been controlling all the
distributiocns cr as far as all the property transfers, T
understand that. The fact as he sold that to Keith Little
(ph), one of his employees and now he's saying that that money
went to benefit Banjuan and stuff. I'm not sure if it did or
not. That would be subject to that money was all taken just
Lo benefit the Banjuan properties without a thorough
accounting. But to be honest, I think in fairness the 151 is
what I considered to try to equate the property at that time.

So I'm going tec order -- that's going to be crder of

this Court will be the 88,166, the promissary note and the
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deed of trust will be transferred to Ms. Lynita's trust. And
then the difference of that, the $63,000 will be payable by
Mr. Nelson to egualize that the $63,000 and we'll give you a
time frame by that as well.

The reason I did that with the findings I made and
with the money that was at 1.8 or whatever it was with
interest was to try to get it done once and for all and also
leave the significant lump sum that Mr. Nelscon could invest
and make money with that. That's kind of the reascn for my
decision on that to give them money for that trust to make
money con that with the money entered and not give it all out
in cash to the other side, because that would tie his hands
and that's kind of how I came up with trying to equalize all
of that. But I think the 63,000 you're entitled to and we're
going to talk about that in a sec as far as a time frame for
delivery of that.

But I think only fair on that since he made those
decisions, he should be responsible for some of those
decisions. And that's what I did for the equated the values.
I didn't look at what's increased or not, because things cculd
have gone down or up, but I'm going to do the 88,166 note and
promissary note to Ms. Nelson and the 563,000 would be a cne
time cash payment from Mr. Nelscon and we'll give a timing on

that as when that should be paid. I think that should be paid
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by the end of July as well and I'll hear their argument about
not having any money. I'll hear that in a sec, get the —--

MR. DICKERSCN: And with respect then to the
promissary note that assignment -- that will ke assigned
forthwith and I would ask that the court order also include
that any rents or any payments Mr. Nelson just received or the
trust has received on that note since June should also go to
Ms. Nelson.

"THE COURT: That would be the eight percent interest
that that would basically for June.

MR. DICEKERSON: Just -- just for months of June --

THE COURT: June and July?

MR. SOLOMON: Well, how about since June 3rd since
that was the date of the decree?

THE COURT: I'm okay with that.

MR, DICKERSON: The Court's intent was the June --
was that she received those monies for June.

TEE COURT: The -- the June and July.

MR. DICKERSON: June and July payments would go to

THE COURT: Did you receive payments on June and
July. Did you get the interest pavments on that, Mr. Nelson?
Did -~

MR. NELSON: Yes, sir.
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THE COURT: Okay. And we'll see if they can check
that out there. That's kind of -- it seems fair other -- the
thing would be the June and July --

MR. DICKERSON: The representations —-

THE COURT: -- plus the interest --
MR. DICKERSON: -- that were made.
THE COURT: -- that he got --

MR. DICKERSON: The representation --

THE COURT: -- he said it was payable. He said —--

MR. DICKERSON: Yeah, the representations made
earlier by counsel was that 1s a performing note.

| THE COURT: He said it's performing. All right. So

it would be the 88,166 to Ms. Lynita with the promissary note
and the deed. With the payments that he received from the
months of June and July and the eight percent I think it was
and then the $6€3,000 cash payment or other property which I'll
hear arguments on if thére‘s other ways they want to eguate
that, I'm fine. I just want to make -- try to get this done.

MR. SOLOMON: That's July 31 by 5:00 p.m., right?

THE COURT: Yeah, July 31st by 5:00 p.m. as well.
Again, pending any stay from the supreme court,

MR. DICKERSON: And again, then any payments that he
receives on these properties will be going to her.

MR. SOLOMON: I didn't hear that.
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THE COURT: ‘As of what for the --

MR. DICKERSON: Well, -- well, I mean, the -- the —-
I guess we can get into that.

THE COURT: Which payments?

MR. DICKERSON: I think it's more intc the contempt
motion is we know that he is continuing to collect these
monies. So he's collecting monies on this promissary note. I
would imagine that this promissary note that he's going to
recelve the payment for August. It's just that those monies
need to be turned over to Mr. Nelson when -- and he's
basically taking them in trust for her and -- and be paid to
her forthwith upon his receipt.

THE COURT: Because it's June and July and going
forward if he gets anymcre payments pending the estate.

MR. DICKERSON: And we're speaking the gross amount.

THE COURT: Any -- now you're talking just the rents
for this -- for the promissary note that you got?

MR. DICKERSON: Well, yeah, the prom -- that
promissary ncte -- we're going to get into the others with
respect to the properties.

THE COURT: Okay. Let me make sure -- okay. All
right. We're-clear on that one and by -- and the $63,000 by
July -- can you get that by July 31st? You want to argue on

that to see? Because I want to get this done on that. Now
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the -- as I said, there's that money that's sitting there that
needs to be résolved one way or the other, but that might --
it may or may not be resolved. I guess depending on what the
supreme court does.

THE COURT: And payment by the close of business,
July 31lst of the $63,000 difference.

MR. SOLOMON: So I just raised an interesting issue
and I don't know and that is does this Court have jurisdiction
with respect to the cash at this point now that that's been
the subject of a stay? I -- and it may not.

THE COURT: Now see what the supreme court has to
say but they --

MR. DICKERSON: But we know he has $500,000 --

THE COURT: He's got his interest.

MR. DICKERSON: -- that was his.

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. DICKERSON: All right. And one would hope --

MR. SOLOMON: And T think you're --

MR. DICKERSON: ©One would hope that they're at least
holding on the monies that -- that was -— that was ordered to
be distributed to her. |

THE COURT: But they indicated --

MR.‘DICKERSON: I do find i1t interesting --

THE COURT: ~-~- in their motion that the 500,000 has
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not been paid to Eric, so I woul& imagine that's sitting
there. But that's the way I read in the motion that said it
has not been paid to Eric when -- and when the opposgsition's —-=
so I assume the money is sitting there or I think it was the

MR. DICKERSON: I suspect that when I read motions
that counsel is owed in the neighborhood of 5400,000 if I'm
not mistaken on that number, I'm making a huge assumption that
they have been paid for those monies.

THE COURT: So basically you assume by this Court
having jurisdiction over that requirement. I'm going to order
tﬁe payment of 63,000 by the closgse of business July.31st, 5:00
o'clock and can argue to the supreme court and see what they
say and I'll entertain any post motions if they think there's
a lack of jurisdiction. I'11 be glad to entertaln that,
because of course if T lack jurisdiction, I don't have the
authority to do that. But I'm going to get this thing done.

MR. DICKERSON: Because there's monies to be paid by
Eric.

THE COURT: That by ~- by Eric Nelson.

MS. FORSBERG: Your Honor, those are trust
properties we're talking about. Now they're ordering it from
Eric Nelson. And I think —-

THE COURT: Well, he can --
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MSf FORSBERG: -- he's trying to stretch it again --

THE CCOURT: -- ha can --

MS. FORSBERG: -- like he did on the last order =--

THE COURT: He can talk to --

MS. FORSBERG: ~~- that he slipped in.

THE CCURT: -- Nola Harbor and ask her to give a
distribﬁtion. They could do that.

MS. FORSBERG: But the distribution would be through
him as Mr. Sclomon Just said it's —-- that she can't do the
distribution thrcough him through to her.

THE COURT: What I would need to do --

MS. FORSBERG: That's exactly what she's saying.

MR. DICKERSCN: The -- the 63,000 needs to be paid
by him, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Yeah, he can pay it on that, he can --

MS. FORSBERG: And we're disagreeing with that,
because it's property from the trust, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. Well, they got —-- unless the
supreme court stays on that, we'll direct that -~ basiczlly he
can pay 1t with the distribution to himself, have him pay a
distribution to him and he could pay it for that. That's an
easy way to do it, because the pesople —-

MS. FORSBERG: So you have to force the distribution

trustee to do such a thing like that.
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THE COURT: If they need to do on that, I believe he
can request a distribution and the distribution hasn't denied
any reguest he's done in the last three years we've been here.
So if he can reguest a distribution to himself to pay that so
he doesn't go to jail, it seems like it would do the same
thing they have been doing for the last five years. So T
don't See that being a problem. If they want me to order this
~- the distribution, vou want me to do that, T guess T can do
that, but T den't see the need to. T think he reguested
diétribution sc he can pay that 63,000 if lieu of going to
jail.or something, becauée you know we'll be here on a
contempt if it doesn't.

If you want me to order the trust, I think that's
what they were challenging if I had the authority to order the
trust to issue the distributions, that kind of -- but the
argument was 1f I had the authority to have them order him to
pay from that. But to me I'm crdering Mr. Nelscn to pay it
and T think he can request the distribution trustee to givé
him that 500 grand or whatever he has of his section in order
to avoid him being held in contempt. And they have never
disagreed and I know Ms. Harbor is the one T would doubt she
would deny her brother's regquest for distribution. They
haven't done it before. So to me if they did it, that would

be a way of just trving to block things and -- and I'll give
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you a chance to make your —-- again, that -- that gives you
more ammunition to put in the supreme court saying Sullivan is
getting crazy down there so you better do something. I'm just
trying to get these resoclved beczuse I think it needs to getr
ohe way or the other. The supreme court needs to --

MR, DICKERSON: And the final issue on the motion to
alter or amend, Your Honor, deals with the -~ the race track
in --

MS. PROVOST: Wyoming Downs.

MR. DICKERSON: -—- in Wyoming, the Wyoming Downs
race track. And I -- I leave that Your Honor teo cite. It
seems to me that the -- the easiest and simplest way is to do

what we suggest is just crder that half interest, 50 percent
membership interest in Dynasty Development Management, LLC be
distributed to each of the trusts, the ELN Trust and —— and
Lynita's trust.

The other option that you have there obviously is to

reopen that trial on that specific issue and allow discovery

to be conducted. Again, seeing how expensive this whole
process hasg been, I -- I think the simpler process is simply
to order that half the -- a 50 percent membership interest be
conveyed to each of the trusts.

THE COURT: My‘concern on that is I would not be

inclined to do that withcout further information, because I
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don't know where that meoney came from. I read your opposition
that that was a loan he teocok. It was well late in the —-- in
the litigation process, the same token. I hate to open up the
door and spend another hundred thousand deollars of discovery.
Sc that's my hesitancy, the same token. I don't think I have
enough of a trail where the mcney came, where it go.

As you notice in my decision, I tried to maintain as

much as possible the integrity of the trust to protect both

sides from third party creditors and that was the purpose.

I'm not just setting aside the trust to —-- to be -- to begin

with and I tried to trace money that fall -- that came from

one thing to another to try to do what was fair and just under
the trust while maintaining the trust. I didn't really get
into his -- as the cases I kind of followed money or
transitioned and said here's why I did this on this one with
the Wyoming. That came late. I don't know where the money
came from,

I did see the -- the attachment there, the -- the

races at the Wyoming Downs. It looks like it may be a -- a

good investment. He said it was a good investment when he did
it. But I would not be inclined just to give Ms. Lynita half
of that without evidence or some basis on why should be
awarded or anything on that that this Court can look at,

because I did maintain as much as T could the integrity of the
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trust to protect both parties from judgment creditors.

MR. SOLOMON: Well, T appreciate that, Your Honcr,
because frankly, we can't even fathom how she's entitled to a
piece of that. I know you haven't had the evidence in front
of you. We presented what we could. We gave you the c¢losing
statement. We'wve showed you it was -- or testified about it.
I'can bury Your Honor in whatever documents we have, but the
representations we made are accurate.

And that i1s this was acquired in January of 201Z2.
It was 100 percent debt financed with respect to the property
that was acquired. There is no community property interest
whatsoever used to acguire this property. It was a brand new

entity, & hundred percent owned by the ELN Trust that was able

toc acquire this property.on a very intense trustee where they

borrowed $700,000, had to pay back a hundred thousand dollars
immediately. So effectively, got 5600,000 out of the property
and used that in accordance with its terms to pay the property
price of $440,000 plus 40C - T'm sorry, 540,839 in settlement
charges and extensions. And then the balance was used to
maintain the property in accordance with the agreement.

Again, no community property was involved. It's a

new LLC created by a'separate entity, EILN, with & hundred

percent financing. And it's somewhat ironic that you did hear

the evidence that Lynita Nelson never wanted to have anything
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to do with gaming preoperties and here we are. That's what

they're asking for.

Eric and Dynasty Develcpment are licensed, gaming
licensed. This is gecing tec be a racetrack. She can't have a
50 percent piecé without being licensed in the first place.
But the fundamental guestion is why would she be entitled to
any cf it? She has no legal thecry cther than she wants to
consider anything that Eric did cor apparently the ELN Trust
did during the marriage prior to the divorce that somehow as
community property. And it's nect. It's simply nct. She has

no legal theory to an entitlement of that. She can't have an

entitlement to it even if she wanted it without getting

licensed. 2And I'm sure she decesn't want all the debt
asscciated with this including the extensive trustee I have
just menticned plus all the other expenditures that have had
tc have been made since that time to try and make this a
viable enterprise. And it's simply stated there's nothing in
this reccrd that supports any award cor any entitlement of
award to that new venture.

MR. DICKERSON: And T hear him talking about all the

money that is expended in the meantime to create this venture

when we hear him earlier say that we're cash poor, we don't

have meoney. And we alsc know that he has yet to respond to

the representaticn or my comments with respect to the payment
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of attorney's fees., T'm sure they have been paid 5400,000.
I'm sure that's happened. So, you know, as curious as to what
money is there and whether the -- the monies that you already
have directed should be paid to Lynita are going to be
availakle to do so.

Now he asked for legal theory. Your Honor's
decision in this case indicates that there's such a
commingling of the assets and these trusts that it is
essentially jointly owned community property going into each.
You found breach of fiduciary duty on Eric's part with respect
to monies. —-—- taking monies out of Lynita's trust and never
returning them. You've indicated that there was to be an
equalization.

So this property was acquired during the term of the
marriage. Under Nevada law, it 1s presumed to be community
property. That's the legal theory. And he acquired that
through the use of the credit that he has of the assets that
were in the ELN Trust. Okay. Half of those assets were
Lynita's based upon Your Honor's ruling.

So I would simply ask that however you care to
handle it, she i1s entitled to be compensated for the wvalue of
that asset.

THE COURT: Well, I would be inclined to see if you

can give some evidence to establish that. I'1l be glad to set
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it for a very short discovery period and a very shert hearing.
I'm not —-- it's not going to be a nine day trial. I'm talking
about, you know, an hour or twc¢ on that that -- te -- to trace
this, but with my -- I try to be real careful. I went thrcugh
the findings that -- that trace things specifically. The
WYoming, I didn't have enough information because I had a lot
of legal argument and a lot of briefing on that but never
really got to the bottom of it and some testimony by Mr.
Nelson. But I'11 be glad to open it up for a very short
discovery period.

I don't see a lot of discovery. I think you got the
documents already. I'm not sure what the discovery would be
other than documents. I'm not sure i1f yoﬁ need depositions or
not. Do you see a need for depositions? I don't know who
would you depose. I'm not sure if we need to talk to them
about them. Fine, Jjust so I can finally get this resolvéd one
Way or the other. I'll be glad to give you —-- that way we got
a nice record so people can take i1t up 1f there's any issue c¢on
that, but --

MR. DICKERSON: With respect to that issue of taking
issues up, I would ask that we treat it this way. And I'm
assuming counsel has no objection. Yoq have entered your
decree of diveorce., I would like that to be considered the --

the final order. I would like —--
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TEE COURT: Is it --

MR. DICKERSON: -~ this to.be treated as a motion to
have an equal distribution of undisclosed assets or asset --
because under Amy (ph}, assets that were not included in the
decree so that we have a final decree of divorce and they can
do with that whatever they would like. And then we can have
this issue dealing with this property treated separately.

TEE COURT: And that -- that --

MR. SOLOMON: T don't think the Court has the power
to deo that, Your Honor. T wish it did, but it doesn't have
the power to do that. That's like bifurcating the property
issues. It can't. And --

MR. DICKERSON: It is not --

MR. SOLOMON: -- the supreme court would never
consider that a final order. They would never --

MR. DICKERSON: Well --

MR. SOLOMON: -- consider that a final order until
you dispose of all the assets —--

MR. DICKERSON: I'm not so bold.

MR. SOLOMON: I mean, an Amy issue is totally
different. That's where you don't have that issue tendered
because you don't know about it until later. That's a whole
different ball game.

THE CQURT: Yeah, as far as what the supreme court
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would do and not do, I don't know, but normally Amy is the
undisclosed asset here. It was the —-- the asset was
disclosed, but the fact is that's why I made my finding. That
way maybe T should have been more specific to make it clear
that I was without sufficient information regarding the
details to make any determination 1 thought was falr and Jjust
on the disposition that property because I did want to.
consider all of the evidence on that. |

T don't know 1f I could consider that a final order
or not. I mean, I would like to get this done so you don't
sit there and tie everything up. I'm sure the other side may
want it tied up more and more just to get 'er done, but I
would like to treat it as an undisclosed asset. I'm not sure
if I can to be honest. I just don't know since this is kind
of came up that.

MR. SOLOMON: 1It's in your decree.

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. DICKERSON: We will --

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. DICKERSON: -- include that in the order.

THE COURT: I just don't know 1f they can -- and to
be honest 1if they can do that, because the fact 1t was
addressed spec;fically in my decree, so 1t wasn't an

undisclosed asset. I just don't know. T think in fairness of
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equity and justice my intent would be to consider that a final
order and do this as separate, but I'm just not sure if that
would hold up to be hcenest under scrutinyl But that would be
my desire just to try to get this done for the other issue,
because it may not become another issue if I find out that
it's -- they don't have an interest on that. Of course, they
-—- they may appeal of course on that, but at least he gets it
resolved one way or the other.

So I would be inclined to try to treat it under Amy.

I just don't know if that would hold up to be honest, because

I haven't researched it. I haven't researched it.

MR. SOLOMON: What -- what do you mean to prepare
the order? What -- what —-- |

'MR. DICKERSON: We'll —— we'll prepare the order

indicating that he is construing --

THE COURT: The judge --

MR. DICKERSON: -- that portion of our motion as it
would be a motion under Amy for an asset that has not been

covered under the —-- the decree and that -- and but his intent

MR. SQLOMON: 2And he's granting that? I mean --
MR. DICKERSON: His intent and -- noc, he's -- he's
setting the evidentiary hearing on that --

VTHE COURT: Yeah.

D-09-411537-D NELSON 07/22/2013 TRANSCRIPT (SEALED})
VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC (520) 303-7356

54
AAPP 4929




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

MR. DICKERSON: -~- issue alone.

THE COURT: Yeah. I said I would be inclined to
grant —-- maybe put the wording that way. I would be inclined
to treat 1t ag an Amy motlon as an undisclosed asset. At
least you get discovery on that. And by that time, we'll see
where we're at, becauée it may resolve 1tself, whatever
happens with the supreme court. I mean, that may go there,
but that would be my inclination to do it. T Jjust don't know
1f that would hold up and maybe you can certify -- yeah.

MR. SOLOMON: That's why I don't understand. Mr.
Dickerson is frying to take your inclination and saying --

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. SOQLOMON: -- that's going to become the order.
And I don't think that's what you're saying, so I think we're
in an order --

MR. DICKERSON: We have to have an order

MR. SOLOMON: -- we're on different --

MR. DICKERSON: We have to have --

MR. SOLOMON: -~ levels here.

MR. DICKERSON: ~-- an order that they can take to

the supreme court and say you can or cannot do that.  So --

THE COURT: Let me -- okay. So you guys —- let's do
this. I'm going to make a determination and give 1t to you
and let them appeal it ig what -- I guess it's another option
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T guess is denled. How long are you seeking for this
discovery?

MR. DICKERSON: I ~- I would ask if you can set the
-— 1f you can set the evidentiary hearing in 90 days and --
and give us the next 60 days to get the discovery.

THE CCOURT: Okay. Let me see what they got and see

what they -- I want to get this done as often as everyone else
does .

MR. SOLCMCN: I =-- I know you do. I --

THE CCOURT: I just don't -- you know, I would be

inclined to order mine as a final order and then used just as
in Amy for undisclosed assets just to try to get it ﬁoving
forward. My thing is I don't know if I'm comfortable putting
it in an order, because I do have some reservations that I
haven't looked at it. But that goes to my intent when I did
the order was I haven't done any decision that knowing that,
but I was hoping that wasn't going to delay everything. And I
did consider that at the beginning that may tie things up,

because there wouldn't be a full distribution of all the --

MR. DICKERSON: The -- the issue we're —-
THE COURT: -- the properties.
MR. DICKERSON: -- dealing with obviocusly if we got

discovery out today, they got 30 days. I would like to take

Mr. Nelson's deposition.
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MR. SOLOMON: Is the sole issue the acquisi --
whether or not the acguisition is -- is community property?

THE COURT: I don't think -- they're trying to argue
that the whole thing is Dynasty is party community property or
the acquisition -- I -- I imagine they're trying to argue that
the whole.thing should have been community property as far as
Dynasty. Is that your position that basically Dynasty should
have been deemed community property from its onset?

MR. DICKERSON: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. DICKERSON: It's no different than any other
asset that's in any of those trusts.

ME. SOLOMON: Well, I want to limit it to the
acquisition of that asset. Is that where we are?

MR. DICKERSON: I don't understand what you're
saying.

"MR. SOLOMON: Well, I don't think you're entitled to
all the books and records of everything that's gone on with
respect to that entity there -- thereafter —-

MR. DICEKERSON: Why not?

MR. SOLOMON: -- until you determine whether or not
there is any community property interest in it.

MR. DICKERSON: But it has a value. I mean, we have

every right to know that.
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THE COURT: But how -- when was that created? I
mean, are we talking 10 -- I -- I have no idea when that was
created.

MR. SOLOMON: Anywhere this year, wasn't it?

MR. LUSZECK: ©No, 2012.

MS. PROVOST: It was last year.

MR. SOLCMON: I can't hear you, Eric. 1I'm sorry.

THE CQOURT: Yeah, let him sit -- yeah.

MR. SOLOMON: I know they are adamant they didn't
want it bought. 1 mean, that -- that wasn'f argued hefore
Your Honor until we acquire it =--

THE CQURT: Yeah, it may be --

MR. SQLOMON: =-- with borrowed funds.

MR. DICKERSCN: My records, 1t was sometime in early
2012, I believe.

THE COURT: Now here's what —--

MR. SOLCMON: It was early 2012Z.

THE COURT: If -- if we can get it out -- if we can
give you 60 days for discoﬁery, can we —- can we do an
evidentiary in 90 days just as to that? So that'll give you
enough time. You can file your discovery request. If vou got
concerng, yvou don't want him to, just file for protective.
I'11l look at it and see what issues and I don't want them

going on a fishing expedition, the same token. I want to see
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what documents they may or may not need, because I'm focusing
right now on the acquisition itself, but I don't -- I don't
want to by them either so that they said they didn't have a
chance to fully explore their theory of the case. But if —--
if T give you -- how long do you need for discovery? If I
glve you six days, will that give you enough to be ready in 30
days just for that limited issue?

MR. DICKERSON: Yes.

THE CQURT: QOkay. Let's see if we can get that
resolved.

MR. DICEERSON: Also I would ask that if ybu were.to
have the discovery cutoff to 15 days prior to the —-- the
evidentiary hearing date, so that would give us roughly ==

THE COURT: 75 days.

MR. DICKERSON: == 75 days.

THE COURT: wWould that work for you, counsel? Want
to look in vour calendaxr?

MR. SOLOMON: Yeah, we're in the middle of a major
trial at that point, Your Honor. And then T -- November I
leave for a three week wvacation. So I --

MS. PROVOST: TIt'll be in December.

MR. SOLOMON: -- I don't see any time until December
to hear this. |

THE COURT: Ckay. Here's what we'll do on that.
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The --

MR. DICKERSON: How about before?

MS. PROVOST: You're going to kill us.

THE COURT: Okay. Well, here's what we'll do as far
as this what we're going to do. I'm going to consider my
divorce decree a final order, consider this under Amy. The
reason for that, then I don't care if it -- if it takes 1t to
December. I don't care in that sense because it gets it
resolved. It gives counsel a chance to look at that issue.

It won't negatively impact anyone. It gives them a chance to
challenge that order. But that was my intent. I did not have
enough with the Wyoming to -- to make a decision. I didn't
want to delay this any longer because it has been going on
forever. So my goal was to get it moving and felt we could
deal with Wyoming later on if it was an issue. I thought
maybe it wouldn't be an issue. So it wouldn't be there. So I
wasn't worried about it tying up there.

But in this case, it is an issue. And with the
discovery in effect that counsel is indicating that it had
been a tough spot and you're in leaving in November. S0 what,
if you did it in July you said you -- ﬁe've got —-- what's -
today, July? So we're already almost August. S50 in July,
August, September, October and you said you're going to be —-

MR. SOLOMON: Cctober i1s wiped out on a trial.
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THE CCURT: And you said November is --

MR. SOLOMON: November I'm gone ==

THE COURT: COkay.

MR. SCLOMCN: ~- until the last week.

TEE CCURT: Ckay. I think in fairness, then let's
-— I'm going to have you put in the order that the Court's
going to consider its == this divorce decree as a final order.
We'll address this under Amy as an undisclosed asset, that way
it won't delay everything until December and that seems --
that would be the fair way to give everybody a chance to loock
at it and give us any chance if we need any motions and to
limit discovery and things like that. It gives everybody
chance so we're not Jjust scrambling. Because I'm trying to
get this done the best I can. I think that's the fairest to
do it and you can take all those issues up and if they think
it's appropriate, so bet it, but otherwise, you're never going
to get this thing done. Does that work for you, counsel, if
we did in December then sometime?

MR. SCLCMCN: I can't agree to that for the reason

THE COURT: ©No. WNo.
MR. SOLCMCN: -- you stated, Your Honor.
THE CCURT: This says December. No.

MR. SOLCMON: I understand what you're doing.
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THE COURT: Yeah, I mean, just for the time frame.
I'm just trying tc give you a time frame fcr those reasons so
the supreme court know what T'm thinking. That's why 1'm
doing it, because otherwise it's going tc tie us up intc next
year before we get anything moving. But I will note that you
may disagree with the legal basis for that and I respect that.
But that's the reason for extending it then tc the December
date. Let's give you discovery. Did you want a specific
discovery cutcff time or do you want me to de it 15 days
befcre the --

MR. DICKERSON: Let's dc it 15 days before the
evidentiary hearing.

THE COURT: Dces that work for you, counsel?

MR. SOLOMON: It doces.

THE COURT: Okay. Let's give -- let's lock at an --
an evidentiary hearing in December that I have some time and
we'll get some dates with the counsel and then we can get the
15 day cutoff.

MR. SOLOMON: I think so.

THE COURT: Do you see -- do you see just an
afternocn being encugh?

MR. SOLOMON: Yes.

MS., PROVOST: Uh-huh (affirmative).

THE COURT: A half a day should be encugh.
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MR. SOLOMON: And this goes off in summary judgment,
Your Honor, because I don't think they have an evidence --

TEE CQOURT: Yeah.

MR. SOLOMON: -- nor can they obtain it --

THE COCURT: Yeah, and that gives some time --

MR. SOLOMON: -- other than what they already know.

THE COURT: Ckay.

MR. SOLOMON: That's purely a legal 1ssue of whether
or not they get a community property interest.

THE COURT: If I get you a cuteff in 15 days from
this before, does it give you time to file all your motions?
Okay.

MR. DICKERSON: Yes.

THE COURT: It doesn't matter. We'll make it work.
I'll just cut other things out. It doesn't matter.

THE CLERK: December 11.

THE COURT: Does that work for everybody, December
11th?

MR. SOLOMON: Your Honor, T apclogize. T left my
vhone in my car. Tt has my calendar on it, but I'1l --

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. SOLOMON: -- I'll assume it is and —--

THE COURT: Let's put it December 1llth.

MR, SOLOMON: -- if there's a problem, I'll let you
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know.

THE COURT: If there's a problem, let us call my
chambers and I'11 have my law clerk coocrdinate with all the
attorneys and get a new date if -- if that decesn't work for
everybody. |

THE CLERK: at 1:307

THE COURT: December 11th at 1:30 and we'll give you
the whole afternocon.

MR. SOLOMON: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: And again, if there's any prcblem, let
me know and we'll move things around, because I need to get
covers for my calendar which I'11 do. And then we'll have
discovery —-

MR, SOLOMON: And the —-- the discovery cutoff befcre
Thanksgiving sc we don't have to worry about that?

MR. DICKERSON: Sure.

THE COURT: Okay. 3o the discovery you want to
cutoff that Wedngsday before Thanksgiving? Isg that the easy
way to do it? We'll have discovery cleosed. When is
Thanksgiving? You got a —-

MR. SQOLOMON: When is Thanksgiving?

THE CQURT: That's the Thursday? So i1f we have
cutoff -- cuteff November 27th at 5:00 o'clock, that would be

the Wednesday before Thanksgiving. Is that --
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MR. LUSZECK: Yeah, I prefer the Friday before if
possible. They've already got way more than 20 days now.

MR. DICKERSON: I don't care.

THE COURT: So that -- so the Friday before would be
what?

MR. SOLOMON: The 22Znd.

MS. FORSBERG: The ZZnd.

- MR. LUSZECK: The 2Znd.

THE COURT: The 22nd. All right. We will have
discovery clcsed 5:00 p.m. November 22nd and that'll give you
time to file any motions that people want prior tc the
December 11th hearing. Does that work for evervykhody as far as
the time?

MR. DICKERSON: That's great. Thank you.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. And now are we at the
contempt state or where are we at as far as the —-- because I
know the trust doesn't really have a position I don't think_on.
the contempt thing. Is there anything else I have missed?

.MR. DICKERSON: No, T think we did every issue with
regspect to the motion to alter or amend.

THE COURT: T guess now we're on the reguest for the
contempt. I'll leave it to the Trust if they want tc hang it
or not, because I'm lcok --

MR. SOLOMON: She's asked ycu to stay on cne issue,
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but --

THE COURT: Ckay.

MR. SOLOMON: -- can I have the ability to review
and to sign off on that order that --

THE COURT: Absolutely.

MR. SOLOMON: -- Mr. Dickerson is preparing?

THE COURT: Absolutely. Yeah, that goes without
saying that we'll have Mr. Dickerson on the =- on the motion
on —- to —-- to draft the order, get it signed off to make sure
counsel agreed that that is indeed what the order was of the
Court. And then if you guys can't agree, just submit both
proposed orders if we have to or I'll try to decide it for you
if we can't get there. Okay.

Now I think we're at the contempt, i1s that -- okayf
TLet me grab my notes from the -- this ig set for an order to
show cause on shortening time in order to address why Mr.
Nelson should not be held in contempt for basically number
one, failure to pay the child support for Garett and Carli for
the month of June and also then to pay the child support going
forward as of July 1lst as to Carli. And then as far as the
Banjuan, LLC properties for the interference to collect the
rents owed since the June 3rd, 2013 and then‘the last one
deals with the order for the $1,032,742 and the payment to

Tarry Bertch was -- I believe is pending before the supreme
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court right now. That's the one that they did -- of course,
they didn't stay that. They stayed the up -- the --

MR. DICKERSON: they stayed the trust.

MS. PROVQST: They stayed and as to the trust.

THE COURT: -- expedited playing, yeah.

MR. DICKERSON: They only stayed the trust, Your
Honor.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. DICKERSON: I was handed an opposition -=

THE COURT: Ckay. Yeah.

MR. DICKERSON: -- this was sat out in the --
outside here this afternocon just prior to these proceedings.

THE COURT: Okay. I will not in fairness to Ms.

Forsberg that I did on a very order shortening time. I don't

know if you even had time to respond, but since you were
coming here, I figured to be there. And if you needed more
time, I'll give you more time to respond. So I -- do you

understand the late notice?

M3. FORSBERG: And our office flooded. I had to do

it en a thumb drive on a little --
THE CCURT: Okay.
MS. FORSBERG: —-- so --
THE CCQURT: I'll just put that for the record. I

don't think there's anything that you waited to the last
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second to get it. I was surprised you got them -- to have
them filed that guickly to be honest. I was just trying to
get itrdone. I didn't know if they even -- I anticipate you
may come and ask for orally to request more time to respond,
but since you got it, that's great. So --

MR. DICKERSON: I was actually --

MR. SOLOMON: I'm sorry, may I ask —--

THE COURT: Sure.

MR. SOLOMON: =-- one thing? The only portioﬁ of
this coﬁtempt motion --

THE COURT: You like --

MR. SOLOMON: -- that we're interested at all is
with respect to that million doilars. Can we —-

THE COURT: Let's do that first.

MR. SOLOMON: -- do what we did before, take that
issue first and --

THE COURT: So you guys can leave then?

MR. SOLOMON: —— then we'll —- we'll leave after

that?
MR. DICKERSON: I -- T would just point out with
respect to the -- the opposition was filed -- obviously you

were looking for a response from Fric Nelson. You have yet to

receive that. The -- the affidavit is signed by Rhonda

indicating that Mr. Nelson is out of town. It is signed by
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her today. It was filed at 10:00 a.m. I don;t know. Maybe
he moseyed here into town at noon hour, who knows. My
understanding he‘was in town over the weekend, so whatever.

The issue that we're dealing with, vyou know, you
entered an order on June 19th. And that order that vyou
entered on June 19th indicated that the monies that were being
held in Dave Stephens' trust account of that 1.568 million
that 31,032,742 was to be distributed to Lynita and $35,258
was Lo be distributed to Larry Bertch. Okav.

The second part of that order indicates it is

further ordered that if said $1,568,000 or any portion thereof

has already been transferred to Plaintiff Eric Nelson and/or
the ELN Trust, the EIN Trust and Eric shall pay to Lynita or
her attorneys the sum of $1,032,742 and shall pay to Larry
Bertch the sum of 35,5 -- $35,258 within 24 hours of the
preparation of this order upon Eric's and the ELN Trust's
counsel of record in this matter.

Now after the trust filed a writ with the supreme
court, Your Honor sua sponte vacated the hearing that was set
on this. But this order required Eric Nelson to pay the money
also. Eric Nelson has nothing pending before the supreme
court. Eric Nelgon personally should be ordeﬁed to pay these
nonies and we knoﬁ that Eric Nelson as the investment trustee

of the ELN Trust has full control and authority to distribute
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the assets. We know that money is at least sgpposed to be
sending in at least that's the representations that have been
made by -- by counsel

So we look at their opposition and it says here Eric
is not the distribution trustee of the ELN Trust and does not
have authority under the trust to distribute such fuﬁds to
Lynita. In additien, the trust heard testimony for days as to
the fact that these parties do not have such vast bank
accounts in their own names. Eric currently has less than
510,000 in cash.

We know that Eric deals in cash and that's going to

come up here later with respect to monies that he is given for

-— well, we see he gets his cashier's checks for tuition and
what have you. But the court order specifically ordered Eric
to pay theose monies over to Lynita and that was to be paid 24
hours from the date of that order. That was June 1%th. As of
this date, he still has not.

So I == I had asked that he be held in contempt to
that, that he be ordered that -- that he be given 24 hours to
distribute those monies to her, that we reappear before Your
Honcr tomorrow to determine if those menies have been made.
And if not, I would ask that he be incarcerated until he
purges himself of that contempt and pays those monies to her.

- That goes to the same with respect Lo the monies
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that vyou ordered that he pay her today, that he also - - I —-- T
believe you've given him until the end of the month on that.
S0 obviously we can't deal with -- with that.- But here we're
are. We're now well in excess of 30 days when Your Honor
first directed that he pay those monies to her and you have to
do it.

THE COURT: Thank you. Ms. Forsberg.

MS. FORSBERG: Your Honor, a couple things about
that. First of all, I think it's wvery shameful of Lynita
and/or her counsel to try to trick this Court. Of Page 17 of’
the transcript, Mr. Dickerson stated that he's here to make
the ELN Trust pay her those mcnies immédiately and has an
order to that effect. Then he slides that in. and then -- then
gets 1t past everyone, because we never got to see that order
if you recall before it was ever signed, Your Honor. So that
is the first issue.

The other issue is that -- that i1t was specifically
—-— and then Mr. Nelson of course was out of town. As far as
the other complaint that Mr. Dickerson has about Mr. Nelson
not signing the affidavit, as you know, it was on short time.
He was in Brian Head that weekend. I actually was out of town
as well. T had to do this at 4:00 in the morning. 8So
clearly, T couldn't -- he was actually driving when I emalled

it to him, read -- and made sure he read it thoroughly.
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A couple of other issues about that, Your Honor. As
far as the distribution trustee, like you said and like even
he said, it would have tc be distributed to Eric first and not
to —- not to Lynita directly. The problem with that is also
this, Your Heonor. You made a comment about well, she's never
—- they never said no. You made that comment. However, these
trustees now have been go educated by all these counsel,
right. We have had four years of education on it. They're
suppcsed to be protecting those children's trust, because
everybody seems to be forgetting a big part of these
beneficiaries are their children and that that's who we're
supposed to be protecting part of this trust for. Tt's not
just for these parties. It was alsc set out for these
children.

So that is the big part cof the issue, Your Honor, is
that they -- you have educated these trustees more than
probably any other trustee T know in this valley because of
this trial. 8So for us to make this thing they haven't done it
before, well, it doesn't mean they're nct geing to do it now
because now they -- even understand even a greater burden that
being a trustee has for those children. I think they're —-
it's very clear.

So crdering him to corder her to pay him isn't a -- a

likely event. And this Court didn't -- wasn't trying to. I
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don't believe in any sense of the world that this Ccurt was
trying to incarcerate Mr. Nelscn. You crcdered tc come out of
those funds. You were specific about those funds. And now
for Mr. Dickerson to turn it arcund on this Court, I think
that's abominable. It shculdn't have been ——‘be tolerated aﬁd
it shouldn't happen before this Ccurt. And the way that
treatment is, you know, it's -- it's trickery at its best.
And Mr. Dickerson is great at that. I give him kudecs for
that, however, 1t shouldn't be tolerated by this Court. The
Cburt crder in the divorce decree says that théﬁ meoney will
come out of that.

Well, ncow that a stay wés crdered on that mcney, the
supreme court specifically ordered that money stayved. So now
they want to do an in run around the supreme ccourt. It
shouldn't be tolerated, Your Honcr.

MR. SOLOMON: All right.

THE COURT: Mr. Dickerson. Or do you --

MR. SOLOMON: Tet me comment cn behalf cf the Trust
and then --

THE COURT: Yeah, we'll let Trust be heard on that
and then we have rebuttal.

MR. SOLOMON: The -- the divcrce decree orders that
meney to be paid by the ELN Trust out of the 1.5 millicn

dollars as the Court clearly knew. Somehow the June 19th
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order was entered. I wasn't here. I -- I was teld -—- ncbody
got to see it.. They brought the canned order with them and
they submitted it tec the bench without anvbody seeing it and
threw in Eric Nelson as -- as somebody was suppesed to make
that payment. I don't think that was the Court's intent. The
Court expressly intended that that come out of the 1.5 million
dellars that's owned by the trust.

When a order is entered like that, it caused us to
gc to the supreme court and Your Honcr knows the issue. Our
position there was that that court needed to stay that order
until it determined whether or not the trust was liable for
the payment of the perscnal expenses that that was
representing which was alimony and child support and
attorney's Lees and Mr. Bertch's feeas.

Clearly, trust law contrary toc what Mr. Dickersocon
says 1s that when you have a self-settled spendthrift trust
and ordered teo pay something ocut cof it, i1if that order is for
the personal obligaticn of the heneficiary, then it requires
the distribution trustee to act upon it, because that's the
same thing as paying the beneficiary directly. So the
distribution trustee is the one who has to sign or give
authority to make a distribution that's satisfying an
obligation or persocnal obligation of the beneficiary, paying

its perscnal cbligations.
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The supreme court stay is on behalf of the trust.

It doesn't matter what capacity -- whoever is in with respect
to who brought that issue up to the supreme court. That Court
has stayed until it hears the merits of that writ petition any
reguirement of the trust having to take mcney out of that 1.5
million dollars and satisfy that obligétions. Can't run this
by saying well, we alsc in this order of June 19th slipped in
Eric and now Eric is a dis -- is an investment trustee. So
we're going to enter an order that Eric somehow violate the
terms of the supreme court order and take the money out of
there and meet this obligation. We submit simply no kasis tc
do that.

And if Eric 1isn't -- that been ordered to pay it and
he has the money, that's their issue. But with respect to the
trust, we sukbmit this Court cannot enter an order that has the
effect of unwinding the stay that the Supreme Court of Nevada
granted with respect to the 1. -- 1.5 million dollars.

THE COURT: Thank you, counsel. Rebuttal, Mr.
Dickerson?

MR. DICKERSON: I'll show you Judge how I tricked
everybody here. We filed a motion with the Court on June 5th,
2Q13 entitled motion for payment of funds belonging to
Defendant pursuant to court decree to ensure receipt of same

and for immediate payment of court appointed expert.
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This motion was served upon both these able counsel
to sit here today and accusing me of trickery. But if we take
a look at what the purpose of the motion was where it --
moving the Court for the following, one, an order directing
that $1,032,742 and $35,258 be paid directly to Lynita and
court appointed expert Larry Bertch from the £1,568,000 being
held by Dave Stephens, Esquire in accordance with the Court's
decree of divorce entered on June 3, 2013. Number two, in the
alternative, if the $1,568,000 has already been transferred by
Mr. Stephens to iana Martin and the ELN Trust and/or Plaintiff
Eric Nelson for an grder directing Ms. Martin and Eric to
immediately transfer the sum of $1,032,742 to Lynita and
$35,258 to Mr. Bertch.

Now the order that we provided to you mirrors
exactly what our motion reguested. So the trickery that we
had, I don't understand. T would assume that they read the
mnotion or at least pretended to read the motion. I'm éure
they charged for it. So the motion is in -- in compliance
with what Your Honor ordered and what we moved.

| Eric Nelson -- we're simply reguesting that Eric
Nelson bé ordered to pay those monies forthwith. He can purge
himself of that very easily. They say that Eric Nelson can't
distribute the funds to himself or that it's essentially

distributing to him. We know that Fric Nelson pays all his
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credit cards from that acccunt. We know that Eric Nelson pays
for all of his expensesg within the trust. Heltravels on the
trust. He just came back frcm -- from Thailand. So Eric
Nelson has access to these. He is the distribution trustee.

The cnly thing he is prevented from doing is signing
a check for distribution to himgelf. We know that he writes
checks to his children who are beneficiaries under trust. We:
kﬁow that in the past he's written checks to Lynita during
their marriage who alsc was a beneficiary under this trust.
Sc¢ he can -- Ycour Honor has made the determination that those
menies belong to'Lynita. They're being held in that trust
right now, And we would ask that you perscnally impose that
obligation upon Eric Nelson to turn those funds over to him.

THE COURT: Thanklyou. As far as some cof the issues
that I want to get resclved, have ycu gcot the child support?
Their oppositicn is saying that he had paid cash tec give to
Ms. Nelscn. Do you dispute that? I den't know —--

MR. DICKERSON: Let me address that issue.

THE COURT: Yeah, let's go -- specifically, one was
that he first do the order for June to pay both children 2,080
I think it was. Yeah, Z,080.

MR. DICEKERSON: We filed our motion on July 10th,
What Eric Nelscn -- to this point, to this day, this very

second, Eric Nelscon has vet to write her a check for these
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monies. FEither the June child support payment or the July
child support payment or the July child support payment.

What I suspected is exactly what the response was is
that Lynita told her children that she did neot have the moenies
with respect to Carli. She did not have the monies to I
believe it was to put Carli through driving school.

MS. PROVOST: And -- and camp.

M&. NELSCN: And volleyball camp.

MS. PROVOST: And velleypball camp.

MR. DICKERSON: And velleyball camp. So she told
Carli that she did not have those funds availlable, so she was
golng to have tolcancel the volleyball camp and she was not
going to be able to enroll her in the program —-- the driving
-— driving school. B8he also was the one parent who was going
to be taking -- their -- their scon Garett =-- where was the
school?

MS. PROVOST: UPENN.

MR. DICKERSON: University of —-

MS. PROVOST: UPENN.

MR. DICKERSON: -- Pennsylvania?

MS. PROVOST: Uh-huh (affirmative).

MR. DICKERSON: So to take —-- take Garett to the
University of Pennsylvania is to have him see the school?

MS. PROVOST: No.
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MS. NELSON: He's going to school there.

MR. DICKERSON: ©Okay. So he's going to schooil
there. Tt was to get him acclimated in school and it was
determined that would be able to do that. But she didn't have
the funds to be able to do that.

So what Eric did is last Sunday, not yesterday, but
Sunday the 14th, and T have emails and I am so -upset at myself
that I didn't have them copied so that you could read them
yourself. DBut the sole issue that he was dealing with is that
she did not have the monies to do that.. Whether he wanted to
take their son back there or not, I don't know but the email
to her -- do you have it? I had it up and now I lost it. The
emails to her directed were -- were these. What he did 1s he
took cash, $5,000 in cash and gave it to one of the children.

MS., PROVCST: Ckay.

MR. DICKERSON: I'll have G, this is his email to --
I'l1l have G, that's Garett --

THE COURT: That's Garett.

MR. DICKERSON: -- bring over cash for you to
travel, $5,000. I'll have Carli -- this says being, B-T-E --
B-E-I-N-G, but I'm assuming that meant bring, I will have
Carli being 1,000 cash for travel tec BYU fee. Both today also
$600.for driving school. I'll pay balance if you help and

reduce schedule. Thanks. Carli will have $1600 for above, G
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will héve -- G £5,000 if you want to go. If not, he won't
give it to you.

So those monies were specifically for that purpose.
So ag of this point in time, he has yet to pay the child
support. Now as I understand their opposition, again, not
signed by Mr. Nelson, but it is that -- well, he's giving her
more than what he was ordered to pay and she could use those
monies for whatever purpose she wanted to notwithstanding the
fact that 1t was for Carli to go to volleyball school and it
was for Carli's driving school and the -- the other monies
were Ior ——.to take Garett back east.' Has that already
occurred with Garett?

MS. NELSON: No.

MR, DICKERSCN: No. OCkay. When is that coming up?

MS., NELSON: August 21lst.

MR. DICKERSON: So August 21st is -- is when she is
to be leaving with -- with Garett and then the volleyball
school already occurred and the driving school is just getting
started, 1is that correct?

MS. NELSON: It was for several different volleyball
camps and we did attend one.

MR. DICKERSON: OCkay. Do you mind standing? Do you
want her under oath, Your Honor?

THE COURT: No, we'll just hear it there and 1f I
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need to, then we do it, but —-

MR. DICKERSON: Would you explain to the Court what
those monies were for? Did you receive cash?

MS. NEL3CON: I did.

MR. DICKERSCN: Was it a total of -- of $66007

MS. NELSON: I believe that_éarli brought me $1800
and she specifically told me that she had to tell me what each
amount of money was for. And she neaded toe count it out and
that her dad had told her she needed to do it that way and had
written on a napkin each amount and what it was for as she
counted it cut to me.

MR. DICKERSON: And what Waé it for?

MS. NELSCON: It was for three #olleyball camps that
she wanted to attend. And I was told that T would receive-
money for the driving -- the remaining driving classes that I
had calendared, however, was later told that it was too
expensive and that he was not going to pay for it. So the --
that money that T received that day was for their camps only.
It didn't cover travel expenses to those camps completely.

MR. DICKERSQON: Tt was just the -- it was just the
-~ the fees of the tuitions --

MS. NELSON: Yes.

MR. DICKERSCN: -- for the -- is that a yes?

MS. NELSON: Yes. Yes.
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MR. DICKERSON: And then how about did Garett give
you any money on Sunday the -- the 14th of July?

MS. NELSON: He did.

MR. DICKERSCN: And how much --

MS. NELSON: In —--

MR. DICKERSON: did he give you?

MS. NELSCN: In the afternocn he gave me $5,000 in
$100 bills.

MR. DICKERSON: And what was that for?

MS. NELSCOM: He =-=- he first asked me -- came and
asked me if I wanted ~- if I wanted money from Dad and I told
him that I wanted to take to school. And that was my point.

MR. DICKERSCON: Get that.

MS. NELSON: OCh.

THE COURT: Oh, is that you? I thought that was me,
I thought my pacemaker --

MS. NELSCN: Excuse me.

THE CCURT: -- was going off.

M3. NELSON: Yeah, excuse me.

THE CCURT: I thought it was my pacemaker. That's
all right.

MS. NELSCN: Ch, no. Ckay. I'm sorry. He asked ms
if T -- 1if T wanted his dad to give me money so he could go to

school. And I told him that I would reply in this way, that I
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wanted to be able to take him to school. However, I wouldn't
ke able to do so now and that he would need to find another
way to go to go by himself or to talk to his dad.

And so he left and came back about 20 minutes later
and said did you want -- do you want to take me to school.

And I said you know, that I would love to take you to school.
And you said do you want Dad to pay for it. And I said that
-- that I would ncot ask him for that, that I would —-- that I
did want to be able to afford to be able to take him to school
and to buy things for school as well, because there were some
items that he wanted. And he said oh, I have some money for
you.

And I said so if I don't take you to school, then T
am not allowed to have the money. And he said no, you can
only have the money if you take me to school.

MR. DICKERSON: Now other than those monies that you
received from your two children on Sunday, July 14th, how much
-— approximately how much monies do you have Lo your name
today? Cash available. And any kind of bank account or
investment account.

MS. FORSBERG: Can Mr. Dickerson iepeat the
question? He's kind of backed and I can't really hear the
question --

THE COURT: Ckay.
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MS. FORSBERG: -—-— sorry.

MR. DICKERSCN: Monies available to you right now.

THE COURT: Yes, how much money she has available to
her right --

MS. NELSON: Not counting my credit card expenses?

MR. DICKERSON: ©No, I don't want your credit card --

MS. NELSCON: 2And just cash in the bank?

MR. DICﬁERSON: Cash in the kank.

MS. NELSCN: Maybe about nine or $10,000.

THE COCURT: Okay.l And what are your credit cards
charges?

MS. NELSCON: Over 50,000.

MR. DICKERSON: ©Nothing further, Your Honor. So
with respect to that issue, if -- who knows what he's going to
claim. Again, I'd -- I'd love to hear from him of what his
side of that is, but he's still at this point is in contempt.
He was in contempt at the time we filed the moticn and he's
not paying those. With respect to that you want to address
the other issues —-

MS. FORSBERG: Ycur Honor, if I can rebut that. I
mean --

TEE COURT: Let me get -- let me hear the child
support first and we'll go issue by issue.

MS. FORSBERG: A couple of issues about it. First,
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you would think that sheks not the parent here, that these are
just children that are running the entire show. She is the
primary custodian for her to decide what she wants to do with
her children. It is up to her.

Further, Your Honer, if you recall, your other order
has a ccuple things in it about the children. Has them
splitting half the extracurricular activity. And it alsc has
them splitting half the scheol. She alsc sent Carli with a
thing saying She‘é going to pull me out of school because
she's not going to pay the thing. We understand her position
to try to pull out his heartstrings. But I alsc attached the
copy of the payment for Faith Lutheran school that they had
agreed to.

Now she won't go to the parenting ccordinator; she
refuses. This Court had te find a second cone if you recall
and because the first one, Dr. Berguist (ph), gquit and said it
was because Lynita wouldn't ccooperate. |

MR. DICKERSON: No, Judge.

MS. FORSBERG: Couldn't even get a --

MR. DICKERSON: That is se¢ mis --

MS. FORSBERG: Your Honor, let me finish.

THE COURT: That's all right.

MR. DICKERSON: That's such a misstatement.

THE COURT: We'll finish this argument and then
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we'll hear from Mr. Nelson and then I'll give scome rebuttal.
But I gave her a chance to speak. 5o I want to give Ms.
Forsberg and I'll give Mr. Nelson a chance tc be heard on as
well.

MS. FORSBERG: So a ccuple things, Your Honor. IE
she went to the parenting coordinator instead of used her
children to send him cver to him, she can ccuch it anyway she
wants now. They brought her back $6800 in cash. She's the
parent. She decides what she uses for -- with these kids.
Did she tell tﬁem‘that she couldn't afford it? Yes. By her

own admission, she says I teld him I can't afford this.

You've got to you -- you know, I can't -- you can't go then.
So and then sent out -- as theyv're going out the door to Dad's
house.

Well, we're not fooled by that. You wind your kid
up and ycu tell.them,oh, I can't do this just as they're going
to visit Dad and what are you going tc get? You're going tc
have them trotting right over to Dad because she sent them to
troct over to Dad. Yeah, she might disguise it because she
didn't say gec tell your dad, but we all know how that wcrks
between parents that are divorced, Your Heonor, that that's
what happens, that you wind them up right before they go to
dad's and then they unleash on dad and then you have this

flashback.
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But the bottom line is by her own admissicn, she
receives $6800 in cash from him. She sent it with the
children. I'm —-- I'm going to have a talk with him about them
not passing things back and forth with the children, but as
you know, I had such shcrt time. I haven't had a chance to
talk to Mr. Nelson in detail abcut all those parameters. But

if they were using a parenting coordinator as they were

ordered to, this wouldn't be an issue, Your Honozr.

THE COURT: Why not just pay the --

MS. FORSBERG:l But --

THE COURT: Why not just pay the --

MS. FORSBERG: Let him --

TEF CCURT: -- child support?

MR. NELSCN: Ycur Henor, can I say one thing?
THE CCURT: Why not just pay the child support?
MR. NELSCN: Your Henocr, 1if I may.

MS. FORSBERG: And he did -- did that --

THE COURT: -- and dc the rest cash separately?
MR. DICKERSCN: May T address cne thing?

MR. NELSON: Let's just make it easy.

MS. FORSBERG: And he needs to —-

MR. NELSCN: I'll pay --

M3. FORSBERG: He gets to --

MR. NELSON: -~ $2,000 for June, I'll pay a thcusand
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for July and a thousand hereon out. I'll pay it Tomorrow to
her. This isn't -- I don't want a contempt charge, but I
didn't know this is even a beef about something.

THE COURT: So you can —-

MS. FORSBERG: Well, and he has paid more than that.
And what about her paying half the extracurriculars that was
part of your previous order, Your Honor?

MR. DICKERSCN: Judge, let's -- let's talk about the

MS. FORSRERG: She doesn't gef off scott free here.
She's a parent. |

THE COURT: So you're willing to pay the -- you owe
2,080 for June. You're willing to pay that you said and also
the thousand forty whatever it is for -- or a thousand
fifty-eight July? That's what they --

MR. NELSON: And yes, a thousand eﬁery month
thereafter. |

THE COURT: And a thousand fifty-eight I think is
what it was. So you're okay with that? That would put an end
to —--

MR. NELSON: That is finé.

THE COURT: -- contempt. When -- when can you pay
that by?

MR. NELSON: TOmMOYrow.
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THE

COURT: I appreciate it. By the close of

business tomorrow 5:00 o'clock that'll --

MR. DICKERSON: 2And I just want to respond to
counsel. It's -- counsel gets up and just whatever comes to
her mind that I'm -- I'm lying to the Court and my client's a
what —-- what have you. This is an emall that Lynita -- it's

dated July 11lth. It's sent to Eric and to Debra --

MS.

ME.

MS.

We don't know

MS.

THE

FORSBERG: Your Heonor, we have never seen this.
DICKERSON: -- Debra --

FORSBERG: We don't know if this is from her.

NELSON: It's off my phone.,

COURT: Well, the issue —-- there are some issues

about evidentliary and trustworthiness, but --

MS.
MR.
MS.
MR.

THE

MR.
THE

MR.

FORSBERG: There is evidentiary —--
DICKERSON: This is -- this is —-
FORSBERG: There is.

DICKERSON: She says —-

COURT: I'll give him a chance to make his point

DICKERSON: She says she doesn't communicate --
COURT: -- and then I'll resolve it.

DICKERSON: -- with Eric and she doesn't commit

any deals with this. The following will be cancellad at 5:00
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p.m. Should you want your children to have the opportunity to
continue the privileges of these and those that will follow,
provide cash to cover the costs and/or transfers that are
needed to be complete =-- needed to be completed and to my
house today, 8:00 p.m. July 1lth. Safeway Driving classes,
$3,000. She has taken five classes. Garett's phone
transferred or to a new account in his name or it will be
cancelled at 5:00 p.m. today. Carli's school tuition, if she
is to stay in Faith Lutheran. BYU volleyball Camp; $500. Dr.
Swetari (ph), $250.

So when representations --— I don't know where she
comes up with this whether it's just like invented like
they're going to stand up and just whatever comes out of my
mouth. She's communicating and that was through Debra Roberts
(ph} . Debra Roberts doesn't deal with the financial issues.

THE COURT: This appearing —— so the issue is the
one child's aged out. The other child is old snough that they
have to resolve —— if the issue i1s resolved, the issue of the
child supporﬁ. He's willing to make those payments by 5:00
o'clock tomorrow for the months of June and July and according
to the order. So that purges that contempt right there.

MS. FORSBERG: Your Honor, also that —- that she is
supposed to make half the extracurricular activities. I mean,

she can't unilaterally pull these kids --
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MR. DICKERSON: What extracurricular activities are
we talking about?

MS. FORSBERG: —- from —- from schools either. We
have a joint lega; custody situation. She can't just pull her
out of school without making some headway from it..

THE COURT: Now what happens in the future to decide
what's half of they're paying for that. As far as that, I
don't consider vollieyball camp or drive school -- that's for
parents to decide. You guys decide what the kids want to do.
Driving schocl is great and volleyball is great for the kids.
The issue is when it comes to extracurricular, I try to be
more generic, because I can't get in to parent the child on
that. Those are costs invelved on that. If they can agree to
that, fine. The issues of the child support are
straightforward and make your payments to child support -- for
child support. The other i1ssue is they can come in if they
feel scmeone's not paying their half of the extracurricular,
then that nice thing he -- he did get money, that's good that
the children were able to deo what they neseded to do no matter
what the Ciréumstances was that was done. I'm Just looking at

centempt. So he can purge any concern about contempt by

making those payments by 5:00 o'clock tomorrow. That will.

take the child suppert issuse off the table.

MR, DICKERSCON: Now the comment is made that she'sr
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not paying half of the extracurricular activities or whatever
else the Court ordered, but she can't do anything until your
decree 1s effectusated.

THE COURT: Exactly. Until --

MR. DICKERSON: She can't do anything. When she
goes around to the Banjuan tenants and sends letters to all of
them for the purpose of collecting rent and Eric and his
brother then go -- this ralses the next issue. And these are
the -- the exhibits that are attached.

THE COURT: About the Banjuan -

MR. DICKERSON: If you teke a look at Exhibit —- i1if
vou take a look at Exhibit —-- I believe 1t's Exhibit 2. Yeah.
I believe 1t's Exhibit 2 attached to our contempt meoction, Your
Honor. Lynita sent gomething similar to this exhibit.
Actually, it's Katherine that sent it on behalf cf Lynita to
each of the tenants of the preoperties that you awarded to her
for them to start paving rent to her for June.

Eric decides well, 1 don't care what the Court says.
I'm golng te do it differently and we see Exhibit 3. And he's
delivered a letter similar to this as we understand it tc each
and everyone cf those tenants that Lynita sent the monsy to.
Now we have tenants wondering what's going on, who do I make
the payment to. Eric has been collecting rents. My

understanding is he's gtill collecting the rents with respect
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to Lindale. She's not getting the monies. We ask that he be
held in contempt for this act. He's clearly in contempt of
the Court's orders. You awarded those properties to her. And
we ask that you hold him in contempt and that he purge himself
of that contempt by making all the -- the payments that he's
received for the month of June and July con any of the
properties that ybu have awarded to Lynita under the decree of
divorce.

Yeah, and —-- and then the second part of that is we
would like your court order specifically provide that she is
the individuals that's to be collecting rents on all of those
properties so we can provide that -- a copy of that order to
each of the tenants. And I prcbably would ask that that be
done in the form of a separate order, because I do intend to
provide these to each of the tenants.

THE COURT: Ms. Forsberg.

MS., FORSBERG: Your Henor, as you noted, the
properties haven't been transferred. You've given them until
July 31st to do so or until we get a stay, you know, the
timing with the stay. But whether there -- make a decision
one way or the other as Mr. Solomon mentioned it.

He was acting properly as his role as an investment
trustee. The properties are still in ELN's name. Banjuan 1s

still in ELN's name. They haven't been changed. At least we
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haven't received anything from Mr. Dickerscn that shows
they've been changed. We never received those latters either,

a copy of those letters to counsel prior to this filing of

‘Lthis motion which we didn't get until an CST was issued,

because 1t was done on an &x parte basis as vou know, Your
Heonor.

Sc clearly we would ask that -- as that moves
forward that you retain that until July 31lst tc determine if
the supreme court makes a decision on that as well.

MR, DICKERSON: Well, as the letter -- our Exhibit 2
shows a ccopy of sach of those letters that was sent to Mark
Scleoemon's office. He is the attorney for the Trust as we
understand it. So they have received -- or at least the --
the Trust has received copies of those letters.

-Now T don't know who Frig is acting on behalf of
when he writeg these letters to the tenants whether he's
acting on behalf of himself, because he has for his entire
life or is he acting on behalf of the Trust. But whether the
properties have been transferred immediately after you entered
your decree cof divorce, we seﬁt a letter to Mr., Sclomen's

office indicating that we would like toc set up a meeting as

soon as possible to effectuate the -- the terms of the —-- of
the decree of divorce including signing of deeds. We were
told that it was too early to do so. We -- they wanted to
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contemplate where they were going with this.

All right. Now for counsel to make the argument
that because they refused to sign deeds to the properties.
And so therefore title to these properties technically as of
this they still is -- are in the name of the ELN Trust that
she is not entitled to the rents of the properties that you
ordered her receive. I mean, that's absurd and that's exactly

what is being done here. And Eric Nelson is doing this on his

behalf.

And —-- and what's interesting is he.has his brother
also assisting him in doing the same things. So we would
simply ask -- he is clearly in contempt, absolutely intent --

and we would ask vou to find him in contempt, direct him to
pay all rents that he has received for the month of June and
July on any and all of the properties that have been awarded
to Lynita, have that done by tomorrow. And if not, then I
would like to have a return hearing so that you can
incarcerate him and he can purge himself of that contempt by
-— by paying her..

MS. FORSBRERG: Your Honor, there is no order that
says that Banjuan, LLC, which is an LLC, it's its own entity,
cannot continue to collect its rents on the properties that it
owns. There is no order to that effect. There is no such

order. You ordered that —- that when they all get transferred
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over. That's when it'll happen. It's as of now, Banjuan 1is
operating as Banjuan. Yes, Eric Nelson is part of Banjuan as
he is on part of the rest of the businesses that he's made
successful. So --

MR. DICKERSON: And what's he doing with --

MST FORSBERG: -—- that is the issue in this.

MR. DICKERSON: And what's he doing with the mcnies
that he's receiving?

MS. FORSBERG: There is no order that Banjuan, LLC
not collect. They -- did the Court not want anybody

collecting them? First of all, there is no transfers yet, so

THE COURT: But number one, we need to get those
transfers done pending what the supreme court ultimately does
on it. As faf as the rentals, the key was when I gave her the
properties that she would get the rentals. That was part of
what the settlement was of trying to determine how much money
she gets. 8o when T determine spousal support, I considered
what I anticipated her to get in monthly rents and T wasn't
sure what Banjuan would specifically pay and Lindale. But T
did consider that as part of the issue when T determined what
would be the fair amount for spousal suppoert. So I went
through that. So clearly it was my intention that she would

receive the rental benefits from those properties as of the
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date of that order and gave people 30 days te get all their
paperwcrk, whatever they needed te do. So it clearly was the
intent of the Court was that was part of her property
settlement pending whatever the supreme court does.

And so I think we need to get that done. I think we
ordered that to be transferred by July 3lst. So I'm geing to
maintain that order all those paperwork and the trustee that
we talked about from Banjuan and Lindale be transferred by
July 3lst pending intervention by the supreme court and
pending on anything they may do between that poeoint.

As of ﬁhe rental payments, I think she's entitled tc
the rental payments for June and July. I den't knew how much
that 1s. Alsc that has been -- I imagine there had been some
cecstes con that. I den't know what these costs are. That's the
problem is T don't knew what those ccsts are. The issue is
that property is geing to go to her and then she would manage

thcse preoperties accordingly and get the rentals --

MR. DICKERSCON: Well -- well, we -—- we would ask --
THE COURT: -- and pay the bills, sc I den't know
what -- what it was. But I need some accounting on that,

because she's entitled tc the rental payments.
MR. DICKERSON: I would ask that the gross amounts
be submitted and if he wants to deal with costs, then that's a

whole another issue. She is —--
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MS. FORSBERG: Your Honor, 1t should be net at the
very least. |

ME. DICKERSON: No.

MS. FORSBERG: You don't get gross.

MR. DICKERSON: When he viclates a court corder --

MS.. FORSBERG: There is no order that says Banjuan
is not to collect rent.

THE COURT: Listen up.

MS. FORSBERG: There is no such order.

THE COURT: TLet me see. T want the rentals, the
gross what they gave. TIf you got costs you think should be
deducted, let me know and --

MS. FORSBERG: Yeah.

THE COURT: -—-- I'11 lcok at that. But the issue is

this should have been done. We got the supreme court pending.

They can take care of that. But I'm going to order them —-- we
said when -- did -- did we give a status check for the —-
MS. FORSBERG: July 31st after -- you didn't give us

a date after July 31lst.

THE COURT: Let me get z status check on all of this
gstuff so we can get it resolved one way or the other. I've
got an order to be reimbursed for the rental payments for June
and July. Put down what the gross receipts were and show me

an itemized what costs went and I'1l be glad toc lcok at that
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and furnish -- because that was the intent was her to get that
property and then she would -- if it made money, great. If it
lost money, then she would lose money. But the issue is 1T
want it backed up with any costs you're claiming on that
because I'm going to be very suspect all of a sudden coming in
and then all of a sudden it doesn't make any money. If we
need some more things, then we will look at that to make sure
it wasn't all of a sudden —--

MR. DICKERSON: I suggest this that he --

THE COURT: -- all these costs got skyrocket.

MR. DICKERSON: -- that he -- that he be ordered
forthwith to pay the gross_amount of all rents that he's
recelved on the properties that go to her. He can then
provide us with a list of any expenses that he says that he
incurred with respect to those and we can address those -- if

-- the ones we disagree on, we can address with the --

MS. FORSBERG: You alreédy -— you have already ruled
on that. |

MR. DICKERSON: Excuse me. I'm not through,
counsel,

THE COURT: Let's not —-- let -- let him finish.
He's —- yeah.

MR. DICKERSON: I'm not through. And we can address
those a the time of the -- of the return hearing.
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THE COURT: Okay.

MS. FORSBERG: Your Honor, I would ask that you --
exactly what you Just said. We'll bring forth that on that
day, provide the amount. The Court can look at them, review
them, show that they're -- if they're legitimate or not. The
Court can tell that. It's certainly --

THE COURT: You'wve got an idea of what we're talking
about, Mr. Nelson? Not to put you on the spot, but do you
know what --

MR. NELSON: I'll know by July 3lst --

THE COURT: -- what the gross?

MR. NELSON: -- so I can have a full accounting for
it.

MR. DICKERSON: Well, what is she living on in the
meantime?

THE COURT: And so --

M3. FORSBERG: Well, she had 2.9 million dollars.

MR. DICKERSON: He's completely starved her -- he's
completely starved her out, absclutely starved her out and
that's the whole intent here.

THE COURT: Do you know how much we're talking about
for those receipts from June and July? I mean, are we talking
5,000, are we talking a hundred thousand? Do we know what the

gross receipts will be for July and August for Banjuan
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approximately?

MR. NELSON: Well, you're going to have -- you're
goeing to have a maintenance man of 3500 a month and you're
going to have a bookkeeping approximately 1500 a month.
That's five grand even before you get into --

THE COURT: Well, what would you estimate the gross
recelipts to be for June and July?

MR. NELSON: I wouldn't have that, because half --

she did collect half the rents and I collected some and some

MS. FORSBERG: That's the problem.

MR. NELSON: -- (indiscernible) been paid at all.
That's why I got to figure it out.

MS. FORSBERG: So the problem is she collected half
and we'll have to do that in accounting, Your Honor.

MR. NELSON: B8o --

THE CQURT: He —-

MR. NELSON: -- his total payoff between, you know,
between June and July and we can work it out, I'm trying to
figure out what they collected, because I don't know how much
Mr. Dickerson took in and how much Lynita took in, because
they both took money in.

MR. DICEKERSON: What she took in déesn't matter.

What he took in is what matters.
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MS. FORSBERG: It does matter.

MR. DICKERSON: What he took in is what happens.

THE COURT: Do you know what —-

MR. DICKERSON: And —-

THE COURT: —-- what we're talking about
approximately or‘no?

MR. DICKERSON: Do you have an approximate amount?

THE COURT: Do you know what -- what you're
anticipating for gross receipts from the Banjuan? Do you have
any idea? Trying to --

MS. PROVOST: Stand up and tell him.

MS. NELSON: Well, I can't tell you exactly what I
took in. I made several repairs, probably about $200 in
repairs.

"THE COURT: Okay. Okay. Here's where we're at.
We're going to order those June and July payments to be paid
for -- I'm going to put this -- I'm going to put this on --
are you guys available August 1lst? Because I intend to come
here and see everything to see 1f the supreme court has stayed
anything or not, come with your accountings and we'll be ready
to make payments right then and there. I'l1l make it clear to
evervybody. The supreme court hasn't stayed it, then I intend
to enforce my order fully just so everybody knows on that so

it's -- so -- okay.
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And that second, what I want is to get that
accounting, give everybody a chance, because I intent to get
orders right then and there and see, because that we're going
-— I know she's in a financial hardship, but I think nine
days, probably we can survive that nine days especially since
you're going to get a payment for the child support, not very
much,.but it will be the 2,080 and a thousand fifty-eight. It
will be 3,000 -- $3100 will be payable by 5:00 o'clock
tomorrow as we indicated. That would take you up for the June
and July for the child support.

The issues of the Banjuan properties, I'm going to
order those be transferred and the Lindale, all the deeds and
everything need to be transferred by the close of business
July 31lst at 5:00 o'clock and then we'll be right back here on
August lst. August 2nd I'll make a determination. I think
you are entitled to June and July rental payments. I want to
see what you got, what you didn't get, what the gross and see
what type of expenses they're asking and I'll make a decision
right on that date so we get that one done right then and
there.

MR. DICKERSON: Is there any chance you could have
it late on the day on -- on July 3lst? I am out of town from
6:00 a.m. August 1lst unpil August 5th.

MR. SOLOMON: Both of us are in a deposition all day
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on the 31lst, but we are available on the 1lst. You're --
you're not available at all on that day?

MR. DICKERSON: I'm not available.

THE COURT: Did you want to do it --

MS. FORSBERG: I'm availlabkle on the 1lst and the 2nd,
but the élst.

THE COURT: You're golng to be out all the way to
the 5th? |

MR. DICKERSON: Kathy will handle it. Kathy will
handle it.

THE COURT: Can you do that? And again, what I want
to do is try to get that and make decisions right there so we
get -- the supreme court may, you know, have already ruled on
that. My issue is to sit there and see comes out with the
June and July receipts, see what you got, what you got, see
costs and get that done and make a decision right then and
there, make that payable within 24 hours right then and there
and get that done and try to get this thing moving forward.

As far as the 1,032,742, I'm not inclined at this
time to order Mr. Nelson to pay that. The reason I think that
would basically circumvent what the supreme court is doing
with the‘trust. If the supreme court is going to do something
with the trust, so be 1t, 1f not, T'm golng to order that

payment to be made on that same time as well when we come in.
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If the supreme court hasn't stayed it, then I'm going to get
that done right then and there, everything on the 2Znd or 1st,
whatever 1t was.

MR. LUSZECK: That has been stayed already, Your
Honor, with respect to the -- approximately 1,000,000 bucks.

THE CCURT: That's been stayed with the 1,000.

MR. LUSZECK: Okay.

THE COURT: BRut not as to Mr. Nelson. That was just
as to the trust..

MR. DICKERSCN: Rut Mr. Nelson 1s personally
obligated on that.

THE CCURT: Yeah.

MS. FORSBERG: Your Honor, we've already had that --
will vyou repeét what you said? I1I'm sorry.

MR. DICKERSON: He's personally obligated on that,
S0 —-—

THE COURT: He's personally to pay on that before to
pay the 1,032,000 and have him take it from the trust. Won't
that defeat the whole argument that what -- what the trust
saying that the Court couldn't ~-- that that was trust property
and not his property?

MR. DICKERSCN: I don't think so. I think that ~--
that basically you —- his argument then is 1 amlnot in

contempt --

D-09-411537-D NELSON (7/22/2013 TRANSCRIPT (SEALED)
VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC (520) 303-7356

105
AAPP 4980




10
11
12

13

18
19
20
21
22
23

24

THE COURT: Because T can't pay it.

MR. DICKERSON: ~-- because I don't have the monies
avallable.

THE CQOURT: Yeah.

MR. DICKERSCN: Okay. And then we can address that
issue. But what —-- what -- the sole purpose of the —-- the
writ is they say that you lack jurisdiction to direct the
trust to do anything. You -- T disagree, but you certainly
have Jjurisdiction over -- over Mr. Nelson.

THE COURT: Well, T can direct him to pay it.

MR. DICKERSON: Yes, you could.

THE COURT: The -- the issue then it's a --

MR, SOLOMON: Only if he --

MR. SOLOMON: TIf he personally has 1t, I agree with
them, but he doesn't.

THE CQURT: Yeah, I mean that this —-

MR. SOLOMON: But —- and when you were back and
follow what Mr. Dickerson's argument was, i1f that's the way he
intended the order, that it was only if Eric Nelson has the

money then order him the pay, I don't have a problem with

D-09-411537-D NELSON 07/22/2013 TRANSCRIPT (SEALED)
VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LL.C (520) 303-7356

106
AAPP 4981




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21

22

23

24

that. But the way it's phrased is 1f Eric or FLN Trust has it
order both Eric and ELN Trust to pay.

MR. DICKERSON: What our motion said. OQur motion
and -- and --

MR. SQOLOMON: The motion is irrelevant. It's the

order.

MR. DICKERSCN: Well, the order -- the --

MR. SOLOMON: And the order is --

MR. DICKERSON: the order --

MR. SOLOMON: -- guoted in your =--

THE CQURT: Let him finish --

MR. SQOLOMON: -- petition --

THEE CQURT: - and then we'll gét some rebuttal.

MR. SQOLOMCON: And 1if it was intended as he said in
this argument that it was -- if Eric has the money, that's one

thing. The ?oint ig Eric doesn't have it. TIt's in the ELN
Trust and that's been stayed by the Court.

MR. DICKERSON: And we know that Eric has everything
that is in the ELN Trust. He has completed access to
everything in the EIN Trust.

THE CQURT: OQOkay.

MR. DICKERSON: Sco I -- I would ask that Your Honor
enter that order and then you can determine at that return

hearing whether he is in contempt. But I would ask that the
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order that you entered on June —-—

THE COURT: The June 1%th order -—-

MR. DICKERSON: =-- on June 19th remain in effect and
that he be ordered to comply with that by the close of
business on the -- on the 3lst.

MR. SOLOMON: If you have —- 1if you're ordering Efic
to do that, I'm not part of that argument, because I don't
represent Eric. If you're ordering Eric to do that as a
trustee, then I have a serious problem with that. It flies in
the face of the supreme court stay.

MR. DICKERSCN: QOkay. BAnd I —-- I would agree. I'm

asking that him individually be ordered to pay that, because

'he does have access to those funds as an individual.

THE COURT: OQCkay.

MS. FORSRERG: Your Honor, we disagree that he has
access to those funds as an individual.

THE COURT: Okay.

M&. FORSBERG: So I mean, it's already --

THE COURT: All right. Here's what we'll do.

MS. FORSBERG: —- it's already been part of the

trust issue, so --

THE CQOURT: We'll order him to pay it and then they
put off the contempt to show if he's got the ability and

willingness to pay it.
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MS. FORSBERG: And then you would have To set an
evidentiary hearing.

THE COURT: And the fact is -- exactly, we would
have to set it the 2nd for an evidentiary especially if you're
looking at jail. There's due process. They have to have the
chance to be heard. The supreme court may render that moot or
not, it depends. The issue of the supreme court says that
money of the trust and the money of the Trust on that, then
the issue comes to that -- does he have access to that money
to pay those bills, the reality of it. 1I'm not going to make

the trust pay it at this time because that would undermine the

whole thing that's going. But 1 think that is a personal

obligation he has to pay. Whether he's got the ability to pay

I guess is for contempt.

MS. FORSBERG: Then we would need tTo set an
evidentiary hearing for that. And then I -- are you plan on
setting that for the 2Znd as well? Becausse certainly --

THE COURT: ©No, we'll come in on August 2nd and see
where we at. We'll make the order that it's payable to the
sum of 1,032,742 and the sum of the 35,258. We'll come back
in on August 2and.

MR. DICKFRSON: Is it August 2nd we're —-- we're
coming back?

THE COURT: Whatever date we came -- we gave on 1t.
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Let's see where we're at and then if I need to set it for an
evidentiary, I will. TIf he's -- and file an evidentiary and
that issue would come then as does he have the ability to pay
and they'll argue it's in the trust and we'll hear all that,
because the supreme court may resolve 1t. Are you okay?

MR, DICKERSON: I'd like to participate by phone.

THF. COURT: Did you want to —-- well, TI'll be gone
the following week.

MR. DICKERSON: If it's on the 1Ist, then I would
simply ask that it be some time after say 3:00 o'clock our
time, say 3:00 or 4:00 —-- 4:00 o'cleck would be perfect. If
it's on the 2nd, I can do it anytime.

THE COURT: ©OQOkay. Now you're going to participate
telephonically?

MR. DICKERSON: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. DICKERSON: I can participate telephonically.

THE COURT: Both times? OQOkay.

MR. DICKERSON: Yes.

THE COURT: Does that work for --

MS. FORSBERG: That works for me. Does that work
for wyou?

THE COURT: Would you prefer August lst at 4:00

o'cleock or would you prefer August 2nd anytime? It doesn't
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matter to me. I'm here all the time anyways, so —-
MR, DICKERSON: 4:00 o'clock on the lst.

MS. FORSBERG: The only thing is there's -- there's

parking at 4:00 o'clock in this building. With what they got

teday, 1t make you wonder.

THE CQURT: Okay. Sc deces Tthat work? Now the
trustee -- does the Trust need to be part of that on the --
they probhably do, begause -~

MR. TLUSZECK: Yeah, I think so. August 1lst at 4:00

THE COURT: 4:00 o'clock.

MR. LUSZECK: Yeah, for --

THE COURT: Does that work for everybody?

MR. LUSZECK: Yeah.

MR. SCLOMON: Yes.

TEE COURT: And then we'll do it that time: We'll
sit there and state and address the issues, but I need an
evidentiary hearing for contempt. You're entitled tc an
evidentiary hearing especially if they're recommending --
requesting Jjail time. But the supreme ccurt depending on what
happens, some of those i1ssues may be resolved. I don't know.
We'll see what the supreme court dces.

MS. FORSBERG: Thank you, Your Honor.

MR. LUSZECK: Thank you.
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THE COURT: Okay.

MR. LUSZECK: Let me just readdress one more issue

THE COURT: Sure.

MR. LUSZECK: -- about the --

THE COURT: Counsel.

MR. LUSZECK: -- discovery deadline for the Wyoming
Downs lssue.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR, LUSZECK: I would like some time to file
dispositive motlions and 1t seems like with November 22nd being
the discovery deadline would be relatively hard to do without
it being on an 0ST for the December 11th evidentiary hearing.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. TUSZECK: It seems like 90 days was the time
frame that was requested.

MR. DICKERSON: Well, one would think you could file
your dispositive motlons prior to the -- the close of --

MR. SOTLOMON: Well, 1f you don't 56, F 1it.

MR. LUSFZECX: Yeah. So I would just say end of
October gives them more than 90 days. It gives them close to
a hundred days. And then it gives us time to file dispositive
moticns, have 1t heard in ordinary course as oppose to

shortening time. Especially filing those over the hollday
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over Thanksgiving.

MR. DICKERSON: I just ask that you remain the order
the way 1t was. With respect te the contempt motion, are you
finding him in contempt, vet he can purge that contempt by
making the payments that we discussed here today with respect
to the payments tomorrow and --

THE COURT: No, it -- no, at this time I'm crdering
him to pay that sum forthwith, the 1,032,742 and the 35,258.
As far as that, we'll come in here on August 1lst, whatever it
is, teo talk about centempt. She's got the ability and
willingness to see if we can get that reseclved. O0Of course, 1f
he pays that, it's moot anyways. I'll make it clear 1f the
supreme court deesn't do anything with that trust money. My
intent is to make that money ceome from that trust to get it
resolved one way or the cther. Just so everybody knows where
we're going on that and I'm heping it might be resolved
itself.

I won't find him in contémpt today because I don't
have encugh evidence to show that he had the ability and
willingness to pay that. I know the argument from the -- Mr.
Dickerson 1s that he's got access Lc¢ that trust money on that
and could pay it on that, but it's more sémething mere
question of fact to give everybody a -- a good record. So I'm

not finding the contempt yet. I'm directing him to pay that
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and then we'll issue to see if that's been resclved on that
date. If not, we'll set it with a quick turnarcund for a
contempt hearing because the issue will be his ability -- his
ability tc pay. And I guess that depends on --

MS. FORSBERG: Thank vyou, Your Henor.

THE COURT: We'll have Mr. ﬁickerson prepare the
crder.

MR. LUSZECK: What are we doing about the discovery,
deadline?

THE COURT: As far as discovery, let's keep it
status que. If you need more time, I can push the December
date if we need that. If you need time to file dispositive
moticns, Jjust let me know at that time. But I rather keep it
there. If it locks like you need more time, I'll be glad to
grant more time fcor the trial if we need on that tc give you
time to do dispositive motions. But I'm hoping it might -- a
lot ¢f these might be rendered meoolt depending what happens.

ME. LUSZECK: Thank you, Ycur Henor.

MR. SOLOMON: Thank you, Your Honor.

MR. bICKERSON: Thank you; Your Honor.

MS. FORSBERG: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Thanks everybody. Mr. Dickerson, will
vou prepare the corder for toeday —-

ME. DICKERSON: Yes, we will, Your Honor.
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THE COURT: -— and let counsel --

MR. DICKERSON: Thank you.

THE COURT: -- sign off? Thanks, everybody. Sorry

to keep vou sc late.
MR. SOLOMON: Thank you, sir.
(PROCEEDINGS CONCLUDED AT 16:09:05)
******.
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above-entitled case to the best of my ability.

ruly and

Adrian N. Medrano
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LAS VEGAS, NEVADA THURSDAY, AUGUST 1, 2013

PROCEEDINGS

(THE PROCEEDINGS BEGAN AT 16:00:13)

THE COURT: Make sure -- we'll get this on the
record everybody's appearance and we'll get Mr. Dickerson on
the phone. This is the time in the matter of Eric and Lynita
Nelson, case number D-411537. We'll get evervybody's
appearances while we're getting Mr., Dickerson hooked up.

MR. LUSZECK: Jeff Luszeck on behalf of the
Distribution Trustee the ELN Trust.

MS. FORSRERG: Good afternoon, Your Honor. Rhonda
Forsberg, 2557, on behalf of Eric Nelson who is present to my
right.

THE COURT: Good to see you, Mr. Nelson.

MS. PRCOVOST: Katherine Provost, 8414,'on behalf of
Lynita Nelsonrwho 1s seated Lo my left. Also present at
counsel table i1s Melissa Antanasio (ph) and Mr. --

(OLf récord) o
. THE CLERK: He's on the phone.

THE COURT: Good to see you Ms. Lynita as well. Mr.
Dickerson, can you hear me okay?

MR. DiCKERSON: Yes, I can. Thank you very much,

Your Honor.
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THE CQURT: Ckay. Let me know if -- 1If vyou can't
hear. We just have evervybody stated their appearances. If
you can't hear, let us know, because sometimes we have Trouble
from hearing it from the counsel's table. BAnd if so, we'll
bring them right up to the bench tc make sure you can hear us
loud and clear.

MR. DICKERSCN: Thank you very much. I appreciate
the accommodation.

THE CQURT: We're here on a status check as far as
from the last hearing of July 22nd. I did get served with the
crder from the supreme court granting a temporary stay on some
of the issues I ruled on at the hearing and specificaliy with
the divorce decree regarding transfer of the assets to-Lindell
property, the rental prbperties, BANCNE, the trust —-- noté
receivable from the Ramos and the Russel Rcad property. They
indicated temporary stay shall remain in effect pending
further order of the court. Sc I guess that kind of tied up
scme of the issues I was résolving.

I 5till see the issues of the payment of the 1.2
millicon dollars and‘also the rental income accounting frdm the
day of the decree to determine on any rental proceedings
they're entitled to. So that's kind of where we're ét righfl
ncw. I guess the real key 1s the —-- what the supfeme court is

going to ultimately rule on those stays that they have going
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right now. But here's where I'm at right now and I guess who
wants to take the lead on that? Did you want to -- Mr.
Dickerson or Ms. Provost, you guys want to take the lead on
that, give me your position and hear from the other side or —-

MS. PROVOST: We'll be brief, Your Honor. With
respect to the prior proceedings, the child support pavment
that was promised for June and July were made. Child support
for August is due today. That has yvet to be made, but T would
trust that that will be made today to remain in compliance.
Otherwise, we'll be back before vou on another order to show
-- order to show cause for failure to pay child support.

As we proceéded with at the last hearing and undef
our motion for order to show cause, the June at -- 2lst and
Juﬁe 26th stays by the supreme court regarding the million
dollar award where as to the ELN Trust, there was no stay with
regspect to Eric Nelson and we éat that forth in our motion.
And as we explained to you at the last hearing, Mr: Nelson has
the obligation under the Court's order of June 19th to make
that million -- the 81,032,742 payment to Mrs., Nelson. Thét
still has not been made and we would ask that vou set this for
an order to show cause further proceedings. He is in
Vioiation of this Court's order. There is no stay as to Mr.
Nelson.

As Your Honor indicated, the July 30th stay has put
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a hold on The property transfer issues, but That does not
negate the -- this Court's order from July 22nd of Mr. Nelson
having To account for the rental income from July forward as
to all of this properties, specifically the BANCNE property as
well as the Lindell Road property.

Especially with respect fo The Lindell Road
property. That property if yvou will recall is titled 50
percent in the LSN Trust, 50 percent in the ELN Trust. And
Your Honor's decree would have given all of that tTo Mrs.
Nelson, but that transfer to Mrs. Nelson has been stayed.
However, she is entitled to be receiving and should have been
receiving all along 50 peréent of the income that's being
géﬁéfated by the Lindell property. That is not happeniﬁg.

We believe the accounting is due. We ésk thaf the
accountings continue on a monthly basis while we're waiting
for.the supreme court to determine what's goling to happening
in this case and that Mrs. Nelson is in need right now of
money. She has no income to support herself as a result of
these stays. At the very.least, she should be gettihg the
Liﬁdell Rbad income. She should be Timely receivihg her child
support. And at this point in time, she's going to be having
to consider selling her assets including her home because she
has no other means of'support.

I believe you're familiar with her financial
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position and we would ask for your assistance in insuring that
these accountings are produced. I don't know whether or not
Mr. Nelson brought the accounting that he was ordered to bring
today, but we have not received anvthing so far. Nothing hasg
been provided to our office.

MR. LUSZECK: Your Honor, I1'll be brief as well.
With respect to accounts that are from properties that are
owned wholly by the E -- ELN Trust, our position is is that no
-— accountings need to be produced because the assets ars
still being -- still being held by the ELN Trust and have not
been transferred over to the LSN Trust.

Rents issues and profits are inciéental ownership.
The propertiés are still owned by the ELN Trust.

Consequently, we don't believe accountings are necessary or
ﬁhat Ms. Nelson would be entitled to that informatioﬁ S0 léng
as those propefties remain titled in the name of the EIN
Trust.

THE COURT: Thank you.

MS. FORSBERG: Thank you, Your Honor. A couple of
issues to go along with that, Your Honor. As you know, and —-
énd through the long trial that we've had who has funds in
their personél accounts. So you know these parties really
don't have those kind of personal accounts. We've talked

about inability to -- for him to pay one millicon thirty scme
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odd thousand dollar award that you have granted her in a lump
sum. So there's inability to pay. We've talked about that,
Your Honor.

Now they have -- not only has the supreme court
stayved the million -- that order on the million whatever, you
know, the millien thirty, whatever it is, they have now --
they've alsc stated those property issues to go forward. I
think the other issue that Mr. Luszeck didn't probably bring
forth that I think is alsc important is that the issues zbout
that are now those properties are stayed. It wasn't -- the
while prcperty is stayed. I think that goes with the stay
that yoﬁ Just read. I think the Court knows that. But juét
so that it's on the -- the oral record, Your Heonor, “Just to
make sure that's clear.

So clearly that is a case. Mr. Nelson doeén‘t have
any'problem.With paving the child support. If you recall,
Your Honor, last time we were here he also paid other iteﬁs
that were part of the -- they were supposed te split. And he
had no problem. He's the cne that volunteered to pay that
right fhat day anyways 1f you recall. So they're making é-big
iséﬁe about that.

And as far as Ms. Nelson selling properties cut of
the —- her as an investment trustee for her trust, clearly she

can do that. There is no stay that prevents her from having
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income from these properties. 5So clearly, that's how those --
those trusts are sef up to buy and sell properties. That's
Their whole purpose. They're not a normal store front
generating income. So that's where we are, Your Honor, on
those issues.

THE COQURT: You know, we need to get this matter
resolved., The supreme courf needs to get it resolved. As far
as the accounting, I think they are entitled to accounting
from the BANONE, the reason for that, I'm not going fto let
this wait until the supreme court decides to vacate their stay
and allow me to enforce the divorce decree. I'm not going to
wait a month or two for an accouﬁting. Ain't going to make
déiéyf It;s ain't going to happen anymore. So we'll get
those accountings done. In the event the supreme court says
I'm wrong and the properties don't get transferred, then so be
it. And they won't need the accounting.

But I'm not geing to sit there and let this drag on
and drag on and.drag on. So I want an accounting of BANONE,
because'my.full intention unless the supreme court detérmines
ofhérwise is to give her those rental incomes immediately from
that from the July on. And I'm not going to come back here
and say okay, the supreme court agreed with you, Sullivan.

Now we need 45 days for an accounting. That's not going to

happen. I'm going to get this done. I'm not going -- not
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have anything delaying things.

And so I'm inclined to issue a charging order
against any distributions that Mr. Nelson has coming. I think
I can clearly do that with a charging order no matter what
they rcle on the trust. I think as far as spousal support and
child support, I think it's clear from the case law that I
have looked at from spendthrift trusts that they can issue
charging orders against any distributions that the parties get
in to satisfy any family support issues. The issue on that is
with their stay. Does that stay might -- the spousal support
order as well. And I'd be inclined to set about issue in a
charging order against any distributions that the trust would
pay to Mr. Nelson to satisfy his spousal support and child
SUpport obligations.

I had a done a spousal support. It's a lump sum. I
had estimated it at 7,000 a month and based on rental incomes
that she may receive about 13,000 for the 20,000. I did that
over the 15 years. I think I came up with 1.2 miiiion and
then T did a -- not a very calculated to be honest, but I did
a discount for'a lump sum. It came out to about 806G, 060G, but
it was based on.

| So I would be inclined to get her spousai support
for $7,000 a month and put a charging order againsf any

proceeds and any distributions to Mr. Nelgon that that money
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